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/ Examination in Agency.
t ?-

T-5V (
K

(Cover all points involved and give reasons fully.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

I. (a) P called A over the telephone and

said: "Will you go down to T's office and sign my
name to a deed? 1 have already told T that you

will do so." In compliance with this request A
signed the name of P to the deed. Is P bound by

the signature.^

(b) P, a horse dealer, authorized A to sell a

horse. A sold the horse to T, warranting title

and good driving habits. Is P bound by these

warranties? Would your answer be the same if

P were a person not dealing in horses?

2 S, a clerk in M's jewelry store, saw a

sneak thief escaping with a watch and ran to catch

him. The thief gained the sidewalk and S. in or-

der to disable the thief and secure the watch, threw

a heavy paper-weight at the thief. The paper-

weight struck and injured T who was passing by

with a crowd of others. Is M responsible to T?

3. (a) M, owning a gun store, gave his clerk,

S, express directions not to load weapons in the

store. \ prospective customer asked to have a

gun loaded to see how it worked. S at first re-

fused, saying it was against orders. The prospect'

ive custo.mer refused to buy unless the gun was

loaded. S then consented and while showing how
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the gun was loaded it was discharged, injuring T,

who waspassing by on the opposite side of the

street.

Is M liable lo T?

(b) T purchased goods in M's store and of-

fered to pay the clerk, S, in bills, which Ssaid were

counterfeit. S demanded and was given silver in

payment. S then had T arrested for an attempt

to pass counterfeit. The bills were in fact genu-

*

Is M liable to T?

4. A made a contract in due form in the name
of the Presidio Improvement Co. for the purchase

of 200 acres of land, from T. There was no com-

pany by this name. When T failed to receive the

first installment called for in the contract, he sued

A for non-payment, declaring on the contract.

Is A liable? Is he liable in any other form of
action?

Assume that A in payment of the first install-

ment signed a note payable to T in the name of

the non-existent company. Would A be liable to

r in a suit on the note?

5. (a) P consigned goods to A for sale at not

less than $100. Being unable to find a purchaser

A bought them himself at $125. Later when the

market for this kind of goods improved, A sold

the goods for $200.

(b) A bought 10 shares of stock at ^^50 each
and knowing that P desired to buy some, repre-
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scented to P that he could buy shares at $75 or

less and asked P to authorize him to buy at $75.

P did so. A then transfered his own shares to P

at $75 each, representing that C was the vendor.

(c) A, having collected money for his princi-

pal, P, put the money into his own account at the

bank. The bank though considered sound and

conservative failed.

(d) A induced his principal, P, to contract to

buy goods of X in consideration of a bribe of $50

from X to A.

What are the rights of P in the above cases?

If he has more than one remedy mention each

one.

6 (a) A contracted for the sale of a farm to

T in the name of his principal, P. A falsely and

fraudulently represented that the farm contained

160 acres, whereas it in fact contained 140. P did

not know of or authorize this representation. Is

P liable to T in tort for deceit?

(b) A sold a house belonging to his princi-

pal, P, to T. A described it as free from taxes

and it was bought on the faith of that description.

The agent made the statement in good faith but

without having investigated the matter. P knew
that the house was not free from taxes but had

not told A to make any representation about tax-

es. Is P liable to T in tort for deceit?

7. S was the servant of the P. Suction Clean-

ing Co., which engaged in cleaning the exteriors



vof stone and brick buiidings by the applicatfon of

suction tubes. S, while engaged in cleaning a

building for the con^panvr applied a suction tube-

to T, a friend who was passing by. The intention

of S was to play a practical joke on T. The force

of the in rushing air ruptured a blood vessel causing

T's death. Is the P. Co. liable to the proper rep-

resentatives of T under a statute allowing recov-

ery for wrongful death?

8, A was an agent of the P. Insurance Co,

He had been told not to assume a risk exceeding

Sro.ooo on a single building or $50^000 to a single

city block. .A insured I's building for $10,000 al-

though he had previously insured buildings in the

same block for :550.00c. T knew of the limit but

had been assured by A that this risk was within

the limit. May 1' recover of the P. Co. in case of

loss?

9. (a) P stole twenty chickens belonging to

T. P consigned the stolen chickens along with

others owned by P, to A, a commission merchant,

who sold them in good faith believing P to be the

owner. T sued A in trover for the conversion of

the 20 chickens. Is A liable?

(b) A was the transfer agent of the P Bank-
ing Co., and as such was charged with the duty of

entering on the books of the company all trans-

fers of stock. X, owning stock, sold same to T.
T requested A to enter the transfer, which A re-

fused to do. T sued A in an action on the case.

Is A liable 1*



10. A, knowing^ that his friend, B, desired to

buy certain stock, secured an optton of T in the

name of B for the delivery of ten shares at $105

per share until 3:00 p. m. of the same day. Being

unable to find B and secure authority, A tele-

phoned T at 3:00 p. m. that B would take the

stock. A found B at 4:00 p. m. and B expressed

his assent to what had been done. The price of

the stock declined the next day and B refused to

take it. Has T a contract against B?

Assume that T learned that A had no author-

ity to act for B and notified A before 3:00 p. m.

that the option was rescinded and that B, after

seeing A, telephoned T at 3:00 p. m. that he would

take the stock. Assume further that the price of

the stock advanced and T refused to deliver.

Would B have a contract right against T?





T^xamination in Bills and Notes,

(Cover all points involved and give reasons

fully. In each case state (i) what you believe to

be the law before, and (2) what you believe to be

the law after the adoption of the Negotiable In-

struments Act.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

I. Are the following instruments negotiable

in form?

(a) $10.00. Urbana, 111., Nov. 25, 1912.

I promise to pay to the order of the X Pub-

lishing Co. the sum of ten dollars, payable in five

monthly instalments of two dollars each, begin-

ning Dec. I, 191 2. The consideration of this note

is one set of Blank's Life of Lincoln, the title of

which is to remain in the X Publishing Co. until

this note is paid in full. M.

(b) $6500.00.

Milwaukee, Wis., Dec. 11, 191 1.

Three years after date I promise to pay to the

order of Henry Herman — Six Thousand Five

Hundred Dollars—, with interest at 6 per cent

payable semi-annually. If default shall be made
in the payment of interest the whole amount of

the principal shall become due at once.

Heinrich Minderman.

If not paid when due, 5 per cent additional fo

cost of collection.



2. Are the following instruments negotiable

in form ?

(a) $125.00.

Township of Buffalo, Mch. 25, 1868.

Six months after date I promise to pay to E.

VV. Lowe or order One Hundred and Twenty-five

Dollars with interest. Waiving the right of ap-

peal and of all valuation, appraisement, stay and

exemption laws. Morton Anderson.

(b) Si 50.00. Laredo, Texas.

One year after date I promise to pay to Pedro

Flores—One Hundred and Fifty-five Dollars—in

Mexican currency, with interest at 7 per cent per

annum until paid: 5 per cent if paid when due.

This note is secured by a chattel mortgage on my
household furniture. If on a sale under the mort-

gage the entire amount is not realized, I promise

to pay the deficiency.

Jose Valdemoro.

3. Chicago, Dec. i, 1Q12. No. 41.

Continental and Commercial Savings Bank.

Pay to the order of Wm. Norton—One Hundred
Dollars—$100.00, and charge to my account on

savings bank book No. 41.

Augustus Nash.

The bank book of depositor must accompany
this order.

On the back of the above instrument was
written: "Pay Henry Johnson. Wm. Norton."
Henry Johnson presented the order accompanied
by book No. 41 to the bank on December 2, IQ12.



Payment was refused because of a rule of the

bank reserving the right to refuse payment unless

given thirty days notice. This rule was printed in

the bank book.

Is the instrument negotiable in form? If not,

strike out or add anything necessary to make it

negotiable. If it is already negotiable or if you

have changed it to make it so state briefly the

rights of Johnson against Norton, Nash and the

bank in case payment is refused by the bank.

4. M made two notes payable to the order of

P. P delivered the notes to his agent, G, who had

authority to indorse and deliver notes in P's be-

half. P, who lived alone, died suddenly one night.

The next morning, before any one knew of P's

death, G indorsed on one of the notes "P" and on

the other "Pay to A. P" and delivered them to A
in payment of a debt owed by P to A. At ma-

turity A sued M. Has M any valid defense?

If M refuses to pay and A gives due notice of

dishonor to P's administrator, may A recover of

the latter?

5 M made a promissory note for $100 pay-

able on demand to the order of P with six per

cent interest. Six months after date P indorsed

the note to A for value. A month later A pre-

sented the note to M for payment, which was re-

fused. A then sued M. May M avail himself of

either of the following defenses:

I Payment to P five months after the note

was issued.
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2 A set-off against P to the extent of $50.

3 That the note was given in payment of a

gambling debt.

6 Chicago, December i, IQ12.

Two years after date I promise to pay to the

order of I\ One Hundred Dollars. Value received.

M.

Indorsed: (i) "P," (2) "A," (3) "Pay to C, B."

(4) "Pay D without recourse. C" D lost the note.

X found it and sold it to E for $75. E did not

know that X was a finder. D learned that E had

the note and demanded its return. After refusal

I) sued E in trover. Judgment?

7. Plaintiff, as indorsee of a bill of exchange,

sued defendant as acceptor. The bill was in

proper form but there was no acceptance on its

face. Can plaintiff recover if: (a) He puts in

evidence a written promise of defendant to accept

the bill, such promise being made and dated be-

fore the bill was drawn, (b) The word "accepted"

is written across the back of the bill in defendant's

handwriting but with no signature, (c) Plaintiff

proves that previous to taking the bill he called

defendant by telephone and defendant promised

to accept, the bill being then in existence.

8. (a) P, a traveling agent, called on M, a

farmer, and sold M some farm machinery. After

M had signed a written contract of sale P request-

ed M to sign a duplicate. M signed the paper
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offered him as a duplicate without reading it. In

fact the paper was a note tor $ioo payable to the

order of P. (b) P also induced M to buy an in-

terest in a patent right on this farm machinery.

The patent was worthless although P represented

that it was very valuable. To pay for his interest

M made a note for $100 payable to the order of

P. P sold both notes to A for $150. M, when
sued by A at maturity, pleads fraud in each case.

Is the defense good? What are A's rights against

P?

Q. M, a stenographer in the employ of DE,
bought a typewriter of P and in payment gave P

the following:
Urbana, Illinois, July i, 1013.

Sixty days after date pay to the order of P,

out of my salary for August, the sum of $90.00, the
price of one Oliver No. 5 typewriter, delivery of

which is hereby acknowledged.

To DE. M.

Is the above instrument negotiable!^

10. (a) M, to accommodate P, made a note
for $500 payable to the order of P six months
after date. The note was dated January 2, 1910.

On September i of the same year P indorsed the
note to A for value. A knew that M was an ac-

commodation maker. A did not demand payment
of M until three years later, after P became
bankrupt. Can A recover of M?

(b) $88.00 Chicago, Illinois, January 10, iqio.

Forty-five days after date pay to the order of
P Eighty-eight Dollars and charge same to ac-

count of M.

Is the above instrument negotiable? If so, is

it a bill or a note?





Examination in Bankruptcy.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

1. A, a citizen of Indiana, in 1892 loaned

$5,000 to B, a citizen of Massachusetts, taking a

note therefor payable in five years in Indianapolis.

In i8q4 a moved from Indiana to Boston where

his home still remained in igoo. In that year he

sued B on the note in the Massachusetts courts, to

which suit B pleaded a discharf>e under the Mas-

sachusetts insolvency law (a statute permitting

proceedings to be commenced by creditors of an

insolvent for the liquidation of his property and

discharging debtors proceeded against from their

debts) obtained in 1893.

(a) Is B's defense good?

(b) Would it alter the case if the discharge

pleaded was obtained in 1896?

(c) Or in 1899?

2. A, a resident of Chicago, made an assign-

ment for benefit of his creditors on June 1, 1905,

to B as assignee, who took possession of A's prop-

erty, recorded the assignment in the County Court

of Cook county and gave bond in accordance with

the Illinois Assignment Act. X, a constable, on

June 15, 1905, levied execution on goods in the

hands of B on a judgment recovered by M against

A, and sold them at execution sale two weeks

later.

(a) What are B's rights against X, if any?



(b) If A is adjudicated a bankrupt on a peti-

tion filed July I, 1965, what are the rights of the

trustee to the proceeds of the sale provided they

are still in the ofificer's hands? Or provided they

had been paid over by the officer to M ?

(c) What would be the ri^j^hts of the trustee

to other property included in the assignment still

in the hands ot B?

(d) Would it alter your answer to (c) if the

date of the petition were November 1, instead of

July I
.-' If so, how and why?

3. The Aetna Coal Company was incorpor-

ated under the laws of New Jersey, which requires

that every corporation organized under it shall

maintain its principal office in that State. It kept

its stock books and maintained an office in New-
ark, where it held its annual meetings of stock-

holders, but did no other business there. The
company owned extensive coal mines and was en-

gaged in mining coal in Carbon county, southern

Illinois. It also had large coal yards in Chicago,

where it sold its product and maintained its busi-

ness office.

(a) Could this company be a voluntary bank-
rupt.? Or involuntary?

(b) If either, what court or courts would
have jurisdiction ?

(c) Would a letter written by the president

of this company, acknowletlging that it was insol-
vent and willing to be adjudged a bankrupt, be a
sufficient act of l)ankruptcy, admitting that the
company is one which may be adjudged an invol-
untary bankrupt?



4- Smith gave a note to Jones for borroweLi

money which Jones endorsed to and discounted at

the X bank. When the note matured, Smith told

Jones that he was hard up and could not raise the

money to pay it, but if Jones would loan him the

money, he would make a new note and give him a

mortgage to secure it. Jones accordingly advanc-

ed Smith the money to pay the bank, and Smith

made a new note to Jones, with a mortgage on

Blackacre and Whiteacre, the latter being Smith's

homestead.

(a) Admitting that Smith was insolvent,

would this transaction amount to an act of bank-

ruptcy?

(b) If adjudicated on a voluntary petition

filed by Smith within 4 months, what would be the

rights of his trustee to the property mortgaged?

5. Discuss the subject of voluntary convey-

ances as a fraud upon prior and subsequent cred-

itors.

6. Jones conducted a butcher shop in the city

of Urbana in leased premises and also owned a

farm of 80 acres near the city where he resided

with his family. He operated the farm with hired

help, using it as a place to fatten cattle, hogs and

poultry, and did his slaughtering there.

In the fall of 1910, Peters commenced a suit

against Jones for the seduction of his daughter,

which came on for trial at the December term,and

on January 15, 1Q15, resulted in judgment against

Jones for $s,ooo.



Pen(iin^ the trial, on December i, iQio, [ones-

deeded the farm to his wife without consideration^

and the deed was recorded on January 14. iQH-

At the time Jones owned stock and tools on the

farm worth about $3,000 and fixtures, stock and

book accounts at the shop worth about $2,000.

He owed a note of $2,000 at the X bank, due Jan-

uary 10, iQi I ; another note at the Y bank of $1,000

due February i, 191 1, in which Smith was endors-

er; and he was an accommodation endorser on a

note of Brown to the Z bank for $2,500, due July

I, 191 1. He also owed scattering amounts to oth-

er persons, amounting to about $1,000, of which

$200 was for taxes and $50, $100 and $500 res-

pectively was to B, C and D for wages.

On December 15, 1910, Jones borrowed $500

of Lewis and gave him a bill of sale of the shop

fixtures, stock on hand and book accounts. This

was intended as security, but Jones continued in

possession and conducted the business as before.

On January 14, 191 1, the X bank brought

suit on the $2000 note and attached the tools and

livestock on the farm. This suit resulted in judg-

ment on April 15, execution was immediately lev-

ied and the attached property advertised by the

sheriff for sale on April 25th.

(a) Is Jones subject to involuntary bank-
ruptcy?

(b) Assuming that he is, how many acts of

bankruptcy has he committed, what are they, and
what is the earliest and latest date that a petition

would lie on each?



(c) Which of his creditors enumerated are

eligible to act as petitioning creditors on the latest

date, and how many of them would be required to

join? Would any of these have been ineligible,

or would others have been eligible if the petition

were filed at the earliest date possible?

(d) If Jones were adjudicated on a petition

filed on the latest date, what would be the rights

of his trustee to the various items of property

enumerated?

(e) Would Jones have a right to a discharge,

assuming that he turned over all of his property

and obeyed all of the orders of the court?

(f) Which of Jones' creditors, if any. are en-

titled to priority of payment?





Examination in Contracts.

First Semester.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

1. "One year after date I promise to pay to

John Jones the sum of One Thousand Dollars

(v$i,ooo.oq) with interest at seven per cent.

Witness my hand the first day of March, A.

D., 191 1.

Peter Smith (L. S.)"

(a) What form or forms of action could be

properly brought on this instrument at common
law and why?

(b) Does the law of Illinois differ from the

common law in this respect? If so, how?

(c) Could the defense of "no consideration"

be successfully interposed by Smith in a suit on

this instrument?

2. Define "consideration" and explain the

origin of the doctrine.

3. X located a homestead on the public

domain and received a certificate of entry from

the U. S. Land Office. This certificate was value-

less unless the holder actually resided three years

on the premises when the holder became entitled

to a patent. After one year X abandoned the

land and went to an adjoining State where he

worked in a mine for a year. He then returned



to the land and found Y in possession, the latter

having proven the abandonment and received a

new certificate of entry from the land office. X,

knowing that he had no rights, threatened to bring

legal proceedings against Y to oust him from the

premises, as a result of which Y finally agreed to

buy X's certificate for Sioo and gave X his prom-

issory note for that amount payable in six months.

The note being unpaid X brings suit on the note.

(a) If Y wishes to make the defense of no

consideration should he do so by demurrer or plea?

(b) If properly raised, is the defense good?

4. I), a brewer in Danville, received a letter

from P, of Champaign, informing him that P was

about to start a bottling works and inquiring at

what price D would furnish him beer by the barrel.

D replied, "I shall be glad to supply your demands
at $5.cxD per barrel, settlements at the end of each

month." P immediately ordered twenty-five

barrels and D filled the order. Three weeks later

P ordered fifty barrels and D refused to fill the

order. Is he guilty of breach of contract?

Suppose, before the above orders were made,
D and P had drawn and signed a written agree-

ment by which D had agreed to furnish and P

had agreed to buy from I) all of the beer that "P's

trade demanded for one year," and after the

refusal of the fifty barrel order. P had purchased

500 barrels elsewhere within the year to supply his

trade at an additional cost of fifty cents per barrel.



Would D be liable to P for breach of contract, and

if so, for how much? Exphiin fully.

5. D rented a store from P for tive years at a

rental of Sioo per month. After two years of the

term had expired D informed P that his trade was

poor and he must cut down his expenses or quit.

P thereupon agreed to reduce the rent to ^75 per

month for the balance of the term. D continued

to occupy the premises, paying $75 at the end of

each month and receiving a receipt in full for rent

to date. When the last installment was due P

tendered $75 but D demanded in addition the sum

of $900, being $25 a month for three years. Is he

entitled to it?

6. P, a boy of 16, had been irregular in his

attendance at school. An uncle one day said to

him, "If you wont miss school a single day for a

whole year, except for sickness, of which your

father shall be the judge, I will give you $100."

P replied, "I will take you up on that. I want that

$100." After about eleven months, during which

P's attendance had been perfect, he commenced to

crow one day and asked his uncle if he had the

money ready. The uncle replied that he was

sorry that he did not have the money to spare and

the boy must not expect it. He also said thai he

had never really meant it seriously anyway. What
are P's rights if he continues to attend regularly

for the balance of the year?

7. The University of Illinois had purchased

property, on which were some dwelling houses, for



the purpose of bu'lding a new building. It adver-

tised that at a certain time and place it would sell

the houses at auction to the highest bidder. At

the sale Jones bid $650, Smith bid $675 and Jones

then bid $680. The auctioneer refused to accept

the last bid, because the advance was too small,

and continued to cry the property at $675. No-

body bidding more, he knocked down the property

to Smith at that price.

lones sues the University for damages for

breach of contract. Decide the case.

8. X dictated a letter to Y offering to hire

him for a year at a salary of $250 per month, but

the stenographer made a mistake and wrote $220

instead of $250. Y accepted and went to work

and at the end of the first month received a check

for $250. He enquired the reason for the over-

payment and X then learned of the mistake for

the first time. He then demaniJed a return of the

check and offered one for ^220 in its place. Y
claimed that he was entitled to S^^o under the

circumstances and on X's refusal to pay that

amount, Y quit work.

(a) How much is Y entitled to for his

month's work ?

(b) Is Y liable to X for breach of contract

for refusing to work for X for the balance of the

year at >^220?

Q. Jones, of Minneapolis, and Brown, ot St.

Haul, were grain brokers. On a certain day Jones

found in his morning mail an offer from Brown to
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sell 10,000 bushels of wheat at j^rices stated and

stating that the offer would be kept open till noon

of that day. Jones immediately decided to accept.

He tried to telephone to Brown but found his tele-

phone out of order. This was at 9:00 a. m. He
then dictated a letter of acceptance to his stenog-

rapher, who wrote it out, and Jones then signed

and sealed it, addressed it to Brown and at 9:30 he

handed it to an A. D. T. messenger boy for im-

mediate delivery. At 9:45, while on his way to

Brown's ofhce, the messenger boy was struck by

an automobile and taken to a hospital. The letter

was found in his pocket by the receiving doctor

who stamped it and deposited it in a U. S. mail

box at 10:15. The postman took it up at 10:30 and

it was delivered in due course of mail at Brown's

ofihce at 11:55 by slipping it through a slot in the

door. There was no one in the ofhce at the time

and Brown first saw the letter when he returned

from lunch. Brown then notified Jones that his

answer was too late and refused to sell.

Was there a contract between the parties? If

so when was it made? Discuss each step in the

negotiations.

10. Green sued White for breach of contract.

At the trial the following facts were proven.

White called on Green, a real estate agent, and

asked him if he thought he could sell Blackacre, a

farm owned by White, for .^10,000. Green said he

thought he could and after some discussion as to

terms he handed White a printed blank which



White filled out and signed. It read as follows:

"In consideration of S. H. Green agreeing to act

as agent for the sale of the following described

property: (here Blackacre was described); I here-

by agree to give him the exclusive sale thereof for

three months and to pay him a commission of five

oer cent in case of sale. Price to be <^io,ooo, half

cash, balance to be secured by mortgage. Dated

February i, igio. Signed, James White." Two
months later White notified Green that he had

sold the property himself and to take it off the

market. Green, in the meantime, had expended

considerable sums for advertising and in showing

the property to prospective purchasers.

There being no controversy as to these facts,

Green moved the court to direct a verdict in his

favor. Should the motion be granted?



Examination in Constitutional Law.

January, IQ14.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

1. A state constitution prohibited amendment
except by a two-thirds vote of each house followed

by a two-thirds majority at a general election.

The legislature by vote of a bare majority of each

house submitted to the voters the question of call-

ing a convention to frame a new constitution to go

into effect when promulgated by the convention,

and a bare majority of the voters voted for it.

The legislature then provided for the election of

delegates by the voters, and the delegates were

elected and met. If the convention promulgates

a new constitution, will it supersede the old one,

and if so will the change be lawful or revolution-

ary?

2. Discuss the validity of an act of Congress

providing that any person whose liberty of action

is restrained by tne Interstate Commerce Act may
file a petition in the appropriate District Court of

the United States asking the court to determine

whether the provision is constitutional as applied

to the petitioner, whereupon it shall be the duty

of the court to determine the matter, with a right

of appeal to the Supreme Court if the District

Court determines the provision to be valid.

3. The Constitution of the United States pro-

vides that no person shall be compelled in any



criminal case to be a witness against himself, and

that no state shall make or enforce any law which

shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citi-

zens of the United States; nor shall any state de-

prive any person of life, liberty, or property with-

out due process of law; nor deny to any person

within its jurisdiction the equcil protection of the

laws. A woman born and residing in New York,

on trial for felony in an Ohio court, was in viola-

tion of the constitution of Ohio compelled to be a

witness against herself, and thereupon convicted

and imprisoned. Which, if any, of t he provisions

recited above have been violated?

4. A was crippled by the negligence of a co-

employee. He sued the eniployer. Before the

trial, the legislature granted A's wife a divorce,

provider! that in future trials the feliow servant

rule should not be available as a defence, nor a

verdict be rendered on the uncorroborated testi-

monv of a plaintiff, and that the trial of A's case

should be postponed to certain cases in which the

state had an interest. Which of these acts are

valid as regards A?

5. A state statute required all common inn-

keepers whose inns had accommodations for a

hundred guests to serve a meal to any traveler

who requested it for not more than fifty cents.
Discuss its validity.

6. An act of Congress declared that any ad-

vertising sign twenty feet long or ten feet wide
painted on the wall of a building on a street bor-



dering on a public park in the City of Washing-

ton so as lo be visible from the park should be

deemed a liublic nuisance, and subject to abate-

ment as such. Discuss its validity.

7. A telephone company did business both

interstate and local in several states. Part of its

property was used solely in interstate business.

By the law of one of the states all public service

companies were taxed on the value, as a unit, of

their property tangible and intangible within the

state. The company's property was assessed by

estimating from the market prices of its stocks

and bonds and its gross and net receipts, the value

of its entire property and business throughout the

country as a going concern, and then taking the

proportion of that value which the gross receipts

and mileage within the state bore to the gross re-

ceipts and mileage in all the states. The law

made the assessors' valuation, fixed after hearing,

conclusive. The company had a fair hearing, but

is prepared to show an overvaluation, and more-

over contends that the laws and the assessment

are unconstitutional. What, if any, relief may it

obtain?

8. Assume that an act of Congress directs the

Collectors of ports to deport aliens of Chinese de-

scent who attempt to enter the United States, and

to imprison for three days all persons attempting

to smuggle goods into the United States and con-

fiscate the goods. Ju Toy, who claims to have

been born in Chicago, of alien Chinese parents,



attempts to enter the United States at Boston, and

to smuggle in a diamond worth tifty dollars. The
Collector, after a hearing, determines in good

faith on conflicting evidence that Ju Toy was born

of alien Chinese parents in China and is guilty of

attempting to smuggle the diamond. He confis-

cates the diamond, and, as the act provides, deliv-

ers Ju Toy to the U. S. marshal to be imprisoned

three days and then deported. If Ju Foy can

show he was born in Chicago, and never changed

his citizenship, may he obtain relief through the

courts from (i) the confiscition, (2) imprisonment,

(3) deportation?

Q. An Illinois statute provides that all prop-

erty in the state on the first day of May shall be

assessed and taxed. On that day there arrived

and docked in the Chicago River a vessel whose
forward hold was filled with grain she had brought

from Fort William, Canada, and her after hold

with grain she had brought from Duluth. Vessel

and cargo belonged to a merchant of Duluth, who
intended to keep the grain on board at the dock
until sold. What part of the property is taxable?

How would you answer if the Canadian and Minne-
S(na grain were mixed in the same hold?

10. A State law provided that foreign cor-

porations doing business in the State should there-

after pay an annual license fee equal to one-tenth
of one per cent of the gross receipts for the pre-

ceeding year of their total business wherever
carried on. Discuss the validity of these pro-
visions as applied



(i) tc a corporation of another State or-

ganized to sell cigars at retail which desires to

enter the State for business;

(2) to a like corporation already doing a

cigar business in the State in stores which it owns

and under a license from the State not limited as

to time;

(3) to a foreign packing house corporation

which wants to enter the State to carry on an

interstate and intrastate business in the shipment
and sale of meat.





Examination in Criminal Law.

February, IQ14.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

1. A pickpocket put his hand into another

man's pocket and seized a silver dollar which he

carefully raised almost to the top of the pocket

when it slipped from his fingers and dropped back.

Of what crime, if any, is he guilty?

2. A statute made it a misdemeanor to fish

for trout before May i. On April 30, X, believ-

ing, because he looked at an old calendar, that it

was May i, went to a stream full of trout, adjust-

ed his rod and made one cast, when he was ar-

rested. Is he guilty of an offence? Would it

make a difference if he knew it was April, but be-

lieved from looking in the last edition of the stat-

utes that the season for trout fishing began in

April, the law extending the closed season through

April having been recently passed and not yet

published? Would it make a difference if there

were no trout in the stream?

3. In a trial for selling liquor within four

miles of the State University at Urbana, it appear-

ed that the State's Attorney who instituted the

prosecution, suspecting that defendant was selling

liquor illegally, sent an agent to ask defendant to

sell him some liquor and that the sale charged



was thereupon made to the agent. Is this a de-

fence? Tf the agent were a minor, but defendant

reasonably believed him to be of full age, could he

be punished for selling liquor to a minor?

4. Two room-mates got dnuik. (3ne made a

great and unnecessary noise in his rocjm which

seriously disturbed the other inhabitants of the

house; the other threw bottles intc) the street to

the alarm of passers by, Whai, if any, crimes

have been committed?

5. As the President of the United States and

the British Ambassador were Lraveling through

Illinois in a motor car, A to frighten them tossed

into tlie car what looked like a dynamite bomb
but was a harmless piece of wood. They were in

no danger of being hit by the wood, but were put

in fear of being hurt by an explosion. Is A sub-

ject to prosecution by the State or by the United

States, and for what offence or offences?

6. A surgeon, to get a fee, falsely and fraud-

ulently told a patient that it was necessary to re-

move his appendix. The patient told him to do
so, and the surgeon performed the operation. Is

lu- guilty of a criminal assault and battery?

7. A statute provided that whoever sold im-

pure milk should be fined five dollars. A milk

dealer, in the belief it was pure, sold milk into

nhich his enemy had put poison. The buyer
drank the milk and di(Ml of the poison. Of what,

if any, crimes is the dealer guilty?



8. A's dog and B's dog, of equal value, got

into a fight. One dog or the other was sure to be

killed, and \ killed B's dog to save his own, but,

being angry at the dog and at B, killed it with un-

necessary cruelty. Then B, angry at A and at A's

dog, threw a stone at A, but unintentionally hit and

killed A's dog. He threw another stone at A, and

unintentionally hit C. What crimes?

Q. A was drunk in a saloon. A's wife enter-

ed the saloon with B, her father, to take A home.

C, also drunk, spoke to her words of gross insult.

A, angry at the insult, struck C with his fist. C,

angry at the blow, attacked A with a knife. B shot

C in necessary defence of A, inflicting a wound
which would prove fatal in a few hours. C fell to

the ground unable to move. A, still angry, and

solely because he was drunk thinking himself in

imminent danger of being killed by C, shot C and

killed him instantly. What crimes have been

committed ?

lo X is on trial for assault and battery

There is conflicting evidence as to whether he was

insane, and as to the nature and extent of his in-

sanity. What do you think should be on principle

the test of his punishability as affected by insanity?
To what effect are the decisions on the subject?

II. 1 here has been a criminal homicide.
People are discussing whether it is murder or only
manslaughter, and you are asked to explain the
difference between the two so that they may un-
derstand it and tell in any case of criminal
homicide where they know the facts whether it is

manslaughter or murder.





Examination in Evidence.

PROFESSOR HALE.

First Semester 1Q13-14.

(Give reasons for every answer.)

PART I.

1. Enumerate the various circumstances un-

der which the court may be called upon to

consider questions of fact in a trial before a jury.

In so doing does the court usurp the function of

the jury?

2. Indicate the different ways in which a jury

may come into a knowledge of facts to be con-

sidered in reaching its verdict, otherwise than

through the testimony of witnesses.

3. X is suing for injuries sustained in a col-

lision with a train. Between five and ten minutes

after the accident X said to Y that the train was
running at least thirty miles an hour at the lime

it struck him. The speed limit fixed b}- statute at

this point was twenty miles an hour.

Counsel for the defendant company objected

to this testimony by Y on the following specific

grounds:

1. It was hearsay.

2. No excuse was given for not calling X.

3. It was a mere expression of opinion by X.



Are any or all of these objections sufficient to

exclude the evidence as offered throuj^h Y?

4. A is claiming to inherit as an heir of Y.

It is admitted that B was the mother of A, but in

order to establish her right to the property A
must show that X was the mother of Y and that

X and 13 were sisters. To establish these facts

and thus make complete the line of descent, A
offers a declaration of Y to the effect that X was

her mother and that X and B were sisters.

It was objected, first, that it was not shown by

evidence dehors the declaration that Y was related

to A and, second, that this was a recent matter

and it was not shown that other living relatives

could not be found to testify. Should the decla-

ration of Y have been received?

5. A is indicted for the murder of B by placing

arsenic in a cup of tea, drunk by deceased while

an inmate of A's house. At the trial, evidence is

offered by the prosecution (1) that six other per-

sons who partook of the tea on the same c ccasion

were taken ill with the same symptoms, (2) that

in the cup habitually used by the deceased while

in A's house an arsenious deposit had been noticed

on three previous occasions in the same week. Is

this evidence admissible?

6. (a) A desires to introduce in evidence a

deed from X to Y. In what way or ways may the
deed be authenticated f*

(b) In what different ways may a signature
to a letter be proved?



7. A in an action against B for a breach of

contract, alleged that the contract was in writing

and set out the terms thereof in his declaration.

B put in a general denial.

A took the stand in his own behalf and offered

to testify to the terms of the contract. Counsel

for B objected that no proper foundation had been

laid. A thereupon stated that he did not have

the original contract; that it had been left with B.

In response to a further question, A testified that

he had a carbon copy of the contract in his office.

Counsel for B then objected on the ground, first,

that no notice to produce the original had been

served on B, and second, that the carbon copy

should be produced in preference to the oral

testimony.

Both objections were sustained. Were the

rulings correct?

8. Defendant signed a contract with the X
Advertising Co. for advertising at the rate of $io

per insertion. In an action on this contract de-

fendant seeks to show that the real contract was

for a less amount; that the written contract was

signed as worded at the request of the X Ad-

vertising Co. so that it might be used as an induce-

ment to others to contract for advertising at the

rate indicated in this contract. This evidence was

objected to by the X Advertising Co. What
should the ruling have been?



Q. X executed a will containing, among
others, the following provision, "I devise my house

in Champaign, Illinois, to John William Smith, the

son of Israel Smith. Israel Smith had a son by

that name who had died a number of years before

and also a younger son named John Robert

Smith, who claimed as devisee.

The testator, X, had in fact two houses in

Champaign, in one of which he made his home
and the other of which he leased.

To support his claim as devisee and also to

the home place, which was more valuable than

the other, John Robert Smith offered a letter

written to him by the testator in which it was
stated that he was to have the testator's home
upon his death.

Was the letter admissible for either purpose?



Examination in Equity.

February, 1914.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

I. Give three instances of specific perform-

ance where the subject matter is a chattel, or a

chose in action, explaining carefully in each case

why the legal remedy' is inadequate.

II. Describe fully thf interests, in equity, of

the mortgagor and mortgagee respectively (En-

glish doctrine)

.

To whom did each interest pass on the death

of the party?

Did equity recognize at all the common law

rights of the mortgagee?

III. A father agrees to settle Blackacre on

A, his prospective son-in-law, on the latter's mar-

riage. The marriage takes place, and A takes pos-

session of Blackacre. Show how the two general

tests, for determining whether a given act of part

performance takes an oral contract out of the

statute of frauds in equity, apply to the above

facts.

Would the marriage alone be a sufficient act

of part performance? Why?

IV. A steam railroad is constructed, under

authority from a city, down the middle of a street,

the street being owned by the city. The opera-



tion of the railroad constitutes a nuisance to A, an

owner of property abutting on the street, and di-

minishes the value of his property. The cases

studifid present two different views as to A's rem-

edy in equity against the railroad company.

.State these two views fully—the reasons for

them, and the results. Which is the Illinois law?

V. A owned a house in a choice residence

suburb, rhere was a gentleman's agreement (not

a concracr) among the residents that an owner on

moving away would sell out only to a person of

good reputation, acceptable to the other residents.

B contracted with A to purchase A's house for a

residence, paying its full value, and representing

that he (B) was a person of unblemished reputa-

tion. As a matter of fact B had served a term in

prison in a distant State for an infamous crime.

This fact coming to light, A refused to convey to

B. It appears that .\ will suffer no pecuniary dam-
age by conveying to B.but will suffer considerable

social persecution at the hands of his f )rmer neigh-

bors; the value of the property of the former

neighbors wouhi also be somewhat diminished if

B should take up his residence in A's house.

Can B have specific performance?

Discuss.

VI. Brown, on Jtme i, 1913, sold 10 acres to

White for ^1,000, Brown retaining the legal title.

Wliite paid $400 cash and gave his note for the

balance, jjayable December i, 1913. In Novem-



ber, 1913, Bruwn sold and conveyed the legal title

to Gray, who took with notice of the prior sale to

White. On December 10, 1913, Brown transferred

the purchase money note for value to Green, who
knew nothing of the sale to Gray. The note is

still unpaid.

What are the rights and remedies in equity of

Gray and Green against White, and of White

against Gray and Green?

Explain fully.

VII. Explain fully, with an illustration, what

is meant by equitable waste.

VIII. B was the priest and spiritual adviser

of A, who had no near relatives. While A was ill,

but not in expectation of death, A stated to B his

desire to make to B a gift of one-third of A's prop-

erty. B remonstrated and explained to A that A
would probably recover and then might repent of

his generosity; but A insisted on making the gift.

B finally yielded and brought in^an attorney, C, to

draw up the requisite deed. C held no private

conversation with A and offered no advice on the

subject of the gift. A executed and delivered to

B deeds of one-third of his property. On his re-

covery, A sues to set aside the gift.

Should he succeed? Reasons fully. Suppose
C had given him advice?

IX. B owns lots adjoining A's house on three

sides in a city suburb. B contracted with A not

to cut down the shade trees on his lots which close-



ly surrounded A's house, during A's ownership.

B's lot having, by the growth of the city, become
very valuable for building purposes, B is about

to cut down the trees to make room for a building.

A sues for an injunction. B offers to show as a

defense, that his lots are valueless to him if the

trees are allowed to remain, and that A's house

will be much more healthful if the trees are re-

moved.

Discuss.

X. A owns an undivided quarter of Black-

acre, as tenant in common with B. C holds a

mortgage for $8,000 on Blackacre. A wishes to re-

lieve his interest from the burden of the mortgage,

but B declines to contribute his proportion, and C
declines to accept less than $8,000.

What course should A pursue in order to se-

cure payment of B's share?



Examination in Insurance,

January, 1914.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

1. A took out three life policies. The first

provided that it should be void in case of suicide;

the second that it should be enforcible in case of

suicide; the third said nothing about suicide. He
took out a fourth policy against death by accident.

Ten years after, he committed suicide, sane. The
company defends as to each policy on the grounds;

first, that the death was not within the meaning of

its promise; second, that if it were, the promiae

was in so far void as against public policy. What
are the merits of the defences.^ How would you

answer, if A took his life intentionally, but while

so insane as not to be able to judge rationally as

to his act?

2. B, insured against bodily injury caused by

external, violent and accidental means, by wear-

ing new shoes abraded the skin of his foot and

thereby contracted blood poisoning. Discuss the

insurer's liability.

3. A tenant insured against fire a building

he had built on leased ground under an agreement

by which he was entitled to remove it the end of the

term. Just before the lease was up, the building

was destroyed by fire. Its value before the fire,

based on cost of rebuilding less depreciation, was



$iooo. But the expense of removing it or of pull-

ing it clown would have exceeded $1000, and the

landlord would not have renewed the lease or

bought the building, because he had contracted

with a future tenant to build anew. What is the

insurer's liability?

4. A steamboat company's sole business con-

sists in carrying passengers to an island amuse-

ment park owned and operated by another com-

pany. Ihe steamboat company will suffer a heavy

loss in business if the buildings of the amusement

park burn, and wishes to insure against this loss.

May it do so, and how should the policy read?

5. P was a lawyer, his brother was a banker.

P applied for policies for himself and brother in a

life insurance company, which as he knew had es-

pecially low rates for bankers. B}^ mistake he

signed in his own name the application blank he

had prepared for his brother which stated that

the applicant was a banker, and the brother signed

the other blank which stated that the applicant

was a lawyer. P's policy was issued at a lower

rate than the other in reliance on the statement

that he was a banker. In actions on the policies,

the judge told the jury that if bankers and lawyers

were equally good risks, the misstatements furnish-

ed no ground of defence, and the jury found for

the plaintiff in each case. Is there ground for re-

versal?

6. X took out insurance against burglars on

"goods contained in my brick building at No. 105



Second Street, occupied as a dwelling." X did at

that time occupy as his dwelling a house whose

outer walls were brick, but whose partitions and

roof were of wood, which had formerly been known
as No. 105 Second Street, but the street names and

numbers had recently been changed by city ordi-

nance, the house was known when the policy was

issued as No. 240 Fifth Street and there was no

building at new No. 105 Second Street. During

the currency of the policy, X went to Europe leav-

ing the house vacant and insufficiently secured so

chat burglars easily broke in and stole goods of

great value. Has he a claim under the policy?

7. An applicant for life insurance in answer

t»j a question in the application blank wrote in

good faith in the blank that his father died of ap-

pendicitis. The father really died of a bungling

operation performed in the mistaken belief that

he had appendicitis. The blank stated that the

policy would be void if any statement in the blank

was untrue. Has the insurance company a good

defence? How would you answer if instead of

the application blank saying that the policy would

be void, the policy said that the insured warranted

the truth of all statements in the application?

8. A, by falsely and fraudulently saying that

B, a stranger, was his debtor, and had consented

to have A insure his life, obtained a policy on B's

life "'incontestable after two years for any cause

whatever." After two years B died. The com-

pany defends on the grounds of misrepresenta-



tion, fraud, lack of insurable interest, and lack of

B's consent. Which, if any, of the defenses are

good?

9. A policy of fire insurance contained these

words — "It is agreed that this policy shall be

void if at the time it is issued there is other insur-

ance on the premises, that this document expresses

the whole and true agreement and that no parol

evidence shall be received to modify its terms."

The insured as the policy was handed to him said,

"This will do me no good as there is other insur-

ance," and the company thereupon said, "It will be

valid in spite of the insurance, as we waive the

clause about other insurance." Is the policy en-

forcible?

ID. C insured his life for $100,000 and paid

the premiums for some years. The policy provid-

ed that it was to become void if assigned. C as-

signed it without the assent of the company to D
who notified the company of the assignment and

paid the premiums thereafter. On C's death, the

company sets up lack of insurable interest and
breach of condition. Are the defences good?



Exatnination in Illinois Procedure.

Dean Marker.

1. A, a resident of Champaign county, brought

suit in tort in the circuit court against B, a resident

of Champaign county, and C, a resident of Macon
county. Writs directed to the sheriff of Cham-
paign county and the sheriff of Macon county,

were served and the declaration was filed ten days

before the September term, 1913. B plead to the

declaration by traverse. C did not plead and was

defaulted. Upon the application of B, the cause

was continued until the January term of court,

1914. 'On the 8th of January, atrial was had, re*

suiting in a verdict for the defendant. The evi-

dence showed that C was guilty, but that B was

not. Thereupon the attorney for A introduced

evidence as against the defaulted defendant C,

and the court rendered judgment against him. C
now moves to vacate the judgment, set aside the

default and dismiss the case.

What should be the order of the court? Why?



2. A brings suit abainst B in the circuit court

and obtains service more than ten days before the

return day. He fails to file declaration ten days

before the term of court at which the summons
was made returnable. On motion of B, the cause

is continued at the cost of A until the next term

of court. Five days before the commencement of

the next term of court, A files declaration. There
is a general rule requiring defendants in all law

cases to plead or demur to the declaration by

Tuesday of the first week. B did not plead to the

declaration, and on Wednesday a default was ta-

ken against him. On evidence heard, the court

rendered a judgment against him. Five days af-

terwards B moved court to vacate judgment, set

aside the default, and dismiss the suit.

What should be the judgment and why?

3. Draft a declaration in ejectment for John
Doe, claiming in fee against Richard Roe, for lot

4, block 2, in the Seminary addition to the city of

Urbana, Illinois.

4. Where the plaintiff has recovered judg-

ment in ejectment against the defendant, how may
he recover the value of the rents for the four or

five years during which the defendant kept him
from possession of the property?

5. Under what conditions may an unsuccess-

ful defendant in ejectment suit be compensated
for valuable inprovements placed upon lands in



question during the time which he held possession

in good faith ?

Give in their order the necessary steps to be

taken by him.

6. John Doe, the owner of Lot 4, Block 6, in

in the Scott Addition to the City of Champaign, is

indebted to James Martin in the sum of $4000 for

a stock of goods purchased. He has already

moved a part of them to the Stare of Indiana, and

is preparing to remove the balance of the goods

there, and also to take up his residence in the

State of Indiana. Draft all papers necessary to

subject the real estate mentioned and personal

property still remaining in Illinois to judgment

and execution sale.

7. How may service upon a non-resident be

obtained in a bill of equity for the partition of

lands? How may service be had upon the un-

known heirs of a deceased tenant in common with

the complainant? Under what conditions will the

court render a decree ordering a sale of the prem-

ises?

8. James Brown, the father of Thomas Brown,

a child seven years of age, desires the custody of

his child, which is now in the custody of William

Atwood, a brother of his deceased wife. The cus-

tody of the child was awarded to the wife in a de-

cree for divorce granted to her in 1Q08. The
wife died in June, 1913. Draft petition for writ of

habeas corpus.



4

g. Sta':e the distinction which is observed by

the Supreme Court of Illinois upon the question

of reviewing by writ of error the order of a judge

in vacation or a court in term time in a case where

the petitioner seeks r- lease from a criminal mitti-

mus and one where the petitioner seeks the cus-

tody of his minor child.

10. James Brown, a student in the Law De-

partment of the University of Illinois, who has at-

tended the University for the period of four years,

has paid all fees and tuition required of him and

in addition to earning 30 credits in arts and

science, has passed in all law courses amounting

to 84 credits, is denied a degree solely upon the

ground that his grades are less than 75 in sub-

jects, aggregating three-fourths of his work
The Law Faculty refuses to recommend
him for a degree, the University Senate sustains

the action of the Law Faculty and the Board of

Trustees sustains the action of the Law Faculty

and the University Senate. State your opinion as

to how he should proceed toward compelling the

conferring of the degree. What are your views

upon the subject of his being entitled to it?



Examination in Mortgages.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

February, IQ14.

L Define or describe equitable liens, showing

their points of difference from, and resemblance

to mortgages and common law liens. State three

examples of an equitable lien.

II. M mortgaged Blackacre to A on January

2 to secure $1,000 then loaned, and such loans,

not exceeding $1,000, as A might thereafter make
to M. This mortgage was recorded. On January

10 M mortgaged Blackacre to B to secure $900

then loaned. On January 20 A advanced $800 to

M under the first mortgage.

Blackacre yielded $2,200 on foreclosure.

How should this fund be distributed on the sup-

positions (i) that A had actual notice of B's

mortgage before January 20; (2) that A had no

actual notice of B's mortgage but the latter was

recorded before January 20? Reasons.

III. How will you determine the validity of

the following agreements, A being mortgagor of

Blackacre and B mortgagee? Reasons fully.

(t) An option to purchase Blackacre given by

A to B at the time of the execution of the

mortgage.



(2) A similar option given for a valuable

consideration by A to B a month later.

(3) A covenant in the mortgage restricting

A in his use of Blackacre.

IV. Smith conveyed a tract to Jones January

2 but the deed was not recorded until April i.

Meanwhile Smith conveyed the same tract to

Brown on February i. Brown took with actual

notice of Jone's deed, but went into possession

and recorded his deed on March i. On May i

Brown sold and conveyed the tract to White.

Which has the better title, Jones or White?

Discuss.

V. A mortgaged a tract to B for $2,500; the

mortgage was recorded. Subsequently A sold the

tract in five lots, at different dales, in the order i,

2, 3, 4, 5. to P, Q, R, S and T, respectively. Lot

1 was sold to P "subject to" the mortgage; in the

deed of lot 3 R "assumed payment" of the

mortgage debt; the other lots were sold with

warranty against incumbrances. B, with notice of

these sales, released lot 4 from the mortgage.

Each lot is worth $600. A and R being insolvent

how should the burden of the mortgage be ap-

portioned among these lots? Reasons.

VI. Smith mortgaged Blackacre and White-

acre to A by one instrument; this mortgage was

recorded. Smith afterwards mortgaged Black-

acre to B; this mortgage was also recorded.

Later Smith mortgaged Whiteacrc to C. Black-

acre is insufficient to i^ay the first two mortgages;



Blackacre and Whiteacre together are insufficieiit

to pay all three mortgages.

What are the rights of B and C? Discuss.

Suppose Smith had mortgaged the two lots to .\

at one time but by separate instruments?

VII. Smith made a mortgage of land to Jones

to secure two notes; one for $1,500, falling due

June I, 1913; the other for $1,000, falling due

September i, 1913, On March i, 1913, Jones as-

signed the $1,000 note to Brown; on May t, 1913,

Jones assigned the $1,500 note to White. The
land sold on foreclosure for $2,000.

State, with reasons, three ways in which the

fund may be disiributed. Which is the Illinois

rule?

VIII. Smith iuade a mortgage of three lots

to Jones; the mort age was recorded. Later,

Smith leased the three lots to A, B, and C, respec-

tively. On January 15, the mortgage debt being

payable, Jones served notice on A and B to pay

to him the rents falling due on February i; but

served no notice on C. On February i Smith

demanded the rent from A and B. A paid his

rent to Jones. B refused to pay to Jones but

paid to Smith. Smith now sues A for his rent.

Jones sues B for his rent and C in ejectment.

What results? Reasons.

IX. A, owing B $5,000, evidenced by a prom-

issory note, on January 2, 1900, executed and de-

livered to B a deed to Blackacre which was then
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worth $9000; at the same time B surrendered the

note to A. The deed covenanted that if at any-

time within five years A should pay to B S5.000

with interest from January 2, iqoo, B would recon-

vey the land to A. A remained in possession and

in receipt of tlie rents and profits. On January 2,

1905, the land having sunk in value to $5,000, B

demanded payment of that sum with interest from

A, and on his refusal began suit to foreclose, as-

serting that the transaction of January 2, 1905, was

a mortgage. This A denies. On what does the

question depend and what is the bearing on the

question of each of the facts herein mentioned?

X. Brown, having macie a mortgage of three

lots of equal value to Black for ^3,000, sold two of

the lots to Gray, who assumed two-thirds of the

mortgage debt. The mortgage being now due.

Brown desires to have the mortgage released from

his lot on payment of $[,000 with interest. Black

refuses to do this and Gray declines to contribute

his share. How shall Brown proceed?



Examination in Partnership.

PROFESSOR HALE.

First Semester 1913-14.

(Give reasons for every answer.)

1. A was engaged in the wholesale machin-

ery business. He became acquainted with B, an

expert travelling salesman who had been working

for a rival house, and made B the following offer,

viz.: "If you will come and work with me and let

me have $5000 with which to do some extensive

advertising, I will give you exclusive charge of the

selling part of the business, advance you $200 per

month to live on and give you 20 per cent of the

net profits of the business at the end of the year."

A said further, "If business keeps up as it has

your share will amount to at least $10,000." B ac-

cepted the offer. For two years the business pros-

pered. The third year, during a financial panic,

the business failed. X, a creditor, sued A and B
as partners. What judgment? Why?

2. Twenty citizens of the town of X purchas-

ed all of the stock of the X company, a supposed

corporation. P, a creditor of the X company,

files an action against all of the holders of the

stock as partners, alleging among other things

that the organizers of the company had failed in

two important particulars to comply with provis-

ions of the statute relating to the formations of



corporations. The defendants demurrer to the

declaration. What judgment?

3. (a) State the law as to the liability of a

married woman who enters into partnership with

her husband; with a stranger. Give reasons, (b)

What are the rights and liabilities of an infant

who forms a partnership with an adult?

4. (a) What events ipso facto work a dis-

solution of a partnership? (b) A and B enter in-

to a partnership agreement to continue for three

years. Under what circumstances may A secure

a dissolution of the firm before the expiration of

the three years?

5. (a) A petition alleged a co-partnership

agreement between plaintiff and defendant; that

prior to this agreement defendant and one X had

been co-partners; that on X's death defendant

represented that he could procure the interest of

deceased (X) at what it had cost X; that he rep-

resented to plaintiff that it cost $2,000 and plain-

tiff paid defendant this amount; that this was $500

in excess of the amount paid by defendant for

X's interest. Plaintiff prayed judgment against

defendant for this excess. Defendant demurred
on the ground that the court of law had no juris-

diction. What judgment? Why?

(b) /\, B and C, as partners, were engaged

in the wholesale meat business. A, B and X, as

partners, were in the retail meat business. The
wholesale firm sold meat to the retail firm to the



amount of $i,ooo. This bill has not been paid

How can the creditor firm enforce payment of

this claim? Is the creditor firm entitled, at all

events, to the entire $1,000?

6. A and B made an oral agreement for a

partnership to carry on the business of buying and

selling real estate. A owned at the time lot i and

B owned lot 2. It was agreed that these should

constitute part of the capital of the firm. There-

after A bought lot 3 and agreed that it should also

be contributed to the firm. In addition A and B

each put $1,000 in cash into the firm treasury.

With a portion of this lot 4 was purchased; the

deed being taken in the name of B.

In a controversy between creditors of A and

B as partners and individual creditors of A and B,

which will prevail as to the property in question?

7. (a) A and B are partners in the grocery

business. A borrows $500 from the X bank, signs

a note for the amount in the firm name and ab-

sconds. When the note is due the bank sues A
and B as partners. Has B any defense?

(b) A and B are in partnership. A dies,

(i) What effect will a promise by B to pay a firm

debt, against which the Statute of Limitations has

run, have upon the liability of the firm assets and

the estate of A for the amount of the debt? (2)

What effect does an admission by the surviving

partners have as to the existence and amount of a

firm debt?



8. A, B and C were in partnership in the

cattle business and owned 500 head of cattle. The
firm was indebted to K in the sum ot $500. A
sold his interest to B. Thereafter B sold to X.

Then C sold to Y. Subsequent to the sale by C,

K sued A, B and C and attached some of the

cattle. X and Y now sue in replevin for the

cattle thus seized, (i) What judgment? Why?
(2) Would the result be the same if the attach-

ment had been levied prior to the sale by C?



Examination in Personal Property.

(Cover all points involved and give reasons fully.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

1. A stole B's watch. A lost the watch in

C's store. D, a clerk, found it and turned it over

to C. C hid the watch in a secret drawer of his

desk and told D that the watch had been claimed

by the owner. C died and his effects were sold at

auction. E bought the desk and all contents. F,

in repairing the desk, discovered the watch. The
watch is claimed by D, E, F and C's administrator.

In the absence of claim by the owner, who is

entitled to it?

2. The statute of limitations in the State of

X provides that the right to recover personal

property or its value shall be barred unless suit is

brought within five years. A stole B s horse, (a)

After keeping the horse for five years A moved to

the State of Y where the period of limitation is

six years. What are B's rights in an action of

replevin brought within six years in the State of Y?
(b) Assume that after A kept the horse five years

in the State of X the statute of limitations was

repealed. Should B succeed in an action of re-

plevin against A in the State of X? (c) Assume
that A, after keeping the horse for five years in

the State of X, gives B a writing waiving the

benefit of the statute but later refused to give up



the horse on demand. Should B succeed in an

action of replevin atjainst A in the State of X ?

3. A stole B's cow. Assume that the period

of limitation is hvc years.

(a) Assume that the cow gave birth to a calf

at the end of two years. After the lapse of six

years B brought replevin for the cow and the calf.

What judgment? (b) Assume that A sold the

cow and calf to C after the birth of the calf.

Should B be permitted to replevy the cow and calf

six years after the original theft? (c) Assume
that A, after stealing the cow, concealed it in a

hidden enclosure in the woods on a remote farm

and that B, though making diligent search, first

discovered it at the end of six years when he re-

took it. Should A be permitted to replevy the

cow of B?

4. A converted B's automobile. B sued A in

trover and obtained a judgment for $1,000.

(a) Assume that A then sold the automobile

to C for $1,500. May B replevy the automobile of

C? (b) Assume that B, after obtaining his judg-

ment against A for $1,000. peaceably retook the

lutomobile. May A recover the automobile or

its value, either before or after he satisfies the

judgment? (c) May B, after obtaining his judg-

ment against A in trover, recover his automobile

in replevin ?

5. (a) A, with many helpers, was hunting

deer upon public land. He succeeded in driving



fifteen deer into a large trap enclosed on three

sides. A and his helpers were preparing to en-

close the gap on the fourth side with the intention

of capturing the deer alive when B, another

hunter, Hred, killing three of the deer and causing

six more to rush from the trap. B carried away

the deer he had killed over the protest of A.

What are A's rights against B?

(b) A was hunting on B's land by B's per-

mission. He had been forbidden to hunt on C's

farm adjoining. A started a rabbit on B's land,

followed it onto C's land and killed it there. C
picked up the rabbit before A reached it. Who is

entitled to the rabbit?

6. A, knowing he had no right to do so

felled on B's land timber worth $200. A cut the

trees into logs, hauled them to his mill and made
them into lumber worth $400. C bought this

lumber in good faith and made it into fine fur-

niture worth $6,000. What are B's rights against

A and C? Discuss fully.

7. A, a traveling salesman for B, was in the

possession of two cases of jewelry samples belong-

ing to B. B, for good cause, discharged A by

letter and instructed him to return the samples at

once by express. Instead of doing so A went to

Chicago and put up at C's hotel incurring a bill of

$150. A, with C's permission, removed a dozen

fine watches from one of the sample cases and

pledged them to D for a loan of $200. A then

disappeared. B demanded the two sample cases



of C and the watches of D. D refused. C con-

sented to give up one sample case. C then dis-

covered that the remaining case contained less

than he had thought and demanded that D give

up the twelve watches held on pledge. D also re-

fused this demand. Discuss the rights of B, C
and D.

8. A, a wilful trespasser, cut logs on B's land

and mixed them with logs on his own land. The
logs were of the same kind and approximately of

equal value, log for log. B discovered the mixed
pile of logs but was unable to say how many be-

longed to him. He realized, however, that not all

the logs belonged to him. What portion should B
be permitted to seize? What are A's rights, if any?

If A has any rights how should he proceed to pro-

tect them?



Examination in Torts.

PROFESSOR HALE.

First Semester 1Q13-14.

(Give reasons for every answer.)

1. A called B up over the telephone and

falsely told her that her house was on fire. B fled

immediately in terror and, as a result of the ex-

citement, suffered a nervous collapse and was ill

for several weeks.

B sues A for the injury sustained, claiming to

recover in the first count of her declaration as for

an assault and in the second count of her declara-

tion for a trespass upon the case. .\ demurrers to

both counts. Should the demurrer be sustained

or overruled as to either or both counts?

2. A went to B, a dentist, to have his teeth

examined and to have such of them cared for as

might need attention. B falsely told A that a cer-

tain tooth was badly decayed and should be ex-

tracted. A instructed B to proceed and B there-

upon extracted the tooth in question. A learned

later that the tooth was sound and sued B for bat-

tery. What judgment? Why?

3. (a) In what different ways (in general)

may a person be imprisoned?

(b) A, the custodian of the Law Library (in

this building) locked the door when he left for the

dinner hour. B was in the consultation room, but



A did not know that anyone was there. B sues A
for false imprisonment. What judgment? Why?

4. A clipped a button from an overcoat,which

B was wearing, and threw it into the fire. B at

the time was standing on his own land and A
reached over the fence in order to accomplish his

purpose. What remedy or remedies, if more than

one, has B against A?

5. A hired a horse from B to ride to a neigh-

boring town After leaving B's stable, A changed

his mind and hitched the horse to a buggy and

drove to the place in question. This change was

made witr.out B's knowledge. The horse was in

no respect damaged. Upon A's return B refused

to take the horse back and sued A for conver-

sion.

What judgment?

6. B stole a horse from A and sold it to C, an

innocent purchaser. C, in turn, while ignorant of

B's theft, pledged the horse to D who was also

ignorant of the theft.

What are A's rights against B?

Against C? Against D?

7. (a) A, a servant girl, applied to B for a

position. B inquired of X, a former employer of

A, as to whether A was a desirable servant. X
replied that A was immoral. A sues X for slan-

der. What different possible defenses may be
open to X? Explain fully.



(b) What is the liability of a judge for false

defamatory statements?

(c) What is the liability of a witness for false

defamatory statements made in the course of a

trial?

8 (a) What must the plaintiff allege and

prove in order to recover in an action for malic-

ious prosecution?

(b) A and B were political rivals. X came to

A and told him that B had attempted to buy his,

X's, vote in a previous election. A, in order to

bring about B's defeat in the pending election,

lodged a complaint against B with the State's at-

torney. The matter was laid before the grand

jury, but that body refused to indict B. B then

•«ued A for malicious prosecution. What judg-

ment.^ Why.^





Examination in Wills.

February, 1914.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

1. (a) Define undue influence.

(b) Discuss presumption ot invalidity of

legacy to a person occupying a fiduciary relation

to testator.

2. Ii: which of the following cases is the will

revoked? A throws his will into the fire with in-

tent to destroy it, but only a corner, on which

there is no writing, is scorched. B throws his will,

inclosed in an envelope, into the fire, with intent

to destroy the will, but only the envelope is

scorched. C throws his will into the fire but

changes his mind and pulls the document out be-

fore it is so far burned as to be illegible. D, a

widower, makes a will in favor of his children,

then marries, and dies after his second wife, leav-

ing no issue by her. Reasons in each case. If Illi-

nois law differs from common law, state both.

3. (a) Give, in substance, the Illinois stat-

ute relating to the survival of causes of action.

(b) Give an example of a cause of action

other than slander or libel, which does not survive

on the death of the defendant. (Illinois Law)

Reasons.



4. T's will read: 'I give my house in Urbana

to A, the furniture in my house to B, $5000 to C,

$5000 payable out of my Illinois Central Stock to

D, and the residue of my real and personal prop-

erty to E." The inventory of T's estate showed

that it consisted of a house in Urbana, worth $10,-

000, furniture therein worth $5000, lots in Cham-
paign worth $10,000 and Illinois Central stock

worth $15,000. How shall the estate be distribut-

ed if the debts and expenses of administration are

$10,000? If they are $15,000? Reasons.

5. T's will read. *'I give A $15,000 from my
Illinois Central stock, B my house in Urbana, C
$5,000, and the residue of my personal property

to D. A was T's mother, B a sister, and D the

only son of a deceased brother: T left no widow
or other near relative. The inventory of the es-

tate showed that it consisted of the house in Ur-

bana, worth $20,000 but subject to a $10,000 mort-

gage of which T assumed payment when he

bought the premises; lots in Champaign worth

$20,000, Illinois Central stock worth $10,000, and

cash amounting to $20,000. How should the es-

tate be distributed if there are no debts other than

the mortgage? If such debts are $20,000?

6. Testator made a will in 1913 and a second

will, revoking the first, in 1914. In June 1915 a

statute went into effect declaring that the destruc-

tion of a revoking will should not have the effect

of reviving an earlier will. In July 1915 testator

destroyed the second will. It is proved that he



had never heard Oi the statulc ot June, 1Q15, and

that he wished his will of 1913 to stand. Should

the first will be probated, ot the second, or both,

or neither? Reas<^iis

7. Mention two respects in which a gift

causa moTtis differs, in its requisites or effects from

a gift inte}' vivos; an<l rwo respects other than its

being oral in which ir differs from a will.

8. What is the effect, under Illinois statutes,

where one of the two witnesses of A's will is (a) a

legatee under •'he will, who would be an heir of A
if A had died intestate; (b) A's wife; (c) the wife

of the person named in the will as executor.

Reasons in each case.
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Examination in Carriers.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

I. A university which had built a new library building

contracted orally with a drayman who was accustomed to take

business from any one who applied for his services to move the

books from the old to the new building, a distance of a quarter

of a mile, at a dollar a wagon load, the books to be taken from

the shelves of the old and deposited on the floor of the new

building, and the drayman not to be liable for negligence

of his servants. By negligence of his servants in driving a

wagon, books in the wagon were damaged. Is the drayman

liable?

II. A common carrier was known to have a lower rate

for cotton goods than for lace. A shipper of a box of lace

handkerchiefs, fraudulently obtained the lower rate by saying

it was a box of cotton handkerchiefs. The handkerchiefs

were destroyed in transit by fire without the carrier's fault, and

would have been destroyed in the same way if the carrier had

known they were lace. The freight had not been paid. What

is the carrier's liability.

III. A common carrier by steamboat between St. Louis

and New Orleans and intermediate points received goods at

St. Louis to be carried to Memphis and there delivered "with

liberty to call at any ports in any order." The captain on this

occasion, did not call at Memphis on the way down, but at New
Orleans set the goods apart to be landed at Memphis on the
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way back. But on the way back the boat was struck by

lightning and burned with all her cargo. Is the carrier liable?

IV. A contracted to sell and ship to B 400 full weight

bales of cotton. He induced a compress company to divide

200 bales and make them into 400 bales, apparently of full

but really of half weight, and to certify them as full weight. He

then shipped them to B under the contract, tendering to the

carrier for signature a bill of lading to A's order for 400 full

weight bales. The carrier signed the bill, reasonably relying

on A's statement, the certificate and the appearance of the

bales, but it could have weighed the bales and then would have

found out the truth. A sent the bill of lading to B, who paid

the contract price in reliance upon it, and received the cotton.

What are B's rights against the carrier?

V. A lost a wallet marked with his name and address

which contained a large sum of money. B found it, wrapped

it up, addressed the package to A, marked it "collect," and de-

livered it to an express company. A few minutes later, he de-

termined to try to get it back and keep it, so he induced the ex-

press company to re-deliver it to him by telling them he had

given them the wrong package by mistake. As B was well

known and of good repute, they had no reason to doubt his

word. B kept the money. Is the express company liable to A

in contract? In tort?

How would you answer if the express company had given

B a bill of lading by which they undertook to deliver the pack-

age to B's order, and B had surrendered the bill of lading unin-

dorsed?
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VI. While the Wabash railroad was operated by receiv-

ers, A, at St. Louis, entered a Wabash train for Danville, with a

train ticket for Danville and a Pullman ticket for Berth 12. He

showed both tickets to the Pullman and train conductors as he

entered to make sure that he was on the right car and train.

When the conductors came to collect the tickets, A could not

find them, and to avoid being ejected from the train by the

train conductor and from the Pullman by the Pullman con-

ductor, he had to pay cash for his fare and berth. Has he a

cause of action, for what and against whom?

VII. X, an Illinois student, was a son of Y, a

well known Chicago financier. A, employed by the express

company at Champaign, went to Chicago, and by telling a

dealer who had heard of Y but not of X, that he was X, the

son of Y, induced the dealer to send on credit a hundred dol-

lars worth of goods to Champaign addressed to X. A returned

to Champaign, called up Y by telephone, imitating X's style of

speech, said he was X and asked Y to send him a hundred dol-

lars in bills by express to get him out of a scrape. Y, suppos-

ing he had talked with his son, sent the money by express ad-

dressed to X. A intercepted the goods and the money as they

came to his hands in the course of his employment with the ex-

press company, and appropriated them to his own use. Is the

express company liable; if so, to whom, and in what form of

action ?

VI II. A horse was shipped by railroad from Chicago to

St. Louis under a bill of lading which said: "It is agreed that the

value of the horse is $200." The horse was worth $300 and

was killed by the negligence of the railroad's employees. What
is the railroad's liability?
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IX. state briefly the law of Illinois, before and after the

passage of the uniform bills of lading act, as to the evidence

necessary to prove the shipper's assent to stipulations in a

common carrier's bill of lading exempting him from loss by fire.

X. In 1914, the Illinois Central railroad company issued

a bill of lading for goods shipped from Chicago to Champaign

which contained this provision: "The shipper is hereby noti-

fied that the carrier will not be liable for more than ^50, un-

less the value of the goods is stated." The shipper read the

bill of lading and put it in his pocket saying nothing. The

goods worth $100, were destroyed by fire without fault. What

is the railroad's liability?



Examination in Common Law Pleading.

DEAN HARKER.

I. Name and define each of the actions "excontractu,"

and each of the actions "ex delicto."

II. A, finding B's horse running at large, took, posses-

sion of the animal and published notice of the fact. Unable to

ascertain the owner through that means, he sold the horse

to C and spent the money. Mention all the remedies open to B.

III. To A's declaration in case for slander, B, the de-

fendant has filed a plea of not guilty and also plead by con-

fession and avoidance matter obnoxious to a demurrer. Upon

the argument of the demurrer, B points out that the declara-

tion is substantially defective and asks that the demurrer be

carried back to the declaration. What should be the ruling

of the court? Why.?

IV. A, while a passenger on a railroad train, was in-

jured by a flying stone from the right of way where a con-

tractor was engaged in blasting and removing rock, for the

railroad company. To recover damages for his injury he be-

gan suit against the company and the contractor. In the first

count of his declaration he declared against the two defendants

jointly, in the second against the company alone, and in the

third against the contractor alone. To the declaration the de-

fendant demurred and urged a misjoinder of counts, but the
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court overruled the demurrer. Express your views as to the

correctness of the ruling.

V. After the court in the case stated in question IV

had overruled the demurrer the defendants plead not guilty,

and a trial was had before a jury. At the conclusion of the

plaintitf' s evidence, the defendants moved for a nonsuit be-

cause of misjoinder of counts. But the court overruled the

motion and the defendants, standing upon their motion and

declining to introduce evidence, a verdict was rendered against

them for $3,000. They now move in arrest of judgment.

State your views as to what should be the ruling of the court.

VI. To the plaintit^'s declaration in assumpsit to re-

cover for the violation of a building contract, the defendant

in one plea set up as a bar the Statute of Limitations and also

the defense that the contract had been cancelled by mutual

agreement. To the plea the plaintiff replied to the cancella-

tion by confession and avoidance. The matt«»r set up in the

replication was subject to general demurrer and for that rea-

son the defendant demurred. Upon the argument, the

plaintiti asked that the demurrer be carried back to the special

plea. Was the special plea subject to demurrer and what

should the court do with reference to carrying the demurrer

interposed to the replication back to the plea?

VII. James Brown executed his bond in the sum of

$5,000, with Walter Jones and Eli Smith as securities, con-

dition for his faithful performance as collector of notes belong-

ing to the Singer Sewing Machine Company, a corporation.

Draft a declaration in debt to the September Term, 1914, of
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the Circuit Court of Champaign county to recover $2,000 for

collections made by Brown and embezzled.

VIII. State the methods whereby a special finding of

a jury may be obtained.

IX. Under what conditions may a valid judgment be en-

tered against a general verdict where special findings have

been rendered?

X. State the difference between a motion for a new trial

and a motion in arrest of judgment.



Examination in Conflict of Laws.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

I. King, an attorney, was a native of Illinois and prac-

ticed his profession at Peoria. He was advised by his physician

that he could not expect to live long if he continued in this

climate. He thereupon closed his practice, stored his house-

hold goods, and went with his wife and infant son to Colorado,

expecting to stay there permanently if the climate agreed with

him and he could find a suitable professional opening. They

spent several months at different resorts and finally took a

rented house in Denver for the winter. He also formed a part-

nership with a Denver attorney and resumed the practice of

his profession, but with the understanding that he was to be

free to quit at any time if he found the altitude did not agree

with him. The next spring he had a bad hemorrhage of the

lungs and decided to go to southern California, where he ex-

pected to make a permanent home. He died en route in the

state of Nevada. He left real property in Illinois, and also a

considerable personal estate. There was no will.

Assuming that the laws of inheritance and distribution of

all of the states named differed as to the respective shares and

interests in both real and personal property of the widow and

children of a person dying intestate, by the law of which state

should the rights of Mrs. King and her son to King's estate be

determined?

II. Hicks sued the C. & N. W. R. R. Co. in Wisconsin

for damages to limber on his land in Michigan, alleged to have
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U'en caused b}' a fire due to sparks from one of the defendant':-

locomotives. By the law of Michigan, proof that the fire origi-

nated within 100 feet of the right of way of a railroad is prima

facie proof that the fire was caused by sparks. In Wisconsin

there was no such law. Plaintiff proved his ownership of the

land, the fact of the fire and that it originated within 100 feet

from defendant's right of way, the damage done and then of-

fered to prove the Michigan statute.

(a) How may it be proven, if admissible?

(b) Is it admissible if proper objections are made?

(c) Should a plea to the jurisdiction of the court in this

case be upheld?

III. B sues A in New York to recover one-half of the

amount of a judgment recovered and collected by A, as attor-

ney for B, in a suit against X, also in New York. A had paid

over to B one-half of the amount recovered, but kept the rest

as his fee. A defends by proving a contract between himself

and B, made in Maine, by which B had agreed with A, in con-

sideration of A's agreement to prosecute the suit against X,

that A should retain half of the proceeds if successful. B re-

buts by proving a statute of Maine providing "that any person

agreeing to prosecute or defend a suit at law or in equity up-

on shares" should be criminally punished. In New York such

a contract could be lawfully made.

Decide the case.

IV. Mrs. Smith is prosecuted for bigamy in Illinois, on

a charge that she married Smith in Chicago, while already

the lawful wife of Jones. The latter also lives in Chicago,

where the defendant resided with him until she went to Ne-
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vada, as hereafter related. The defendant offers in evidence

the record of a divorce proceeding brought by her against

Jones in Nevada, which record contained the bill, alleging

residence in Nevada for six months (the statutory period), and

acts of extreme cruelty committed by Jones against her in Illi-

nois; a return of service by publication for which proper foun-

dation had been laid; findings of fact in favor of the plaintiff

and a decree of absolute divorce based thereon.

Would it be error for the Illinois Court to exclude this

record provided the following facts in addition to the foregoing

were proven

:

(a) That the defendant did not leave her husband in Il-

linois until only three months before the filing of the bill in

Nevada?

(b) That the defendant had actually resided in Nevada

for six months before filing her bill, but left immediately after

obtaining the decree, returned to Chicago and married Smith

in accordance with an agreement between her and Smith made

before she went to Nevada?

(c) That the defendant left Jones for a good cause, went

to Nevada with a bona fide intent to make it her home, and

had resided there for two years after the decree was obtained

before she met Smith?

After answering the above, note which, if any, of your

answers would be modified if the record had shown that Jones

had filed a personal appearance in the divorce suit.

V. A Missouri statute gives a right of action for death

and aulliorizes the recovery of punitive in addition to compen-

satory damages, with no limit. Kansas has a similar statute but
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limits the recovery to $5,000 and is silent as to punitive dam-

ages. By the common law of Kansas, punitive damages can-

not be recovered in any case. In Missouri the administrator

is to sue for the benefit of the widow; in Kansas the widow may

sue in her own name. X is killed in Missouri by the negligence

of the defendant and under circumstances making punitive

damages recoverable under the rulings of the Missouri courts.

Will an action lie in Kansas and if so, by whom and how much

c?d^ be recovered?

VI. X, an agent of Y, sent a telegram from Dubuque,

Iowa, to Y at St. Louis, Mo., stating that he had an offer of

$1,300 for a lot belonging to Y and asking if he should sell.

As delivered to Y, the telegram read $1,900, instead of $1,300,

and Y immediately wired X to sell. The latter, having a power

of attorney from Y, sold for $1,300 and executed a deed to

the purchaser. Y sues the telegraph company and it pleads

a term of the contract to the effect that it should not be liable

for mistakes in unrepeated messages, this term having been

printed on the blank used by X in sending the first message. X

offers to show in evidence that by the law of Iowa, this stipu-

lation is void as to mistakes due to negligence. The suit is in

Missouri, whose courts hold such stipulations valid. Is the evi-

dence competent and material?

Vli. Fairbanks, a citizen of Ohio, sued the 111. Cent. R.

R. Co., an Illinois corporation, in New York city for $1,000

claimed as attorney fees, and obtained service on Brown,

treasurer of the company, who was in New York to attend the

grand opera. The New York law authorized service on foreign

corporations by service on any officer thereof within the state.

Mason, a Chicago merchant, in the city to buy goods, was also
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served as garnishee defendant, and appeared and disclosed an

indebtedness to the railroad of $500 for freight. The railroad

did not appear and judgment against it was taken by default for

$1,000. Judgment was also rendered against Mason for $500,

which he paid.

(a) If Fairbanks sues the railroad in Illinois for the bal-

ance of the judgment against it, has the company a good de-

fense ?

(b) If the railroad sues Mason in Illinois, for the freight,

has he a good defense?

Vlll. A made in New York a contract in writing with B

to sell and deliver to B in France certain goods. C later in

consideration of this agreement promised B in N. Y. by parole

to be surety for performance by A. A failed to perform. B

sues C in Massachusetts, getting proper service. Both contracts

provide that their terms and validity shall be settled by the law

of Fiance. At the trial the following facts were admitted: That

by the law of France, past consideration such as that in this

cause is sufficient, but not by the law of N. Y. or Mass.: That

the statute of frauds applying to contracts of suretyship is in

force in both N. Y. and Mass., but in the former such contracts

are declared to be void, if not in writing, while in Mass. the

statute says, "No action shall be brought:" in France such con-

tracts are good though oral; that by N. Y. law a surety need

not be requested to perform, but by French law he must be.

Upon these facts C moves for a non-suit on the grouds.

(a) That there is no contract shown.

(b) That the contract, if any, is unenforceable because

oral.



13

(c) That the action is prematurely brought, no request

for performance by C having been shown.

Should the non-suit be granted on any or all of the above

grounds?
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Examination in Contracts.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

I. A, B and C made a note to X reading, "We promise to

pay."

(a) Suppose A dies and M is appointed his administrator.

Will an action lie, if proper defenses are made against M, B

and C? Against B and C? Against M alone?

(b) Suppose X, before A's death, had executed a release

to A from all liability on the note, but reserving his rights and

remedies against and C. He later sues B and C. Have they

any defense?

II. The Wabash R. R. Co. was under contract with the

Globe Baggage Co. to give it, in consideration for a cash pay-

ment to be made yearly in advance, the exclusive right to so-

licit patronage from passengers on its trains coming into Chi-

cago, and among other things agreed to carry the solocitors of

the baggage company of whom Smith was one, to and from

suburban points free of charge.

(a) Suppose a conductor, in violation of the contract,

put Smith otT a train, because he refused to pay fare. Has

Smith a cause of action against the railroad?

(b) Suppose that prior to this incident, the Globe com-

pany had sold its business to the Parmelee Co., a rival concern,

including all contracts with the railroads, that the Parmelee

Company was continuing the business without knowledge of

the railroad company, and had continued Smith in its employ.

Would the Parmelee company have a cause of action?
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III. Is either of the following promises enforceable if

made orally and assuming that the act requested is performed?

(a) Brown calls a doctor to attend an unconscious man

who has been struck by an automobile in front of Brown's resi-

dence, telling the doctor: "Do what you can for him and I will

pay you if he does not."

(b) Kraft tells Hill that if the latter will tear up a note

which he holds against Kraft's son, he (Kraft) will pay Hill

the amount of the debt as soon as he is able.

IV. Assuming that the promise stated in III (b) is made

in proper form, what allegations must Hill make in a suit

thereon, and what proof must he offer, to entitle him to re-

cover thereon?

V. Jones, of Champaign, 111., was appointed Minister to

Brazil. Before leaving he called on White, a local real estate

dealer, and informed White that he expected to be away for

three or four years at least, and wanted some one to look af-

ter the renting of his residence while he was away and to sell

it, if possible. It was finally agreed between them that during

Jones' absence White was to have the exclusive renting and

sale of the property, for which he was to receive certain com-

missions, and in further consideraton. White agreed to look af-

ter the property, see that it was kept in repair, lawn and

grounds kept up, etc., so long as it remained unsold. White

made a memorandum of this agreement in the presence of

Jones.

(a) Suppose that two years later Jones sold the property

to Brown through another agent and wrote White a letter in-

forming him of the fact, and asking him for a final settlement
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of the rents "in accordance with our agreement." If White

sues Jones for a breach of his contract would the Statute of

Frauds be a good defense?

(b) Suppose White had sold the property to Brown and

signed a written contract with him as agent for Jones. Would

this contract bind Jones?

VI. (a) Give a short outline of the development of the

law oi assignment of choses in action from early common law

down to the present day in Illinois.

(b) R gave S a check for $1,000 on the M bank, at

which R had a deposit of $5,000. Before S presented the

check, R died and T was appointed his administrator, R's es-

tate is insolvent. The bank files a bill of interpleader against

S and T to ascertain which of them is entitled to the amount

of the check. Decide the case.

VII. On January 15, 1913, X ordered from Y, a manu-

facturer of fireworks, a bill of its goods amounting to $500, de-

liverable by June 15, payment 30 days after delivery. Y im-

mediately accepted the offer. On May 1, the city council of

X's city passed a "sane Fourth" ordinance, prohibiting the use

of fireworks or the sale of the same within the city. On May

2, X, who was a retailer, countermanded his order. Is this a

breach of contract?

VIII. Suppose the same facts as in question VII, except

that no ordinance was passed. Also that Y refused to accept

the countermand and shipped the goods to X, who refused to

take them from the freight house, and they were eventually

sold by the railroad for the amount of the freight bill.



17

(a) What remedy, if any, has Y against X?

(b) What is the earliest date that an action would lie?

IX. French agreed to build a house for Green for

$5,000, to be paid in five installments of $1,000 each, the

fhst three at stated intervals during construction, the fourth on

completion of the house and the fifth three months later. Each

payment was to be made only on the presentation of a certi-

cate of "the architect," stating that the work was "properly

done in strict accordance with the drawings and specifications,"

and "that he considers the payments properly due." The first

three payments were made without objection on simple ordeds

from Jones, the supervising architect. When the house was

completed, Jones gave a certificate in accordance with the con-

tract and Green made the fourth payment. Two weeks later

Jones was killed. Green moved into the house and began to

notice defects in the interior finish. He called in Smith, anoth-

er architect, who examined the house and found defects which

he estimated would cost $300 to correct according to con-

tact. When the fifth payment came due, Green refused to pay

until French obtained a certificate from Smith, and Smith re-

fused a certificate until the defects were corrected. French im-

mediately sued Green.

At the trial Green's attorney contended that Green was

not bound to pay until a certificate in accordance with the con-

tract was produced.

French's attorney contended (a) that the certificate of

Jones when the house was completed sufficiently complied

with the contract; (b) that if not, then he was excused from

getting a further certificate by reason of the death of Jones;
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and (c) that in any event he was entitled to recover with de-

ductions for the cost of repairing the defects.

Give judgment.

X. A, an army contractor, made a contract with B for

100 tons of hay at $15 a ton to be delivered the following

month. B had no hay on hand at the time, but could have

bought it to fill the contract at $12 per ton from surrounding

farmers, had not A, who needed more hay, placed similar or-

ders with C, D and E. The supply of hay in the locality be-

ing limited, B could not fill his contract without paying $24

a ton on account of the competition of C, D anc^ E. A knew,

when he made these contracts, of their probable effect, but his

object was to get hay which he needed. B refused to fulfill his

contract and sued A, who brought a cross action against B.

How should these actions be decided?
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Examination in Domestic Relations.

(In answering questions state common law rule first, and

then indicate any change under Illinois or other modern

statutes. Give reasons fully in all cases.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

1. M promised to marry F. In a suit for breach of

promise he olfered the following defenses:

(a) Th?t he was married to W at the time of the

promise and suit.

(b) That F was afflicted with consumption in an incura-

ble form at the time of the promise. M, however, admits

that he knew of this.

(c) That the promise was oral.

(d) That he declared his love for F in the presence of

her mother and obtained her mother's consent, but that F re-

mained silent.

Under what circumstances, if any, are these defenses

good?

11. In which, if any, of the following cases will a court

annul a marriage on account of fraud?

(a) The woman represents that she has always been

chaste, whereas she was in fact a prostitute.

(b) The woman falsely states that she has no divorced

husband living and the man belongs to a church by whose

tenets such a marriage is forbidden and declared invalid.
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(c) The woman falsely states that she is pregnant by

her future husband.

(d) The woman falsely states that she has not had an

attack of epilepsy for eight years.

III. (a) A father sent his sixteen year old son to a

neighboring town to go to school. The son soon left school

without his father's knowledge and obtained employment in

D's factory. He received $100 in wages, gave receipts for

same and spent the money. The father on learning the facts

nied D for the wages. Should he recover?

(b) The son then refused to go to school. The father

told him he must either go to school or shift for himself. The

son unable to earn enough money to feed, clothe and shelter

himself, incurred a bill of $25 for clothes and $40 for board,

which he had charged to his father. Is the father liable?

IV. Plaintiff W, married H. Defendant D, a former

sweetheart of the husband, H, actively sought to alienate H's

affections. D finally induced H to abandon W. Thereafter

D and H lived together in adultery. W brought two suits

against D, (1) for alienation of affections; (2) for criminal

conversation. May she maintain either action?

V. H sued W for divorce under a statute allowing a di-

vorce for "wilful desertion without reasonable cause for two

years," Should H be granted a decree if

—

(a) W deserted H and after remaining away one year

became insane and was then confined in an asylum for two

more years?
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(b) H and W lived in England and W refused to ac-

company H when he emigrated to America?

(c) W refused to speak to H for three years or occupy

the same room with him?

VI. H and W finding that it was impossible to live to-

gether in harmony, entered into a separation agreement, by

which they agreed to live apart and H "in consideration of the

foregoing agreement" agreed to pay W $5o per month, as

long as W lived free from such misconduct as would justify

a divorce. H paid this sum for two years and then refused

until payments for six months were in arrears. May W re-

cover the money due under the agreement?

VII. (a) D's ten year old son threw a stone through

plaintiflf's window, damaging the window to the extent of

$10 and injuring the plaintiff's eight year old daughter. Is

D liable for either injury? If so, to whom?

(b) D then severely punished his son with a heavy strap.

Under what circumstances, if any, is the son entitled to re-

dress, (1) in a civil suit; (2) by criminal action?

VIII. (a) Defendant sold morphine to plaintiff's hus-

band, in spite of her repeated protests, until by its use he be-

came mentally unbalanced.

(b) Defendant negligently ran into plaintiff's husband

with an automobile.

May plaintiff" recover for loss of consortium in either

case?
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Examination in Corporations.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

I. Ten students incorporated the College Publishing

Company with a capital of $500, divided into ten shares. Each

took one share and paid $25 dollars into the treasury. After

the organization was completed the money was returned to

the contributors. In the company's name, an office was orally

hired and a contract made with a firm of printers for printing

a college daily. The paper was published for a college year.

The business was carried on with entire informality, no direct-

ors' meetings being held, and at the end of each week the mon-

ey received from subscribers and advertisers, less incidental ex-

penses, was divided among the students who had worked for

llie paper in proportion to the estimated importance of their re-

spective services, without declaration of dividends and without

regard to the ownership of stock. The whole amount so divided

was $2,000. At the end of the year the sums due for printing

and oftlce hire amounted to $1,000. What are the creditors*

rights?

II. An Illinois statute provides that a corporation for

profit shall be organized by a meeting of the subscribers to

be held after ten days notice, and that if the corporation does

business without complying with the act, its directors shall be

personally liable for its debts. In the organization of a cor-

poration for profit, the subscribers unanimously waived notice

of the meeting and held the meeting immediately thereafter,

if the company proceeds to business, are the directors liable

for its debts?
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III. The directors of an Illinois railroad company which

has surplus funds, believing that its shares are selling below

their true value, resolve to invest the funds in its shares. May

the purchase be prevented by a stockholder whose motive in

opposing arisei fiom his being short of the stock on the mar-

ket? May it be prevented by the attorney general? By the

majority at a stockholders' meeting?

IV. An Illinois manufacturing corporation, thinking

that it would be profitable to build houses and rent them to its

workmen, bought land for the purpose, but after the execution

and delivery of the deed refused to pay the purchase price.

What are the rights of the grantor?

V. An attempt was made in good faith to organize a cor-

poration to sell intoxicating liquor in the city of Decatur. By

inadvertence the Secretary of State issued a certificate of incor-

poration although, as the commissioners report showed, only

nine-tenths of the stock had been subscribed. Thereafter De-

catur went dry. The directors afterward made a call for the

payment of subscriptions in full. A subscriber refused to pay

on the grounds that ( 1 ) the stock was not fully subscribed,

(2) there was no de jure corporation, (3) the corporation was

not ready to do business because it could not get a license,

(4) the prosecution of the business had become illegal and the

subscribers were not bound to supply money to carry it on.

Which of these grounds are good ?

VI. The directors of a theatre company believed that it

would be profitable to run a saloon in connection with the

theatre and sell drinks between the acts, but doubted its power

under its charter to do so. So they organized a separate com-
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pany to run the saloon, leased to it a part of the theatre build-

ing and invested the theatre company's money in its stock. The

city voted dry and the stock became worthless. The theatre

company, under new management sues its former directors

who made the investment to hold them for the resulting loss.

It is admitted that they acted in good faith, but, since the city

was likely to go dry, imprudently. Are they liable and why?

VII. A corporation whose capital stock was divided into

I 000 shares of which A owned 100, declared on May 1, a divi-

dend of ten dollars a share payable June 1, and deposited in a

bank $10,000 to pay the dividend. May 2, a destructive fire

rendered it and the bank insolvent. May 3, A assigned his

shares to B, and B's name was entered on the company's books

as shareholder. At that time neither A nor B had heard of

the declaration of a dividend, and, in view of the fire, neither

anticipated any dividend. The bank can pay its creditors only

50 per cent of their claims; the corporation owes ^10,000 ex-

clusive of the claim of its shareholders for the dividend, and has

assets of S6,000 exclusive of its claim against the bank. What

are the respective rights of A, B and the general creditors?

VIII. Explain tlie theory of a stockholder's right to sus-

tain in a court of equity a suit founded on a right of action ex-

isting in the corporation.

IX. A owning 100 shares in the X company agreed to

sell them to B. By the by-laws, printed on the stock certifi-

cates, the shares were transferable only on the books of the

company. B paid the purchase money and A gave him the

following writing, "For value received I hereby assign to B

my hundred shares in the X Co.—A." B presented this docu-



25

ment to the company and requested a transfer on the books,

but the company refused to make it because he did not present

the certificate. Afterwards A undertook to sell the same

shares to C, who, in ignorance of the dealings with B, paid for

them and obtained the certificate with an assignment by A duly

endorsed thereon. On C's presenting the certificate, the compa-

ny entered his name on the books, and paid him a dividend.

May B sue the company for converting his shares? May he

compel them to enter his name on the books? If the company

strike C's name from the books, has C a cause of action against

them?

X. in the organization of a business corporation A sub-

scribed for stock under an agreement that he should not be

called upon to pay more than half its face value. He sold it to

B, who knew the facts. The company became insolvent. What

rights have its creditors against A and B, the stock being still

only half paid up?
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Examination in Equity.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

I. Certain jewelry, once the property of a testator, is

claimed by A as a gift made by the testator in his lifetime to A.

The jewelry has come into the possession of the executor with

the other assets of the estate. B, the residuary legatee, denies

the gifts, and claims that the jewelry should be distributed to

him. A threatens suit against the executor, who now brings

his bill of interpleader against A and B. Do these facts pre-

sent a case for interpleader? Reason.

II. C conve3'ed to B; the deed was recorded; at the

same time B contracted in writing that C might remain in

possession and repurchase the land within a year; this con-

tract was not recorded. Four months later, C being still in

possession, B conveyed the land to A. Has A notice of C's

contract to repurchase? Reasons, pro and con, Illinois law.

III. C takes a mortgage from B, which recites that it

secures $5,000; and leaves it for record with the proper clerk

in the registry office. By mistake of the clerk, it is copied in

the records as securing $500. Later, B deeds the land to A,

who buys on the faith of the record, and has no actual notice

of the true amount secured by the mortgage; A duly records

his deed. Does A take subject to a mortgage of $5000 or

of S5oo? Reasons, pro and con.

IV. A sold Blackacre to B; the deed was recorded. La-

ter C recovered judgment against A, levied execution on

Blackacre as A's properly, purchased it at sheriff's sale and put
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the sheriff's deed on record. B, being in possession of Black-

:icre, sues to cancel the sheriff's deed as a cloud on his title.

Four different tests are applied by the courts of different

states to decide the question whether the deed is a cloud on B's

title. State and explain these four tests.

V. A contracted in writing to sell a farm to B, reserving

to A his family burying ground thereon. Later, the contract

was abandoned, and A offered orally to sell the farm to C;

which offer C accepted. A drew up, executed and delivered

the deed to C, but by mistake omitted the reservation of the

burying ground. What relief, if any, may A have on the above

facts, if the court further finds:

(a) That the deed was intended by A and C to conform

to the contract between A and B, and C, before delivery, no-

ticed that it did not so conform? or,

(b) That the bargain between A and C was not based on

the first contract, but that C, when he accepted A's offer, sus-

pected that A did not mean to convey the burial lot? or,

(c) That the bargain between A and C was not based on

the first contract; that C did not know of the existence of the

burial lot until after the conveyance; that the burial lot is of

little or no value to C but of great value to A?

VI. A claims to be the trustee of certain real property

formerly belonging to the Country Club, an unincorporated as-

sociation. He brings his bill, asking that O, trustee of the

Athletic Club, and P, trustee of the Golf Club, each claiming

to be the successor to the Country Club, interplead for the

rents and profits of this property; and that O, who has been

in receipt of these rents and profits, account for them. O an-
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swers, setting up legal title to the property, claiming to be the

rightful trustee, and asserting that A has no title.

Can A's bill be maintained either as a bill of interpleader

or a bill in the nature of a bill of interpleader? Reasons.

Vlll. (a) A bill is brought to cancel 10 non-negotia-

ble notes held by as many defendants, all the notes purporting

to have been made by the complainant, and all alleged by him

to have been forged by the same person. Is this a good case

for a bill of peace? Reasons.

(b) Give an instance of a bill of peace, properly brought

by or on behalf of numerous complainants, no one of whom,

sueing alone on his own behalf could have relief in equity.

VIII. (a) Mention three classes of cases in which courts

of equity may relieve from mistakes of law.

(b) Give an example (facts real or imagined) of refor-

mation for mistake of law.

IX. Describe and illustrate the nature of a receiver's of-

fice, and of his possession of the property put in his charge, by

showing the effect (a) of the seizure of such property for tax-

es, (b) of bringing a suit against the receiver by a person who

claims the property as his own.
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Examination in Equity Pleading.

DEAN HARKER.

I. Jane Brown filed a bill for divorce in the Circuit

Court of Champaign County, Illinois, and procured service up-

on her husband, Willis Brown, by notice and copy of bill, de-

livered to him at Davenpori, Iowa, his place of residence. The

defendant failing to appear and answer, a default was entered,

and on a hearing of evidence offered by the complainant, the

court rendered a decree for divorce upon the ground of deser-

tion and awarded complainant alimony at the rate of $400 per

annum, payable quarterly. The decree was declared to be a

lien upon any real estate in Champaign county belonging to

the defendant, and it was provided that complainant should

have execution for unpaid alimony and for costs of the suit.

Defendant did not pay the costs or any part of the ali-

mony. Two years aftdr the entry of the decree, the de-

fendant, through the death and will of his father, inherited a

vacant lot in Urbana, and an automobile. Complainant has

sued out an execution which the sheriff has levied upon the

property mentioned. Is the levy valid and may the sheriff law-

fully sell the real estate and the automobile to satisfy the cost

of the divorce suit and the overdue alimony of $800?

II. Draft a bill for divorce on the facts recited in ques-

tion I and make complete service by copy of bill, etc., to the

January Term, 1912.

III. What is the office of a bill of interpleader? Of a

supplemental bill? Of a cross-bill ? Of a bill of review?
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IV. In a suit in equity the wife of the complainant was

introduced as a witness before the master to whom the cause

had been referred for proofs and findings. AHorneys for the

defendant made no objection to her as a witness before the

master and cross examined her. To the master's finding in fa-

vor of the complainant, the defendant excepted solely upon

the ground that it was against the weight of the evidence; but

(he master overruled the exception and reported his finding to

the court. The defendant renewed his exception before the

court and upon the argument urged the incompetency of the

wife as a witness and asked the court to decide the case upon

the evidence with the testimony of the wife eliminated. It was

the first objection to her competency. To prove the facts tes-

tified to by her she was incompetent. The facts were admissi-

ble if presented through a competent witness and were suf-

ficient to support a decree for complainant. With her testimo-

ny eliminated the finding should be for the defendant. State

your views upon what the ruling and finding of the court should

be.

V. On October 4, 1912, William Robey died intestate

seized in fee of an undivided }i of lots 2, 4 and 6, in block 3,

Seminary Addition to the City of Urbana. He left surviving a

widow, Jane Robey, the owner of the other '4 or said lots, and

the following named children: John Robey, Eli Robey, and

Mary Robey. Mary Robey is 14 years old. The others are

adults.

Draft a bill for John Robey, under which the interests and

equities may be decreed and three commissioners appointed to

make partition.

VI. In February, 1914, after giving notice, obtained

a temporary injunction from the master, restraining the sherifi'
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from selling property levied upon by virtue of an execution in

favor of B against C. The slieriff and B, in their join answer,

traversed the allegations in the bill. Upon trial before the

court it is shown that by reason of certain acts agreed upon

and performed by B and C after the service of the notice but

before the granting of the injunction, the situation so far as

the allegations in the bill are concerned is altered. Assuming

that the complainant is still entitled to a restraining decree,

what course should be pursued and why?

VII. A has a judgment against B, who has fraudulently

conveyed lands owned by him in the county to X. He also

has a judgment against C, who owns no real estate, but has

made a fraudulent transfer of a stock of hardware to X. Men-

tion the steps that should be taken in each case to uncover the

fraud and subject the property to judicial sale.

VIII. On June 3, 1912, Henry Ware borrowed of James

Hobbs, for a term of one year, $800, to be secured by a

promissory note, with interest at 6 per cent from date, and a

mortgage on lots 3 and 5 in block 4, in Scott's Addition to the

City of Champaign, Illinois. Note and mortgage were execut-

ed and delivered, but no part of the debt has been paid. It is

now discovered that in drafting the mortgage, the property

was erroneously described as lots 3 and 4, in block 5. Draft

necessary bill in behalf of Hobbs.

IX. To the complainant's bill, the defendant has filed

a plea which the complainant does not believe presents a le-

gal defense. How may the complainant obtam the judgment

of the court upon that question?
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X. Assuming that you represent the complainant, state

under what conditions you would accept to an answer; when

you would move to have the case set for hearing on the bill

and answer; when you would file a replication and ask that

the cause be referred to the master in chancery for proofs and

binding.
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Examination in Future Interests.

(In every case in addition to a decision with reasons,

name all the future interests involved, stating whether vested,

contingent, legal, equitable, arising under the statute of uses,

wills, etc.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

I. A devised a valuable tract of land to the Seamens'

Friend Society of Boston to be held by the society and its suc-

cessors forever, "but if said society or its successors shall at

any time in the future cease to be devoted to the aid of indi-

gent and disabled seamen, said land shall go to Y and his

heirs." A died in 1850. In 1890 the society dissolved and

sold the land to X in fee. The land is now claimed by the

purchaser, X, who is in possession, by the heirs of Y and the

heirs of A. Who is entitled, and why?

II. State the rule in Shelley's case. Is it a fixed rule of

law or a rule for construing intent? Does it apply to any of

the following?

(a) Life estate to A by will, remainder to A's heirs in

fee by a codicil.

(b) Devise to trustees and their heirs in trust for A for

life, then in trust for A's heirs forever.

(c) Devise to trustees for A for life, and at his death to

convey the lesal title to A's heirs.

(d) Devise to A for life, remainder in fee to the heirs

of A and B.

(e) Devise to A for life, remainder to the heirs of A's

body.
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III. A leased a lot and three-story brick, building to B

for 25 years. B, the lessee, covenanted: that he would insure

the building for ^25,000 and keep it insured f^r that amount:

that he would not assign or sublet without the written assent

of the lessor. It was further provided that on breach of any

covenant contained in the lease, it should "determine and be-

come utterly void." The lease also provided, that receipt of

rent should not be deemed a waiver of any breach of covenant,

and that any consent to assign or sublet should be limited to

the assignment or subletting specified in the written assent. A

right of entry was reserved for breach of any covenant.

What are the rights of the parties if

—

(a) B failed to insure and A, with knowledge of the

facts, received four quarters rent?

(b) B assigned the lease to X with A's consent in writing

and X later assigned to Y without consent of A ?

IV. A by deed granted as follows;

(a) His term for 99 years to B for life. B died five

years later.

(b) His statuary and oil paintings to B for life, remainder

to the Boston Art Gallery forever.

(c) Another term for 99 years to B for life, remainder

to C and his heirs.

Assume that he makes the same disposition of the above

interests by will. Discuss the nature of all interests created,

whether vested, contingent, legal, equitable, etc.

V. A leased land to the B hospital for 40 years, and

covenanted for himself, his heirs and assigns, that the hospital

'
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and its successors should have the right to buy the land at any

time during the term on giving six months notice and paying

$5,000. A died one year later. Ten years later the hospital

gave the required notice, tendered $5,000 and demanded

a deed from X, the heir of A. X refused to convey. What are

the rights of the B hospital, if any?

VI. Is it correct to say that the rule against perpetui-

ties does not apply to a charity? Which of the following, if

any, violate the rule?

(a) Testator wills: "I give to the trustees for the time

being of the London Missionary Society 42,000 pounds Rus-

sian 5 per cent stock. I also commit to their keeping the keys

of my family vault at Highgate Cemetery, the same to be kept

in good repair and to be rebuilt when it shall require: failing to

comply with this request, the money left is to go to the New-

gate School of London."

(b) The same as above, except that the gift over is to B

and his heirs.

(c) To trustees for B and his heirs on similar condition

as to repair, etc., of testator's tomb, with a gift over in trust

for C and his heirs on failure of B to comply with the terms of

the trust.

VII. Testator made his will in 1840 and died in 1850.

He owned, among other things, two slaves and an estate in land

for the lives of X, Y and Z. X died before the testator died,

Y died in 1855 and Z died in 1870. Testator disposed of the

above property as follows: "To A for life, to B for life, re-

mainder to B's issue, and in default of issue remainder to C
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and his heirs. A, B and C survived the testator. Discuss the

nature and validity of the above dispositions.

VIII. Testator made his will in 1835 and devised real

estate to A for life, remainder in fee to all the children of A,

living at A's death and who then or thereafter should attain

the age of 25. If all die under 25, then to X and his heirs. A

died in 1837, leaving children as follows: B aged 5, C aged 8

and D aged 12. Testator died in 1845. Discuss the validity

of all the gifts.

Would your answer be the same, if all the facts remain-

ed the same, except that 35 were the age used instead of 25.-'
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Examination in Municipal Corporations.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

I. An owner of unimproved property within the city

limits of Urbana, platted it in three tracts, A, B and C, and re-

corded the plats, complying with all the statutory formalities

for dedication of streets, except that the plat of tract A was not

acknowledged as required by the statute. The lots in these

tracts were all sold off by the owner, and the streets therein as

platted were all constantly used by the purchasers of lots and

by the public. The city council by formal vote accepted tract

A; it made no formal acceptance of tracts B and C; but it

caused sewers to be laid in the streets of tract B and the streets

of tract B to be brought to grade. The city took no action

whatever regarding tract C. Who owns the fee of the streets

in tracts A, B, and C, and is the city under any duty of street

repair with respect to these streets?

II. A city, having express power by its charter to sup-

press nuisances and to regulate certain specified trades (includ-

ing barbers and peddlers) passed ordinances (a) prohibiting

all slaughter houses within the city limits, (b) prohibiting all

peddling, (c) prohibiting the keeping open of any barber shop

between the hours of 6 p. m. and 7 a. m. Discuss the validity

of these ordinances.

III. Discuss on principle whether a city has implied

power to borrow money, giving arguments pro and con. How
does Illinois stand on this question?
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IV. A certain city has express power to maintain parks

and cemeteries, and power to purchase and hold such land as

is convenient or necessary for municipal purposes. It receiv-

ed a devise in fee simple of a fruit farm of 1,000 acres located

200 miles from the city; this farm it continues to operate,

making a profit thereby. It has now contracted to buy a tract

of 50 acres adjoining the farm for the purpose of raising shrubs

and flowers for planting in the city park; also, it has contracted

to buy two tracts just outside the city limits, one of 100 acres

for a city cemetery, and the other of 2 acres for the purpose of

establishing a cannery to handle the fruit raised on its farm.

Tax payers question the power of the city to operate the farm,

and to make these three purchases of land. Discuss the ques-

tion on principle and in the light of the authorities.

V. An act provided that cities of a certain population

might, by popular election, adopt the "commission form" of

municipal government. State three objections which have

been raised against the constitutionality of such legislation, and

the arguments by which these objections have been met.

VI. In 1910 the charter of the city of A was revoked by

the legislature and all its territory equally divided between and

annexed to the adjoining cities, B and C. In 19 15 half of the

territory so annexed to C was erected into the new city of D.

The statutes were silent as to the assumption of the debts of A

by B, C or D. Plaintiff, owning bonds issued by A in 1908,

sued B, C and D thereon in 1918. Could he recover against

any or all? What became of the public real property owned

by A?

VII. (a) State and illustrate three propositions relating

to the liability of cities for defects in sewers.
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(b) Give two examples (exclusive of injuries from un-

safe streets) of torts committed in the exercise of or in connec-

tion with the city's public governmental functions, for which

the city should be held liable.

VIII. On what theory (if at all) may an owner of prop-

erty abutting on a street recover damages from an elevated

railroad built in the street under the authority of the city and

of the legislature, (a) the fee in the street being in the abut-

ting owner; (b) the fee in the street being in the city. State

in each case the law of New York and the law of Illinois.
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Examination in Real Property I.

MR. PILLSBURY.

I. Name and describe the estates granted or attempted

to be granted in the following conveyances. Discuss their

validity.

(a) To A and his heirs, but if A should ever leave En-

gland, this conveyance to become void.

(b) To the University of Illinois in a fee simple so long ds

the land shall continue to be used for educational purposes.

II. In 1500, A, tenant in fee simple of Blackacre, gave

livery of seisin of Blackacre to B, a bachelor, remainder to his

widow, remainder to his first born son and the heirs of the

body of such son, remainder to C. In 1510, B,

gave livery of seisin of Blackacre to D and his heirs.

Define the estates in, and rights concerning, Blackacre after

this feoffment by B.

III. Discuss briefly the law of dower and curtesy (1) at

common law, (2) as it is in Illinois today.

IV. Land was conveyed to A, B, C and D as joint ten-

ants. A conveyed his interest to B. B made a will devising

all his lands to C. Then B died. Then C died. Who has

what interests in the land?

V. After the passage of the Statute of Uses, A, tenant

in fee simple of Blackacre, orally agreed with B, in considera-
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tion of $100 then paid by B to secure said agreement in its

entirety, to hold Blackacre to the use of B for life, and then

to the use of his widow for life, and then to the use of B's

first born son and the heirs of his body, and then to the use of

B's daughters and the heirs of their bodies, and then to the use

of the heirs of B. B was a bachelor at the time. B was not re-

lated to A by blood or marriage. Assume the Statute of En-

rollments not to be in force. What estates, if any, were there-

by created in Blackacre?

VI. A, in consideration of $100 bargains and sells land

(a) To B and his heirs, but if B ever loses his citizen-

ship, to C and his heirs.

(b) To B for life, and five days after his death to C in

fee.

(c) To B in fee upon the death of A.

Discuss the nature and validity of these conveyances at

the present time, contrasting your results with those which

would have required before the Statute of Uses.

VII. A, by bargain and sale deed, conveys land to B,

"in trust for White and Smith forever." X in some unknown

manner comes into possession of the land. White and Smith

bring ejectment against X. Can they recover? Would the result

be the same in Illinois? If they cannot succeed in ejectment,

how can the land be restored to them ?

VIII. The First Church of Champaign purchased a pi-

ano, which was screwed down to the floor of the Sunday School

room to prevent children from moving it around. It was the

only piano in the room and was used for all religious exercises

held in the room. The church also purchased an expensive
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pipe organ, which was set up back of the pulpit in the main

auditorium. The pipe organ was not fastened to the floor,

walls or ceiling, but was nevertheless built so as to be an in-

tegral part of the architectural scheme of the front of the au-

ditorium.

Are the piano and pipe organ real or personal property,

and why?

IX. Littleton owned in fee simple Blackacre, Greenacre

and Whiteacre. On each he built a brick house and also a

cliicken-coop, the latter supported by timbers tha: rested on

stones that lay upon the surface of the earth. Each house con-

tained a furnace, a kitchen range, book shelves, fitted to the

wall, and gas fixtures. Littleton mortgaged Blackacre, sold

Greenacre, and died owning Whiteacre. By reason of such

mortgage, sale and death, whether testate or intestate, what

were the rights to such building and contents?

X. The owner of land leased it to a tenant for years.

There was an open mine on the land. The tenant exhausted

the coal obtainable from the original shafts and levels, then

pursued the vein still farther and exhausted it, and finally open-

ed and exhausted a new mine. What are the rights of the

parties?
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Examination in Real Property II.

MR. PILLSBURY.

I. In 1842 Acton, the owner of a large tract of land on

the highway, sold the rear portion called the "Cow Pasture,"

which did not in any place abut on any highway, to Richards:

and by his deed granted to Richards, his heirs, and assigns, "as

appurtenant to the land conveyed, a right of way over my re-

maining land to said highway from the parcel of land hereby

conveyed, which is called "Cow Pasture." At this time the

"Cow Pasture" was wild land; and, for many years after, the

way was used only for the passage of cattle and wood carts.

In 1855, Richards purchased other land adjoining "Cow Pas-

ture" over which he could pass to the highway; and, from 1855

to 1879, neither Richards nor his heirs ever used the way for

any purpose. In 1876 Richard's heirs, Richards being dead,

told the owner of the Acton land that they did not care to use

the way as it was more convenient to go over their own land.

In 1880, the heirs of Richards conveyed "Cow Pasture" to the

Strong Foundry Company, which at once erected thereon large

iron furnaces and began to clear out and cut away the trees

and undergrowth which had sprung up in the old right of way

and to use said way for hauling materials and supplies to their

foundry and for their employees to pass over in going to and

from work. Blundenn, who now owns the Acron lot, brings

a bill in equity against the Foundry Company to enjoin its use

of the way, the cutting down of his trees, and the continued

trespasses on his land. What result? Discuss fully and give

reasons.
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II. A for thirty years has been accustomed to keep in

repair the fence between his land and the farm of B adjoining,

but was not bound by any legal instrument so to do, B has

always been quite willing that A should make all repairs and

has frequently pointed out to A places which needed repair.

Some hunters driving across the fields tear down a portion of

the fence, and two days later, but before A has noticed the

break, B's cattle stray into A's land, eat the foliage of a cer-

tain poisonous tree situated some distance from the fence, and

are killed. B sues for damages. What result?

III. King, a coal dealer, demises by lease under seal, to

Sugden, a dwelling house in Chicago for the term of ten years;

and in said lease Sugden covenants for himself and his execu-

tors and administrators ( 1 ) that he and his assigns will reside

on the premises during said term, (2) that he and his assigns

will connect said house with the public sewer by a drain to be

built within three years, and (3) that he and his assigns will

during their term buy all their coal of King. After four years,

Sugden assigns his term to Bell, who lives in New York and

does not buy coal of King; and neither Sugden nor Bell has

connected the house with the sewer. At this time King dies,

leaving Webb as his sole heir. What rights, if any, has Webb
against Sugden or Bell.''

IV. A, owning 5 adjoining lots, cuts of\' the rear 50 feet

of each lot, and on the land thus obtained sets out trees, shrub-

bery and a lawn, etc., for a private park. The remainder of

four of these lots he sells to B, C, D and E respectively, re-

taining the fifth for his own residence. In the deed to each lot,

prepared and executed by A alone, it is recited that the grantee

shall have full liberty to use the park for himself and his
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household, and that the grantee agrees to pay annually one-

fifth of the cost of keeping up the park. Each grantee records

his deed and for twenty years pays his share of the upkeep of

the park, and of the taxes on the park as well. Twenty-five

years later A dies, devising his lot and the park to X. E sells

his lot to Y, who knows nothing of the covenants. Y now re-

fuses to pay his share of the upkeep or of the taxes on the park.

Can X compel him to do either, in law or equity? Discuss fully

all possible grounds upon which recovery might be had.

V. tpor the purpose of building, a landowner carefully

excavated within his boundaries, with the result that an ad-

joining owner was injured thus: part of the surface of his

land fell into the excavation; part of his cultivated shrubbery

fell likewise; part of his uncultivated trees fell; and the wall

of his house cracked. What are the rights of the parties?

VI. Plaintiff for over twenty years has owned and op-

erated a mill on Crooked River. This river has three principal

sources of supply, viz: (a) Turtle Brook, a natural water

course; (b) rainwater, which, running off the hillsides in no

defined channels collects in swamps at the foot of the hills and

from the swamps overflows into the river; and (c) under-

ground springs. The City of Oxford, for the purpose of estab-

lishing a water supply for its inhabitants, purchases (a) about

two acres of land on the bank of Turtle Brook; and (b) a

large extent of all the hill slopes in the vicinity. On the two

acre tract, the city sinks a deep well, into which practically

all of the underground water flows; and it also taps Turtle

Brook by a tunnel and draws a large amount of water directly

from this source. Around the hill slopes, the city constructs

ditches in which all the rainwater falling on these several
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slopes is collected. All the water collected from these several

sources is pumped into the city reservior and from there dis-

tributed about the city. By reason of these acts of the city,

the amount of water which reaches Crooked River is so dimin-

ished that plaintiff finds it impossible to operate his mill. Has

he any remedy against the city for any or all of its acts? Dis-

cuss fully and give reasons.

VII. A owned riparian land and to the thread of the

river, including an island between his bank and the thread of

the river. B disseised A of the island in 1880. In 1890 the

channel of the river was dredged, and the soil from the bed of

the river was placed upon the shore of the island, increasing

its area by 10 acres. In 1901 A brings ejectment to recover

the island. B sets up title under the 20 year statute of limita-

tions. How should the case be decided?

VIII. A, an insane person, owned a piece of land. B

owned adjoining land and from day to day B and the members

of his family crossed A's land to B's along a beaten path. B

said on several occasions that he had never asked permission

to use the path, but he had no doubt that the owners would

have no objection. After 5 years, A died. His heir, C, was

four years old. When he became 26 years old, he brought

trespass against B for his use of the way. Neither A's commit-

tee, nor C nor C's guardian knew of B's use until within a year

before the suit was brought. Judgment for whom?
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Examination in Sale*.

PROFESSOR HALE.

I. Y advanced to X, a farmer, $1,000. In considera-

tion of $500 of this amount X gave Y a bill of sale to all the

corn to be raised on Blackacre during the two ensuing years.

This bill of sale was executed July 1. As security for the other

$500 which was considered a loan and for which X gave his

note to Y, X executed a chattel mortgage also dated July 1,

covering the cattle then on X's farm, and also such cattle as

might later be added by breeding or by purchase. X's original

herd was increased by the birth of 10 calves. July 15, X

bought 10 valuable dairy cows. October 1, X sold the farm

and all the stock to A.

(a) What right has Y to the corn raised on Blackacre

during the two years following?

(b) What right has X to the 10 calves and to the 10

dairy cows, provided the note is not paid when due, assuming

the calves to have been born in October and November fol-

lowing the date of the mortgage?

II. A went to B's store to purchase a suit of clothes.

After trying on several suits he expressed himself as satisfied

with a certain suit, except for the fact that the sleeves were

too long. B took measurements for the alterations. A said:

"Fix it up, and I'll call for it in a week." B said : "All right." It

was understood that the suit was not to be taken until paid for.

The next day the store was accidentally burned and the suit

was destroyed. B sues A for the price of the suit. What judg-

ment?
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111. A went to B's farm to purchase some hogs. In one

pen were 20 hogs of the same age and size. A said he would

take 10 at $5 apiece. B accepted the offer. A w^as to have

one month in which to pay for the hogs. Five of the hogs

were immediately placed in A's wagon. While they were try-

ing to catch the sixth one, A's team ran away, killing the five

that had been placed in the wagon. A claims that he is entitled

to 10 more hogs in fulfillment of the contract. B claims that

A is entitled to only 5 more. Which contention is correct?

IV. A in Champaign ordered a car load of flour from B

in St. Paul. It was agreed that A was to pay the freight. B

shipped the flour, taking a bill of lading to himself or order,

which he indorsed in blank, attached to bill of exchange paya-

ble at sight drawn on A, and sent to a bank in Champaign with

instructions to turn it (the bill of lading) over to A upon re-

ceiving payment of the bill of exchange covering the purchase

price of the flour. The bank in turn mailed the bill of lading

and bill of exchange to A asking him to send his check by re-

turn mail. A refused to pay the bill and also refused to return

the bill of lading.

(a) What are B's rights against A?

(b) Suppose, in addition to the foregoing facts, that A
transferred the bill of lading to C as security for a past debt.

Under such circumstances what would be the rights of B

against C?

(c) Suppose that before the bill of lading reached A the

goods had been destroyed, upon whim would the loss fall, B

or A?
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V. (a) A was riding down tlie street in bis automobile.

He met B. B offered A $1,000 for tlie car. A accepted tlie

offer. B gave A liis clieck for the $1,000. B said, "Drive thie

car around to my garage and leave it there." A said: "All

right." Before A reached the garage, the car vas seized under

a writ of attachment issued in an action brought by C against

A and was later sold under execution. C sues the attaching of-

ficer for conversion. What judgment?

(b) Suppose before reaching the garage A had sold the

machine to X. What would be the rights of X as against C
to the car?

VI. Late in the season of 1913, A contracted with B

for the purchase of a 1914 model Overland automobile. When
the new cars arrived A refused to take one. What are B's

rights against A?

VII. (a) Under what circumstances does a vendor have

a lien for the purchase price of a chattel?

(b) A sells and ships goods to B, under a bill of lading

running to B or order. This bill of lading is forwarded to B.

Before the goods reach their destination B goes insolvent. What

steps may A take to secure payment? Assume further facts

which may affect the results and the extent to which the re-

sults may be affected thereby

VIII. A purchased of B four tires for his automobile to

be used in a race. During the race one of tires burst because

it was not heavy enough for such purposes. The tires were

good ones considering their weight.
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(a) Under what circumstances, if any, will A have a

cause of action against B?

(b) Would it make any difference in your answer if the

breaking of the tire were due to the fact that the rubber was

in a state of decay?
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Examination in Suretyship.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

I. P desires to borrow $1,000 from C and offers S as a

surety. State at least four different forms of contract which the

parties may make to accomplish this purpose and explain how

they differ as to the rights of C against S.

II. The Globe Construction Co., a Michigan corporation,

contracted with the city of Pittsburgh, Pa., to pave certain

streets in that city and gave a bond, with S and T as sureties,

for the faithful performance of the contract. The company de-

faulted and the city sues 8 and T. A statute of Pennsylvania

forbids any foreign corporation from doing business within the

state without first complying with certain requirements, and

provides a penalty by fine or imprisonment against any person,

agent or officer of such a corporation who shall transact any

business for it within the state, if such requirements have not

been complied with. S and T plead that the Globe Construc-

tion Co. had not complied with this statute. Is the defense

good?

III. P S and T gave a note to C for a debt owed by P to

the amount of $5,000. The note was secured by two mortgag-

es, one given by P on Whiteacre, and one given by S on Black-

acre. The note is due and T alone is solvent. Advise him as

to his rights and liabilities and the best course to pursue for his

protection.
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IV. Jones sold his grocery business to Smith, including

his book accounts, among which was one of $50 owed by

White. Smith objected to taking this account but did so after

Jones had said: "It is as good as gold, and if you cannot collect

it, you can look to me." Smith made several duns on White

without success and now sues Jones.

(a) Is the Statute of Frauds available to Jones as a de-

fense }

(b) Has Jones any other defense?

(c) If Jones pays, has he an action for indemnity against

White?

V. Smith and Jones were sureties on White's note to

Franks for $1,000, due March 1, 1895. On May 1, 1895,

Smith paid Franks $500 on the note and Jones paid $300. The

balance, with accrued interest was paid on June 1, 1897, by

White, who took up the note.

What are Smith's rights against Jones and White re-

spectively on May 15, 1901, if the transaction was in Illinois?

VI. Green signed a note from Bliss to Kern, relying on

Bliss's promise that he would get Ford to sign as a co-surety

and would not otherwise deliver the note. Ford refused to

sign and unknown to Green, Bliss got James to sign instead

and delivered the note to Kern who received it without knowl-

edge of Bliss's promise to Green.

(a) James paid the note and sues Green for contribution.

Give judgment.

(b) Would your judgment be altered if, instead of a

note, the contract had been a bond in the body of
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which Ford's name appeared as a surety when Green signed,

but was afterwards erased by Bliss without the knowledge of

any of the other parties, and the name of James substituted?

VII. A, as principal, and B and C as sureties, were joint

makers on a note for $3,000 to X. In a suit against all three,

property of B worth more than the amount of the note was at-

tached and he gave a statutory bond, with M and N as sureties,

for the release of the property. X obtained judgment against

A, B and C and later sued M on the attachment bond, recover-

ing from him the full amount of the judgment, including costs

of both suits. At the time of the judgment against A, B and C,

C owned a farm worth $4,000 above encumbrances and ex-

emptions. What rights has M against C, if any?

VIII. Stone, who had already signed as surety a bond

on which Mason was principal, induced Burns to sign as co-

surety, orally promising to indemnify him against loss. Mason

defaulted and Burns had to pay. What are his rights against

Stone?

Suppose Jones, a stranger to the instrument, had made

the promise of indemnity, could Burns hold Jones to the

promise?

IX. P owed C $1,000 for which C demanded security.

P drew two notes for $500 each, identical in their terms, and

got M to sign one as co-maker with himself, and N the other.

These notes he delivered to C, together with a chattel mortgage

on property of his own worth about $500.

(a) When the notes are due, suppose P pays C $500,

takes up the note signed by M, and gets P to surrender the chat-

tel mortgage. Does this transaction affect C's rights against

N on the other note?
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(b) If N pays his note, will he be entitled to contribu-

tion from M?

X. Discuss the following as defenses of the surety:

(a) Release of the principal by the creditor.

(b) Extension of time to the principal by the creditor.

(c) Right to set-off of claim of the principal against the

creditor.
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Examination in Torts.

PROFESSOR HALE.

I. A sold his farm to B for $10,000. The farm was locat-

ed in California. A had lived on it a great many years. B was

a resident of Illinois and had never seen the farm. In a letter

written to B during the negotiations, A made the following

statements:

(1) "The farm is worth not less than $15,000, but 1

am very much in need of money so 1 am willing to sell it for

$10,000 cash." (The farm was not worth to exceed $5,000.

A had repeatedly on previous occasions offered it for $6,000

but had not been able to secure that price. A neighboring farm

of the same Icind and size had been recently sold for $5,000. A

knew this.)

(2) "The farm contains 150 acres." (The farm con-

tained 125 acres. A had never had the land surveyed but had

been told by his father, who owned the farm before A that it

contained 125 acres. A believed this to be the size of the

farm.)

(3) "1 have sold $2,000 worth of fruit from the farm

every year for the last five years." (A had never sold more

than $500 worth of fruit from the farm in any one year.)

(a) Which, if any, of the statements made will sustain an

action for deceit, assuming additional facts to be as indicated?

(b) If B can recover, what will be the measure of his

recovery.?
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II. A, while attempting to cross the street, was run over

by B. Omitting the question of contributory negligence, how

should the jury be instructed to enable them to determine

whether A was negligent, assuming: (1) that A was a normal

adult; (2) that A was blind; (3) that A was a child 6 years

of age,

III. A was running a wood-saw, propelled by steam, on

his premises near a highway. B came to the premises to pro-

voke a quarrel. A ordered B to leave. B refused. A started

the machine so suddenly that the belt flew off, striking B, who

stood near it, as a result of which B suffered the loss of an eye.

B sues A for the damage sustained. What judgment?

IV. Suppose in the previous case that during the noon

hour, X, a small bo}', came onto the premises, and, while play-

ing with the saw, was injured. X sues A. Assuming that X

was not guilty of contributory negligence, what judgment?

V. A horse belonging to X was grazing in X's pasture.

B, a small boy, set X's dog after the horse, causing the horse

to stampede and leap the fence into Y's field, where it was

followed and still pursued by the dog. At the end of the

chase, Y, while attempting to catch the horse, for the purpose

of removing it, was severely kicked. The animal had never

before been known to offer to injure any one, nor had the dog

been in the habit of chasing stock. It further appears that the

fence between X and Y was reasonably adequate. What are

the rights of X against Y?

VI. X was the owner of a powder mill, located two miles

from town. Through no fault of X, an explosion occurred. Y,
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who happened to be hunting in that vicinity at the time, was in-

jured by a missile hurled against him by the force of the ex-

plosion,

Y sues X. What judgment?

VII. A was driving from his farm to the neighboring

town. Between his farm and the town was a bridge, which was

in an unsafe condition. A knew that the bridge was unsafe, but

decided to cross in preference to going a somewhat longer but

safer way. A thought it less dangerous than it really was. A

had one of his children, B, a child 7 years old, with him. X,

a stranger, who knew nothing of the condition of the bridge,

was also riding with A at A's invitation. The bridge fell, in-

juring A, B and X.

(a) A sues for injuries to himself,

(b) A sues for loss of the child's services.

(c) An action is brought on behalf of the child for in-

juries sustained by the child.

)(d) X sues for injuries sustained by him.

Assuming that the defendant county was negligent in

maintaining the bridge in such condition, what judgment should

be given in each case?

VIII. The X R. R. Co. did not have its engines properly

equipped with spark protectors. Y, who owned a farm adja-

cent to the tracks of the company, had noticed upon several

occasions, fires in the fields near the tracks, and knew that the

company was not taking proper precautions to guard against

fires. Thereafter Y built two stacks of hay on his land not

more than 50 feet from the company's right of way. Ten days
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later the stacks were set on fire by sparks from a passing en-

gine and burned. One of the stacks could have been saved,

however, by a reasonable effort on Y's part, after the fire was

discovered. What are Y's rights against the X R. R. Co. ?

IX. A owed B a sum of money. A was in the employ of

X. B told A that he would cause him to lose his position if he

did not pay the bill. A refused to pay. B thereupon went to

X and threatened to withdraw his patronage from X unless X

should discharge A. A was working by the day. At the close

of the next day, X told A that he need not return to work there-

after. A sues B. What judgment?

X. Under what circumstances is A liable in tort to B for

causing C to break a contract existing between B and C?
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Examination in Trusts.

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

I. (a) Plaintiff obtained a letter of credit from the D
Bank, and agreed in return to deposit his salary in the bank as

it fell due. The D Bank failed with its books showing a large

balance of deposits in excess of drafts.

(b) Plaintiff, an administrator, deposited funds in the D
Bank and took the following receipt: "To be held until vouch-

ers are received from heirs: then same to be forwarded by bank

draft." The D Bank failed.

In each of the above cases plaintiff sued to recover ahead

of general depositors. Should he succeed?

(c) The D Bank allowed a guardian to deposit to his

personal account a check, which to the knowledge of the

bank represeni/»,d guardianship funds. The guardian later

checked out the entire amount and absconded. Plaintiff, sure-

ty on the guardian's bond after making good the loss sued the

D Bank to recover the amount of the deposit. Should he

succeed ?

II. T held real estate in trust for C. C mortgaged his

interest to X for $5,000. Neither X or C notified T. C then

borrowed $5,000 of T and mortgaged his inte<-est to T as se-

curity. Finally C mortgaged his interest to Y for $5,000. Y

did not know of the two preceding mortgages but notified T

at once. When all the facts became known, the land was sold

by consent of all the parties and the proceeds, $12,000, paid

into court. In the absence of a registry system, what are the

rights of X, T and Y?
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III. A bequeathed $100,00 to T in trust to pay the in-

come to C, A's son, "until he shall reach the age of 40 years

but without power of anticipation or alienation and free from

the claims of creditors; if prior to that time he shall not have

been adjudged a bankrupt, then to pay over the principal to

him; if, however, he shall have been adjudged bankrupt, then

to continue to pay him the interest for life subject to the same

restrictions, and at his death to divide the principal as C may

by his will appoint and in default of appointment to my next

of kin then living."

Discuss the validity of the trust.

IV. Mary Smith taught in the city schools. At the end

of the year she received a warrant for $l5o to cover the sal-

ary due her. The warrant was payable to "the order of Mary

Smith." A month after school closed Miss Smith married

William Jones. Jones after the marriage and without con-

sulting his wife, assigned the warrant to Henry Brown. Brown

did not attempt to collect the warrant until after the death of

William Jones, a month later. Who is entitled to the $150

in a jurisdiction where the common law governs the property

rights of husband and wife?

Distinguish a trust of a chose in action from an assign-

ment of a chose in action.

V. Plaintiff conveyed land to defendant, his father, up-

on an oral agreement by the father to hold it in trust for the

son. The father later repudiated the agreement. Has the son

any redress?

Would your answer be the same if the conveyance and

oral trust were part of scheme to defraud the son's creditors?
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VI. (a) A depositor in defendant's private bank di-

rected defendant to set aside $600 of the deposit for transmis-

sion to a bank in a foreign country. Defendant agreed to do

so, and entered in tiie depositor's pass book the withdrawal of

S6oo and made an entry of the amount of the balance, and

gave the depositor a receipt for $600 for transmission to the

foreign bank. Defendant never transmitted any money, but

converted $600 of the bank funds to his own use. He was

indicted for embezzlement and convicted. Is the conviction

right '

(b) Anal/ze a debt and a trust, pointing out any differ-

ences that may occur to you.

VII. W was accustomed to ship hogs to his agent, A.

with instructions to sell and deposit the proceeds with the D
Bank to be applied to a debt W owed the bank. By mistake

of the carrier a consignment of hogs belonging to plaintiff was

se'U to A in W's name. The hogs were sold and the agent, in

ignorance of plaintiff's ownership, deposited t'le proceeds as

usual in the D bank. The D bank applied them to W's debt.

VV then became bankrupt. The plaintiff, learning of the mis-

take, sued the D bank to recover the amount represented by

the sale of his hogs. Should he recover?

VIII. Land was devised to T in trust with directions to

sell the same and invest the proceeds and pay the income to

testator's wife, W, for life, and at her death to hold in fust for

his son, C. T sold the land which was unproductive for

.i50,(HJU, ana invested it as follows: S5,000 in his private busi-

ness, $10,000 in Consolidated Gas Co. bonds, $10,000 in Il-

linois Central Railroad stock, $10,000 in first mortgages at 6
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per cent, ^10,000 in a bank in his own name, $5,000 in a ne-

gotiable note signed by a then responsible business man. \V

died and C, w lo is of age, wished to put an end to the trust.

The bank in which $10,000 was deposited failed, although it

had been cons' dered eminently sound. The signer of the note

lost also by the bank failure and was unable to pay his note.

The stock and bonds depreciated. The private business was

b.ighly successful.

What are C's rights upon a settlement with the trustee.^
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EXAMINATION IN AGENCY.

(Please give reasons in full)

Chas. E. Carpenter.

I. J. Turner a youth of nineteen years, wrote

Adams, a youth of eighteen, asking Adams to find

a buyer for his, J. Turner's land. Adams sold

and conveyed the land to John Grill. After he came

of age, J. Turner wrote John Gill a letter in which

he stated that he affirmed the sale. Later J. Tur-

ner made a conveyance of the land to Albert Hill,

Who owns the land, John Gill or Albert Hill?

II. The defendant Brown was employed by

the defendant Vanderveers to keep trespassers off

Brown committed a severe battery upon him with a

culb. The court charged the jury that if the servant

committed the battery in the course of his duty to

put trespassers off, the master was liable even

though the battery was wanton or vindictive. Was
the instruction correct?

III. A baker loaned his team and driver to a

butcher for a day. While delivering meat for the

butcher the driver seeing a rival of the baker de-

livering bread and thinking to benefit the baker, his

master, runs against his opponent's wagon and

damages it. Is the baker liable? Is the butcher

liable?



IV. p. places A. in charge of his store with

authority to buy such goods as are needed to keep

up the stock, and upon P's credit to issue notes in

payment of the goods thus bought. A. buys a

thousand dollars worth of goods of T, telling T
they are needed to keep up the stock and gives T,

P's note for three months in payment. In fact

not more than $500 worth of the bill of goods pur-

chased were needed to keep up the stock. Is P liable

on the note?

V. P places A in charge of his store with

authority to buy goods upon P's credit and to is-

sue P's note in payment. A's authority was em-

bodied in a written power of attorney which stipu-

lated that A was not to incur debts exceeding in

amount at any one time the sum of $2,000. This

power was shown to T and T sold to A on P 's credit

$1,000 worth of goods relying on A's statement that

there were no outstanding debts for goods purchas-

ed by A for P. In fact A had already incurred a

$1,500 debt to Y for goods purchased which was not

yet paid, but whicli A honestly believed had been

paid. Can T hold P on the $1,000 note which A
gives in payment of the goods purchased? Can T
hold A liable?

VI. P and T are adjoining land owners and

T has an open drain over P's land which P has

covenanted with T to keep clean. P hires A to

manage his farm. A piles brush near the drain

and the next freshet washes some of the brush into



the drahi. A sees the obstruction in t]?.e drain, but

desiring to injure T, leaves it there. A few weeks

later as a result of the obstruction T's land is

flooded and a part of his crop ruined. Is A liable

to T?

VII. Peters employs Adams to sell Peters'

farm, X, on a commission. Adams had been pre-

viously employed by Parker to purchase land for

him upon a commission. Adams tells Parker that

Peters has employed him to sell his farm X, but

does not disclose to Peters that Parker has employ-

ed him to purchase land. Adams sells and conveys

X to Parker, Can Adams recover commissions

from Peters? From Parker?

VIII. A who has no authority whatever from

P and intending to make a contract with T on his

own account, but A thinking that T would be un-

willing to contract with him, represents to T that

he is representing P and makes a contract with T
in the name of P. P, after discovering the facts,

ratifies A's act and sues A and gets judgment. Wliile

the judgment against A is still unsatisfied, T sues P.

Can T recover against P?

IX. A cabinet maker left property in the con-

trol and possession of his agent with the power to

sell and apply the proceeds to the security or pay-

ment of a note indorsed by the agent. After the

agent received notice from the principal of the re-

vocation of liis authority to sell the goods, he sold



the goods to the defendaDt. The principal now

seeks to recover the goods. What result?

Suppose the agent had sold the goods after

the death of the principal, and after each knew of

it. Could the principal 's executor recover the goods ?

X. An action was brought upon a mortgage

and three notes. William Reed was employed by

the Adams Express Company and executed a bond

for the faithful performance of his duties to the

company. Upon the bond plaintiffs were sureties.

William absconded , charged with embezzling the

company's money. The defendant, William's mo-

ther, permitted Patton to take to the plaintiffs the

three notes and mortgage signed by her to be de-

livered up to the plaintiffs upon the express com-

pany agreeing not to prosecute her son William.

Patton represented to the plaintiffs that the notes

and mortgage were to be taken by them in consider-

ation of their paying the debt of William to the

company. Plaintiffs took the notes and mortgage

on these terms. With evidence of these facts be-

fore it the court instructed the jury "if Patton act-

ing without authority, but as a friend of both par-

ties, or of either party, procured for the plaintiff

the notes and mortgage sued on, and they accepted

the same, they ratisfied all of Patton 's acts in pro-

curing said notes and mortgage, and tlie notes and

mortgage were therefore void." Is this instruc-

tion correct ?

Apart fro mthe instruction should the defend-
ant be held liable upon the facts stated?



EXV^IINATION IN BILLS AND NOTES.

(In answering questions give reasons in ev^ery

i^cibe and state what you believe to be tlie law both

before and after the adoption of the Negotiable

Instruments Act.)

Professor Vernier,

PART L

1, Plaintiff signed an instrument in the fol-

lowing form

:

$440.00 Oct. 1, 1908.

Dec. 1, after date I promise to pay to the order

of myself dollars at

Value received.

Plaintiff then indorsed his name on the back in

blank and delivered the instrument to S, who was

an insurance agent, upon condition that nothing

should be done witTT It until and unless plaintiff pas-

sed the medical examination. Plaintiff never pre-

sented himself for examination, but S fraudulently

filled in the blank for the amount with ''Four hun-

dred and forty dollars" and the blank for the place

of payment with "the United Empire Bank," which

was plaintiff's bank. The note was then sold to

the Colonial Bank, which presented it at maturity

at the United Empire Bank, where is was paid and

the amount taken out of plaintiff's account. Has

plaintiff any redress against his bank?



2. Are the following instruments promissoiy

notes in form?

(a) "John Mason, 14th. Feb., 1836, borrowed of

Mary Ann Mason, his sister, the sum of $25 in cash

as ptir loan, in promise of payment of which I am
truly thankful for, and shall never be forgotten by

me,
Your affectionate brother,

John Mason. ($25).'"

April 20, 1910.

(b) *'This is to show that I allow to give Mil-

let James $40.00 to be payed when kald for.

Ezra Pash."

(c). Discuss the terms " assignability" and "ne-

gotiability", indicating clearly the difference in

meaning. In what sense, if any, does a negotiable

instrument continue to be negotiable after maturi-

3. R. W. Beeson of Ft. Worth, Texas, wrote

to William Bingham of Denver, Colorado, asking

for a loan of $1,000. Beeson signed the letter with

the name "A. W. Hudson". Hudson was a re-

sponsible citizen of Ft. Worth, owning real estate

in Denver. After a prolonged correspondence,

Bingham, who was a broker, agreed to loan the

money. Beeson foi'warded a note for the amount,

forging the name of A. W. Hudson as maker.

Bingham in return sent a draft for $1,000 payable

to the order of A. W. Hudson to "A. W. Hudson,



Lock Box 81, Ft. Worth, Texas ' \ Beeson had rent-

ed the box under this name and received the draft,

which was drawn on the plaintiff, the Planters'

Sank. Beeson indorsed the draft in the assumed

name and cashed it at the defendant. First National

Bank of Ft. Worth, On presentation plaintiff paid

the amount of the draft to defendant. On discov-

ery of the fraud plaintiff offered to return the draft

and demanded a return of the money paid. De-

fendant refused and plaintiff brought this suit.

Judgment ?

4. Assumpsit on a promissory note for $400

•signed by defendant Dwight Roberts, payable to

Daniel Whitney, or order, on demand, and indorsed

by Whitney. Defendant pleaded the general issue

and offered to produce evidence to show that the

note was still the property of the payee, Whitney,

who had been induced by fraud to indorse it to one

William Forbes, and that plaintiff, Walter Prouty,

had obtained the note from Forbes with full know-

ledge of the fraud on Whitney and for a small con-

sideration. At the request of plaintiff the trial

judge ruled that these facts if proved would con-

stitute no defense to this action. Defendant of-

fered no other evidence but excepted to verdict and

judgment for plaintiff. Judgment on appeal?

5. (a). Assumpsit by John Scanlan against

S. L. Keith and W". H. Kretzinger on the following-

note

:
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$2400.00 Chicago, Mch. 3, 1880.

Ninety days after date, we promise to pay to

the order of John Scanlan twenty four hundred dol-

lars at the Third National Bank of Chicago, for

value received, with interest at 7 per cent.

The note was signed underneath on the right side,

"Sam'L L. Keith, Pres't. Chicago Readj^ Roof'g.

Co. '

', and underneath at the left side,
'

' W. H. Kret-

zinger, Sec'y.," with the seal of the "Cnicacro Ready
Roofing Company" attached. It was contended

for the defense that this is on its face not the note

of the defendants, but that if it is, parol evidence

is admissible to show that the company alone is li-

able. Discuss both points.

(b) Assumpsit by L. M. Johnson against B,

Frankland on the following note

:

$5500.00 Chicago, June 1, 1885.

On or before the first day of June, 1888, the

Western Seamans' Friend Society agrees to pay to

ij. M. Johnson, or order, the sum of five thousand

live hundred dollars with interest at the rate of six

per cent per annum.

(Signed) B. Frankland, Gen'l. Sup't.

Same defense. Discuss both points.

If this note had been signed "Western Seamans'

Friend Society by B. Frankland, Gen'l. Sup't.",

would defendant be liable in this suit if it appeared

that he had no authoiity to sign for the society?

6. Assumpsit by Bartlett, Frazier and Car-

rington, running a grain elevator at Reddick, 111-



inois, against the First National Bank of Chicago

to recover $12500, the amount of 135 drafts drawn

by B, F and C by their agent li. L. Walsh upon

themselves, payable on their face to the order of

various farmers residing near Reddick and indorsed

in these names by the agent Walsh. Walsh con-

ducted the business rather loosely, but at first had

no intention to defraud. Instead of paying the far-

mers by giving them the drafts, he would pay them

in cash, then draw the drafts payable to them, in-

dorse their names, and cash them at the State Bank

of Reddick. The Reddick bank forwarded them ta

the First National of Chicago, which presented

them and received payment from B, F and C. The

135 drafts in suit represent $12500 for which no

grain was received. Walsh converted this amount

to his own use. The evidence showed that B, F and

C were at first ignorant of their agent's loose way
of doing business, that they instructed him to de-

liver the drafts to the farmers themselves, that they

instructed the Reddick Bank not to cash drafts for

AValsli when drawn in this form, but there was no

evidence to show that the defendant bank was noti-

fied or had any knowledge of anything which should

cause them to suspect the indorsements to be other

than the genuine indorsements of the farmers to

whom the drafts were payable. Plaintiffs B, F, anc

C sue to recover the amount paid on the drafts in

suit on the theory that the payees named never in-

dorsed them. Aside from any question of estoppel

by neghgence, how should the case be decided?



10

7. Are the followinar instruments negotiable?^&

(a) Thirty days after date, I agree to pay Wm,
Peterson, or holder, the sum of $40,

To J. Bell.

Across the face J. Bell wrote "Accepted, J-

Bell", Comment on ommissions, if any, and state

VFhether instrument is a bill or a note.

(b) $685.00 Boston, July 11, 1884.

I promise to pay George Taylor, or order^

six hundred and eighty five dollars, ten days after

the United States pays me the sum due me on the

judgment rendered in the case of W. Javvis against

the United States in the Court of Claims, June Ir

1884.

With interest the same as Savings' Banks pay.

W. Jarvis.

8. What is an irregular indorser? Illustrate

by example. Explain briefly the nature of and the

reasons for his liabilitv at common law and under
the N. I. L.

9. Plaintiff Benjamin Walters borrowed $3000
of Frank Knapp and as security for the loan de-

livered to Knapp a note for $5000 payable to Benj.
Walters, dated Sept. 3, 1891, due three years from
date, and endorsed bv Walters in blank. Sept. 10,

1894, Knai^p borrowed $4000 of tlio Clinton State

Bank and as security fraudulently delivered the
.••hove note. The bank took the note in good faith

I'-^lievina- Knap]) was tlie owner. Plaintiff brings
'i:is bill to restrain the bank from collecting ti; •

note. Decree?



EXAMINATION IN CARRIERS.

January, 1915. Professor Green,

PART I

1. A, the owner of a book, lent it to B. B re-

turned it by express, charges paid, addressed to A.

The express company, under the usual arrange-

ment witli the railroad company, put the book witn

other express matter in a railroad car and retained

custody of it by an express messenger who rode in

the car. Because of a defect in a railroad bridge,

not discoverable by care, the car was wrecked and

the book lost. Discuss the rights of A and of B to

sue railroad and express company in tort and in

contract.

2. C delivered to an express company for car-

riage a box that contained glass of exceptional value

and fragility. There was nothing to inform the

carrier of its contents and the carrier charged or-

dinary merchandise rates. The box was handled

by the company's servants with care adequate for

an ordinary box of its appearance but without the

care that should have been taken had its contents

been known. Consequently the glass was broken.

If the character of the contents had been known,

the rate would have been higher. Is the company
liable? Would it have been liable if the box had

been stolen?

3. A commercial drummer bought a railroad
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ticket from Champaign to Danville and checked a

suit case containing ordinary baggage and a trunk

that contained samples by showing which he ex-

pected to make sales. The railroad company had

no notice of their contents. A pickpocket stole the

ohecks from the drummer and by presenting them

at the station at Danville obtained delivery of both

suit case and trunk. Neither carrier nor drummer
failed to use due care. Discuss the railroad com-

pany's liability.

4. A shipped a horse and B a cow by railroad.

Each animal was worth $200. A agreed with the

carrier that he would not hold it liable for more

than $100, even though the horse was killed by the

negligence of its servants. B agTeed with the car-

rier that the cow was not worth more than $100

They knew that they got lower rates because of the

agreements. The animals were killed in transit by

negligence of the carrier's servants. Discuss its

liability on principlfi^

5. If the shipments mentioned in the last ques-

tion were for interstate carriage and made today,

the Carmack amendment of 1910 to the Interstate

Commerce Act being in force, what would be the

railroad company's liability?

6. A bill of lading issued by a railroad com-

pany contained the following provision among
others: ''It is agreed that the carrier shall not be



^3

liable for loss by fire." The shipper, as the (.'arrier

knew, knew that the document contained a contract

of carriage, but did not know that it contained any

limitation of liability, took it and put it in his x)ocket

without reading it. What is the carrier's liability

for loss by fire not caused by its fault? What do

you think its liability ought to be?

7. A carload of ice was shipped by railroad in

summer in a refrigerator car, especially adapted to

carry ice. It was agreed that it was "to be carried

without change of cars, the carrier not to be liable

for loss by fire." The ordinary run was two days.

On the first day's run, the track was blocked by un-

usual floods. It was plain there would be a delay

of several days, and the carrier, unwilling to lose

the use of the refrigerator car for so long, trans-

ferred the ice to an ordinary closed car. Afterward

a fire broke out near this closed car. One fifth of

the ice would have melted on the journey anyway.

The delay alone would have caused another fifth to

melt. The change of cars without delay or fire would

have caused a fifth to melt. The fire caused a fifth

to melt, but would have caused no appreciable loss

if the ice had remained in the refrigerator car. So

only one fifth of the ice reached its destination un-

melted. What is the carrier's liability?

8. A contracted to sell 100 barrels of flour to

B. He shipped the flour by common carrier, took a

bill of lading to his order, drew a draft on B for the

purchase price, discounted it at the bank. ?in'T -^ ^



Hvered to the bank the bill of lading duly endorsed,,

as security. B, however, paid directly to A. A no-

tified the bank that he would take up the draft, and

directed the carrier to deliver to B, without produc-

tion of the bill of lading. The carrier delivered ac-

cordingly. A, however, by the embezzlement of a

clerk, was rendered insolvent and could not take up

the draft. Is the carrier liable to the bank in tort?

Tn contract?

9. In response to P's signal, a street car was

stopped at a street corner, and P, exercising due

care, approached the car and was about to get on

it, as a passenger when, owing to some negligence

of the car company, a sign on the car fell upon him.

Discuss the car company's liability.

10. The X railroad company, by agreement

with the Y company, a connecting railroad, sold

tickets which bore a coupon for each road, which

coupon recited that it was good over that road. If

tne Y company refuses to honor a ticket in the hands

of a purchaser, wiiat, ir any remedy has he against

the X company?



EXAMINATION IN CONSTITUTIONAL LAW

February, 1915. Professor Green.

L A state statute made it a misdemeanor pun-

ishable by line for a person who had ever been

convicted of perjury to practice law after the pas-

sage of the act. Is the act valid as applied to a

Lawyer who had been convicted and punished for

perjury, and afterward licensed to practise, and

vy'tis engaged in practise when the law was enacted?

Is it valid as to such a lawyer if he was not pun-

ished, but his conviction was set aside on appeal as

unwarranted by evidence?

2. A state statute made it a misdemeanor for

employers in hiring or discharging workmen to dis-

criminate against members of labor unions because

of their membership. Discuss its constitutionality.

3. A state statute made it a misdemeanor to

combine with others to raise the price in intrastate

trade of commodities other than agricultural pro-

ducts, but provided that the act should not be con-

strued to forbid combinations of workmen to raise

wages. Discuss its constitutionality.

4. A state statute provided that ' unless cor-

porations of other states doing business in the state

should at the beginning of each year pay to the state

a sum equal to one per cent of their total assets

wherever situated, whether within or without the
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.State, their right to do business should cease. I-

an insurance corporation of another state, which

has long done business in the first state under a

license indefinite as to time, entitled to continue do-

ing business if it does not pay such sum? How
would you answer if, instead of an insurance com-

pany, it were a corporation for teaching law by cor-

respondence, which did business wholly by mail

from the state where it was incorporated?

5. A state constitution vested legislative pow-

er in the legislature without provision for referring

measures to popular vote. The legislature enacted

that at the next general election it should be sub-

mitted to the voters whether a statute TiMai \t-

force which gave the right to vote to all male citi-

zens twenty-one y^ars old should be* amended by

striking out the word "male", and that, if a major-

ity of the votes cast was found to be in favor of

striking it out, the statute should thereupon be

deemed to be amended accordingly. The election

was held and a majority found to be in favor of the

striking out. Have women a right to vote?

6. A state statute forbade the sale of milk

without license from the local board of health. X,

after hearing, was refused a license. He is prepar-

ed to show that he and his milk were and are unex-

ceptionable and that the board refused him a license

througli incompetence. What are his rights?

What would bo his rights if he could show that the
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board refused him a hearing and acted on hearsay

evidence that Ms milk was unwholesome 1

7. Is an act of Congress valid which provides

for condemning land for a public highway from

Lincoln's birthplace in Kentucky to his burial place

in Illinois!

8. Is an act of Congress which imposes a tax

on oleomargarine valid if the tax is so heavy that it

obviously will destroy the industry!

9. Are the following state statutes valid, if no

acts of Congress conflict? An act which prohibits

l)rii;giug into the state cattle which within six week-;

have been in any locality in which foot and mouth

disease was epidemic.

An act which provides that a freight rate on any

commodity between two points in the state shall not

exceed the rate on the same commodity to a further

point over the same line, even though without the

state; for example that the rate over the Alton

railroad from Chicago to Alton shall not exceed the

rate from Chicago through Alton to St. Louis,

10. Is a state general property tax valid as ap-

plir'd to articles brought from other states for sale

and awaiting sale in the original package?



EXAMINATION IN CONTRACTS.

Professor Decker.

1. M, a grocer of Champaign, wired N, a Chi-

cago commission merchant: "Wire best price for

Michigan potatoes by carload." N answered.

'"Can furnish at 90 cents cash, F. 0. B. Chicago."

M wired, "Can you not extend time of payment to

30 days!" Before he received a reply and on the

yame day M wired again: "You can send me three

carloads of Michigan potatoes as per your telegram

of this morning."

The price of potatoes had advanced two cents

on the Chicago market and N refused to fill the or-

der. Is he liable?

2. H, cashier of the Logan National Bank of

(Jhicago, absconded and a reward of $5,000 was of-

fered by the bank for his arrest. Notice of the re-

ward was published in the Chicago papers for about

30 days, and circulars were sent to the police of all

the cities of this country and leading foreign cities.

Ten years latter S, a detective of the New York

police force, recognized H as he was landing from

a steamer in that city, and caused his arrest. lie

V7as subsequently tried and convicted in the United

^States District Court at Chicago, the olfense being

punishable under the National Banking Act.

(a) Is S legally entitled to the reward f Dis-

cuss all possible defenses which might be reasonably

open to the bank if sued for the reward.
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(b) Would the liability of the bank be affected

if, three months after the publication of the first no-

tice it had published a second notice in the Chicago

papers withdrawing the reward?

3. X on May 1st mailed a letter at Urbana, ad-

dressed to Y at Springfield, 111., offering to sell a

house and lot in Urbana and asking for a reply by

return mail. Because of X's failure to put Y's street

address on the envelope, the letter was not delivered

to Y until the afternoon of May 3rd. Y immedi-

ately went to the office of the Western Union Tele-

graph Co. and at 5 p. m. handed the operator a

message prepaid to be sent to X accepting the of-

fer. This message was not delivered to X until

lo a. m. next day, which, however, was as early as

a letter mailed the previous afternoon would have

reached X. Not having heard from Y on the

third, as he expected, X had contracted with Z to

sell him the property an hour before getting Y's

telegram.

WTiat are the respective rights of X, Y and Z?

4. (a) What is a contract under seal, how
was it made and by what actions was it enforced at

common law?

(b) To what extent has the common law re-

lating to this form of contract and its incidents been

changed in Illinois ?

5. What was Slade's case and what was its
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importance in the development of contnictual rem-

edies?

6. X owed P a bill of $50 for repair work on

X's automobile. Some time later X again ran his

machine into P's garage for repairs and a further

bill of $20.00 was incurred. P thereupon refused

to let X take the machine out of the shop until both

bills were paid or X had given him some security,

X thereupon got D to guarantee the paj^ment of

feoth accounts within 30 days and P released the ma-

chine. By the mechanics' lien law, P was entitled

to hold the machine as security for the second bill,

but had lost his lien as to the lirst bill.

(a) If X does not pay the account within 30

days, is D liable on his promise?

(b) Would it atfect your answer if we were to

absume that P honestly believed that he was legally

entitled to hold the machine for both bills?

7. The board of trustees of a church desired

to pay off an existing mortgage indebtedness of

$10,000 on the church property and to raise the ad-

ditional sum of $5,000 for repairs and additions.

They passed separate subscription papers and A
subscribed $500 toward the first amount and $250

toward the second. The full amounts were sub-

scribed. The trustees have paid part of the mort-

gage debt from subscriptions collected and liave let

contracts for the repairs and additions to the sum
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<]l $5,000, and part of the Vv'ork lias been dOiii\

Nearly all of the subscribers have paid their sab-

.scriptions. All are past due and A refuses to pay.

WTiat is the liability according to the law of Illi-

nois ^ Explain how the law of Illinois differs, if at

i>.il, from that of other jurisdictions on this state of

facts.

8. A contracted to build a house for B for

$6,ooo in accordance with certain plans and speci-

lications which called for Duplex brick. About a

week after the contract "\^ as made, B decided that he

preferred Simplex brick and A agreed to make the

substitution without extra charge. Later, but be-

fore A purchased the brick, Simplex brick rose

sharply in price and A notified B that he could not

afford to use them unless B would add $200 to the

contract price. B agreed and the house was built

with Simplex brick. B now refuses to pay more

than $6,000. Is he liable for the additional $200?

9. X and Y lived in adjoining houses which

were very much alike. While both families were

away on vacations, X wrote to P to paint his house

in accordance with plans previously agreed upon.

P's men by mistake painted Y's house two coats be-

fore they discovered their error. When Y came

home and saw what had been done he said to P : I

guess the house needed paint all right and I like the

color. Send me your bill and I will pay it." He
later refused to pay. What is Ms liability?
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10. A owed B a note of $100 which was due.

B wrote to A, saying that he needed the money and

hoped that A would pay soon. A's father answer-

ed this letter, saying that A was sick and unable to

pay at that time, but would pay as soon as he got to

work again, and if B would wait patiently,

he, (the father) would guarantee the payment. B
waited for six months, during- which time A had ful-

ly recovered from his illness, and then sued the fa-

ther. He had never answered the father's letter.

What legal defenses may the father reasonably urge

in this suit and what is your judgment as to their

validity!



EXAMINATION IN CRIMINAL LAW.

(Discuss all points involved and give reasons fully)

Professor Vernier.

1. X, a negro woman, went to the police sta-

tion of a Georgia town and complained that Y, an-

other negro, had cursed her. On the following day

ah officer, without a warrant, went to arrest Y. Y
seized a shotgun and fled. The officer shot at Y,

wounding, him slightly. People on the street

joined in the chase, yelling, "Get him," "Shoot the

nigger," etc. VV, the leading pursuing citizen, had

almost reached Y, when Y wheeled and shot him

dead.

(a) Was the officer justified in shooting Yf If

not of what crime was he guilty?

(b) On an indictment for the murder of W has

Y any defense?

2. X and Y each wished to kill W and planned

to do so on the same day but with no common de-

sign. X gave W a box of candy one piece of which

contained poison, Y gave W an apple containing

poison. W ate the apple and the candy but suf-

fered no ill effects whatever, as the two poisons hap-

pened to neutralize each other. A week later W
heard of what X and Y had done and was so fright-

ened that he became seriously ill. X and Y were

indicted for (a) an assault, (b) a battery. Should
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other crime ?

3. Vary the facts of the preceding case to thi'?

extent: X induced W to eat the poisoned candy in

the morning. The poison in the candy would not

liave caused death for at least 24 hours. Y induced

W to eat the poisoned apple in the afternoon of the

same day. The poison in the apple was sufficient

to cause death within an hour. The poisons did

not neutralize each other as before. W died within

45 minutes. At the trial of X the court charged,

"If the defendanv wiih intent to kil! VV^ induced him

to eat candy containing poison which was certain

to produce death within a day or so, and if at the

time of Ws death that poison was chemically act-

ing upon Ws bodily tissue, he is guilty of murder,

although Ws death was hastened and was immed-

iately due to poison given by another acting inde-

pendently". X was convicted and on appeal al-

leged that the above charge was erroneous. Judg-

ment?

4. A statute makes it a finable offense "to

sell, or offer for sale, milk which has been diluted

with water, or to which any foreign substance has

been added". D was indicted under this statute

and it is proved that he sold milk containing chalk

and water to B. Should he be excused if he can

prove.

:
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(a) That the chalk and water were put into the

milk by his servant without his knowledge and

against his orders?

(b) That the chalk and water were added by a

mischievoue boy while D was temporarily absent

from the wagon?

5, X, a farmer, and his hired hand D, while

trimming a hedge, engaged in a political discussion.

D made some sarcastic remark about the farmer's

favorite, which so enraged the farmer that he start-

ed after D with a hedge knife. D saw that the far-

mer was enraged, and believed that his life was in

danger. The farmer was still some distan^p awp^^

and D could easily have escaped. Instead of re-

treating D told the farmer to stop, and when X
continued to advance in the same manner, D drew a

revolver and killed X. Of what crime, if any is D
guilty!

6. (a) A statute made it a criminal offense

to extort money from another by putting in fear.

D, in order to obtain money from W, threatened to

falsely accuse her of a serious crime. W gave the

money demanded, not under the influence of fear,

but for the purpose of prosecuting D. Is D guilty

of the offense named in the statute, or of an attempt,

or should he go free?

(b) D believing that he was under the lawful

age, voted at an ejlection. In fact he was of voting

age. Is he guilty of an attempt to vote unlawfully ?
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7. X entered a train and took a seat with G, a

stranger. S, also a stranger to X came in later,

v'.earing a badge and, falsely pretending to be a

baggage-master, told G that he must pay excess

charges of $5 on his baggage. G in reality had no

baggage on the train, but was an accomplice of S.

G, however, offered his check for $5 in payment of

the pretended charge. S said he could accept only

cash. G then turned to X and asked him to cash

the check and hold it until the next town was reach-

ed, when the money would be returned. X handed $5

to S. G and S then rushed from the train taking

both the money and the check. Should G and S be

indicted for larceny or for obtaining money under

false pretences ?

8. X killed D. The killing is admitted, but X
v;.'ishes to show that he killed T) while laboring un-

der an insane delusion to the effect that D was try-

ing to marry X's mother against her consent. A
statute required insanity to be specially pleaded.

To an indictment for murder X pleaded not guilty

on the ground of insanity. Under what circum-

stances, if any, could this be a good defense on the

above facts. State the rule in McNaghten's case

as to insane delusions and insanity in general,

what do you think of the rule and why? Who
should have the burden of proof as to the issue of

insanity?

9. X, Y and Z are playing ball in the city

streets contrary to a city ordinance, attaching a
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fine of $5 to $25 to the offense, X is pitching, Z
catching and Y batting. They are aged 6, 16 and

13 years, respectively. Y bats the ball through a

neighboring window, and a piece of glass strikes a

child playing on the floor, cutting the child, who
bleeds to death. All three are indicted for (a)

maliciously breaking a window, (b) for manslaugh-

ter. Should any of them be convicted on either

charge 1

10. H married W, H at the time having a wife
still living. He was indicted for bigamy under the

ordinary bigamy statute. Has he any defense un-

der the following states of fact!

(a) He knew his first wife was living and that

there was a law against bigamy, but remarried be-

cause of his religious belief,

(b) Assume the facts to be the same as in (a) but

add that H. believed the bigamy statute to be un-

constitutional and that he had been so informed by
a practicing lawyer.

(c) Assume that H remarried because he bona
fide believed that his first wife had obtained a di-

vorce; that she had in fact obrained a divorce in

another state and that the divorce decree was void
owing to a lack of jurisdiction in the court granting
it.

(d) Assume that H remarried six months after

he heard that his first wife had died in a shipwreck.

that the wife was in fact alive, having been picked
up unconscious by a passing tramp steamer, so that

she was unable to communicate with her husban«<
until after his second marriage, and that under the

facts H was reasonable in believing that his fir=t

wife was dead.



EXAMINATION IN DAMAGES,

Professor Decker,

1. A suffered personal injuries in a wreck on

B's railroad caused by the negligence of B's em-

ployees. He called a physician who made an exam-

ination, said that A's knee was sprained but no

bones broken, and advised certain treatment. A
followed the treatment but did not regain the use

oi' his leg, and after three months consulted a spec-

la list, who found that a bone had been broken and

bad grown together in the wrong position. A then

underwent an operation in which the bone was re-

broken and properly set, but when it finally healed,

it was one inch shorter than before the injury, caus-

ing a permanent lameness.

In an action by A against B, can A recover

damages for the permanent lameness? Frame an

instruction to the jury on this point in behalf of the

plaintiff to which the defendant could not success-

fully object, making it as favorable to the plaintiff

as possible.

2. Supposing a verdict of $10,000 were rend-

ered in the foregoing case, which B thinks is exces-

sive, may he raise the question, and if so, how?

Should relief be granted? What is meant by a re-

mittitur?

3. Suppose A had been a bookkeeper until a

few days before the accident, but had given up that
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work and had just entered the employ of the New

York Life Insurance Co. as a solicitor of insurance,

being on his way, at the time of the accident, to take

up his new line of work. Can he recover for loss of

time, and if so, how should that loss be estimated?

4 What are A's rights in the foregoing cas*^

as to the recovery of

(a) The cost of doctors' services, providing it

were shown that the first physician to treat A re-

fused to make a bill after he learned of his mistake

ill diagnosis, and the specialist charged $300,

which A had paid.

(b) The cost of nursing, providing it were

shown that A had been nursed by his wife.

(c) The cost of his attorney's fee in this suit.

5. Could punitive or exemplary damages be

recovered by A in this suit? Discuss the general

question briefly as to the nature of such damages

and when they are allowable.

6-7. In the spring of 1914, P was building a

large hotel in the city of Champaign, the contracts

for which called for the completion of the building

by September 1. On May 1 P went to Grand Bap-

ids, Michigan, and there contracted with D, a furni-

ture manufacturer, for all of the furniture for the

hotel, much of which was to be of a special design.



D was informed of the time that tbe building was

to be completed and of the fact that the University

was located in Champaign and that there was a

special demand for hotel accomodations at about

fhat time of year. With this knowledge, D prom-

ised to deliver the furniture not later than Septem-

ber 1st, but failed to do so. The furniture began

to come in small lots about September 15th, but did

not all arrive until November 20th. The office and

dining-room furniture, which was specially design-

ed, was the last to arrive. If the furniture had

been delivered as agreed, the hotel could have been

open for business by September 15th, but under the

(»ircumstances, it was not opened till December 1.

Supposing that P were to sue D for breach of

his contract and the trial were to occur in May^

1915, by what principles should the damages of P
be determined? In answering you may assume any

further facts peculiar to actual local conditions as

to mai'ket for furniture, etc., as you may deem nec-

essarv.

8. Supposing that P, in the prior question,

had in August, 1914, contracted with X, Y and Z,

as clerk, housekeeper and chef of the hotel respec-

tively, each for a year commencing September 15th,

and had paid them their salaries accordingly,

though their services were of no value to him until

the hotel was opened. Would P be entitled to re-

cover the amount of the salaries so paid in his suit

against D?
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9. A recovered a judgment againH't B urn)

placed an execution in the hands of C, a sheriff, for

service, C levied on a horse which he found in B's

possession. X sued C in trover and established his

title to the horse. What is the measure of X's

damage ?

Suppose C should offer evidence at the trial to

the effect that he sold the horse at execution sale

and that X bought it for $75, Is this evidence ad-

missible I Explain,

10. A and B owned land on opposite sides of a

..tream. A drove piles on his side of the stream so

as to deflect the current and cause it to wash away

land on B's side. B sues A for damages and proves

&t the trial that about 500 cubic yards had been wash-

ed away at the time suit was begun; and over A's

objection, is permitted to show that about 500 yards

more had washed away after suit begun but before

trial. After verdict for plaintiff, A moves for new
trial because of error in admitting said evidence.

Should the motion be granted!



EXAMINATION IN EQUITY.

Professor Pomeroy,

(February 1915.)

I. Shaw leased to Harper; the lease gave Harper

Oie option to purchase the premises at the expira-

tion of the lease, the price to be fixed by valuers, one

appointed by Shaw and one by Harper ; the valuers,

in case of disagi'eement, to choose a referee. Har-

per gave the required notice of his desire to pur-

chase, and named Godkin as the valuer on his part

;

Shaw refuses to appoint a valuer or convey on any

terms. Harper now sues Shaw for specific perfor-

mance; asking that Shaw be compelled to appoint

a valuer; or, in the alternative, that the court fix

the price of the property and decree conveyance.

Should he succeed? State reasons fully.

11. Miller held an unrecorded first mortgage

on a tract of laud belonging to Babcock. Babcock

sought to effect a loan from Andrews, otfering the

land as security. Andrews, having no definite

reason to suspect that the land was already encumb-

ered asked Babcock whether there was any mort-

gage or lien on the land. Babcock replied, "Miller

did hold a mortgage on it, but the moi'tgage Iins

been paid off and discharged". Andrews therenp

on made- the loan and took the mortgage without

further inquiry. Was he aflFected with notice of

Miller's mortgage? Reasons.
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III. A contracted to sell Blackacre to B, who

went iuto possession and gave liis negotiable note

for the price, payable a year from date. Later, but

within the year, A sold and conveyed Blackacre to

O, who had no information regarding B's contract,

and paid full value; and a month later, but withia

the year, A transferred the purchase money note

for value to D, who knew nothing of the sale to C\

The note is still unpaid.

What are the rights aud remedies in equity, if

any, of C and D. against B, and of B against C and

D? Explain fully.

IV. In the three following cases, B, with A '-5

«.;onsent goes into possession of land orally sold by

A to B.

(a) B makes no payment on the price, and no

improvements. What reasons for considering th{}

taking possession an act of part performance suf-

ficient to take the contract out of the statute oi

frauds? Is it so considered in England? In the

United States generally? In Illinois?

(b) B makes a part payment of the price, but no

improvements.

(c) B makes valuable improvements, but no pay-

ment on the price.

In (b) and (c), are B's acts sufficient part per-

formance in England? In the United States gener

ally? In Illinois?
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V. B made a criminal ciiarge against C, and

obtained his arrest. A, the wife of C, not being un-

der duress, gave B her promissory note for $500^

which B still holds, on the consideration that B
should dismiss the charge against C. The note is

not yet due. A now brings suit to cancel the note

on the ground that it was given for an illegal con-

sideration. What result? Explain.

VI. Hardship or unfairness as a defense to

specific performance. State four propositions de-

rived from the cases studied, and illustrate each pro-

position, briefly, by appropriate facts, real or ficti-

tious.

VII. A contracted to sell a lot to B, the price

being made payable in 10 installments of $500 each,

on fixed dates. The contract provided that time

should be of the essence in all respects, and that if

default should be made in the pa>anent of any in-

stallment, the contract and all installments previous-

ly paid should be forfeited. B paid all installments

promptly except the 10th, which he tendered one day

late; his excuse being that he was too busy to

attend to the payment on the day when it should

bave been made. A refused to accept the last in-

stallment, or to return the others. B sues for spe-

cific performance. Give arguments pro and cun.

VIII. State four brief sets of facts, illustra-

ting four different species of constructive trusts.
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IX. Testator devised Blackacre to A in fee,

and in ease A should die without leaving lawful is-

sue living at the time of his decease, then to B in fee.

A is in possession of Blackacre under this devise;

he is sixty years old, unmarried, and without issue.

What waste on A's part may B enjoin, and what may
he not enjoin? May B enjoin A from opening and

working a coal mine on the premises I

X. The Victrola Company is engaged in the

business of manufacturing and selling graphophone«

in England and America. It engaged the services

of and P in England and America respectively,

each an inventor of unusual ability, to make inven-

tions for the purpose of perfecting the V. Go's ma-

chines. and P each contracted to give "the whole

of his time" to the V. Co. for four years. The V.

Co. also employs several hundred traveling sales-

men in England and America at salaries of $100 to

$200 per month. Each salesman is under contract

not to accept employment from any other grapho-

phone company within four years. Within the four

years, 0, P and numerous salesmen, breaking their

contracts, left the V. Co. and began to work for a

rival company. WTiat relief, if any, may the V. Co.

have in English courts of equity against and the

English salesmen, and in American courts of equity

against P and the American salesmen?



EXAMINATION IN ILLINOIS PROC'EEDURE

Dean Harker.

L "A" and "B" are partners in the grain

business at Champaign. "A" resides at Milwaukee

Wis., and "B" resides at Indianapolis, Ind. For

;8everal years after the business was started they

both resided at Champaign. Neither has been in

Champaign for several years but the business is

conducted by "C" on a salary. "D", a resident of

Chicago, asserts a claim against the firm which is

disputed. Representing "D" where would you

bring suit, and how would you obtain service '

2. '*A" has brought suit in ejectment against

"B" to recover lot 4 in Block 5 in the Forestry

Heights Addition to the City of Urbana. "B" de-

fends under a tax title which fails because the ]n-o-

perty was sold for delinquent taxes under a void

judgment. Subsequent to obtaining his deed "B'^

in good faith, erected a residence on the lot. State

the proceeding in detail through which he may ob-

tain compensation for the improvement.

3. State the difference between reviewing a

judgment of the circuit court for appeal and by writ

of error. Representing a client who feels aggrieved

by the judgment, state under what conditions you

would advise an appeal and the conditions that

would prompt you to advise a writ of error.
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4. Draft a declaration for tlie First National

Bank of Champaign upon a promisory note execut-

<&d by James Brown to Walter Jones, endorsed by

Walter Jones to the State Bank of Tolono, lUss,, and

endorsed by the State Bank to the plaintiff.

5. Draft a plea of non-assumpsit and a special

plea of failure of consideration for a promisory note

executed by Wm. Mott to Henry Rhea for $200.00 in

payment of a gasoline engine, the claim being that

the engine failed to furnish fifteen horse power as

guaranteed by Henry Rhea.

6. '*A", late resident of Urbana, Ills., died,

interstate, leaving a widow and four children as his

only heirs at law. He died owning personal pro-

perty in Champaign county valued at $6000.00, real

estate in Champaign county valued at $10,000.00 and

real estate in Worth county, Iowa valued at $30,000-

00. He left an indebtedness of $20,Q00.00. Retain-

ed by the widow to conduct the Estate through the

Pprobate court, mention each step that you would

take in securing a proper and complete administra

tion.

7. James Dodd, a former merchant in Cham-
paign, Ills., closed out his stock of goods to Henry
Dodd, a brother, and went to Los Angeles, Cal. Sept.

14, 1914. When he sold to his brother he was in-

debted to the Chicago Furnishing Co. a corpora-
tion in Chicago engaged in manufacturing and sel-
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lin^ gents furnishing goods in the sum of $1,250.00

for goods consigned to him August 15th 1Q14. He
is the owner of a vacant lot described as lot 4,

block 6 Railroad Addition to the City of Cham-
paign, 111. It is the contention of the Chicago
Furnishing Co. that the sale to the brother was
fraudulent. Prepare all the papers necessary to

secure a judgment in rem against the real estate

and the stock of goods.

8. May the order of the Circuit Court in re-

committing a petitioner in habeas corpus charged

with a criminal offense be reviewed on writ of er-

ror?. State the views expressed by the Supreme
Court upon the question.

9. How has the statute of Illinois modified the

ancient practice in mandamus proceedings f

10. State the difference between the two kinds

of certiorari known to the law in Illinois.



EXAMINATION IN MORTGAGES.

Professor Pomeroy.

February 1915.

I. A sold certain machinery to B for use in

B's mill, A retaining title to the macliinery until

paid for. On February 1st B mortgaged the mill

with all its machinery and fixtures to C, to secure

a, note for $10,000, which was more than the mill

property without the machinery is worth. On that

date a part of the machinery had been put in place

and a part was stored in a shed; the latter part,

however, was put in place within a month. By the

law of the jurisdiction, the title of a conditional

vendor of chattels is good even against a bona fide

purchaser of the chattel. Can C, who was ignorant

of A's title to the machinery, include the machinery

in his foreclosure sale? Reasons.

II. On September 1, 1914, A leased a house to

B for a year, the rents being payable quarterly, on

December 1, March 1, etc. On Dec. 2 A mortgaged

the premises to C ; by the tenns of the mortgage the

mortgagee was entitled to immediate possession.

On June 1, 1915, no rent having been paid for either

of the three quarters, A demands the rent; B pays

A for the first two quarters and promises to pay A
the third quarter's rent within a week. On June 2,

1915, C demands of B all rents since the beginning

of the lease ; B, notwithstanding paid the third quar-

ter *s rent to A. Both A and C demanded rent on
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September 1, 1915; on B's failure to pay either par

ty, C sues B for all the rents for the year. B had'

knowledge of the mortgage as soon as it was mad'",.

What result? Reasons.

III. A mortgaged land to B to secure a negot-

iable note for $1000, payable April 1st. On Marcii

1st, B, for a valuable consideration, assigned the

mortgage, with a forged note, to C. On May Is'^

for value, he indorsed the genuine note to D, wha
took in good faith without notice of the assignmeiit

to C. On February 1st, A had made a payment t-^

B of $400 on the mortgage debt, of which fact neith-

er C nor D had notice.

What rights have C and D respectively upoii

the mortgage and upon the notef Reason. If 11'-

inois law differs from the law of other jurisdictions^

state both.

IV. M mortgaged lots 2 and 3 to B by the sanie

mortgage, which was recorded. Later, he mortgag-

ed lots 1 and 2 to C by a single mortgage, which wa.t

also recorded. Still later, he mortgaged lot 3 to D.

On a foreclo-sure to which B, C and D were all part-

ies, what lots should be sold, and how should the

proceeds be divided? Analyze the situation care-

fully, showing the equities of the different parties.

V. Cook mortgaged to Rogers. On Cook's de-

fault, Rogers went into the possession of the prem-
ises, received rents and profits for a year, amount-
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ing to $800, expended $200 for taxes, foreclosed,and

sold the premises on foreclosure for an amount

$200 in excess of the principal, interest, and costs.

Tompkins, a creditor of Cook's, now sues Cook and

garnishes Rogers as a debtor of Cook's in the

amount of $800, Should T recover on his garnish-

ment? Reasons in full.

VI. What are the two competing theories un-

der which the mortgagee may hold personally liable

tlie mortgagor's grantee who has assumed payment

of the mortgage debt? Apply these two theories to

the following facts,

A mortgaged to M. A then sold to B, who as-

sumed the mortgage debt; later, B sold to C, who

likewise assumed the debt. Later, and before M
knew of these transfers, A released B from his lia-

bility. M foreclosed, the foreclosure sale resulting

in a deficiency. Which of the parties, if any, may
be held liable for the deficiency! Explain fully.

VII. A manufacturing company mortgaged its

plant for $1,200,000 to A, B and C, to secure three

notes of equal amount. Later, it made a mortgage

of $200,000 to D. Still later, desiring to enlarge the

plant, it mortgaged to E for $500,000, A and B
agreeing to postpone their claims to E's claim,

while C declined to enter into such an agreement.

On a foreclosure to which all were parties, it is as-

serted that on account of the agreement, mortgage

claims should be paid in this order; ist, C; 2nd, D;
3rd, E: 4th, A and B. Is this correct? How should
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the foreclosure prqfoeeds be divided (a) if they

amount to $1,500,000; (b) if they amount to $qoo,-

000? Eeasons.

VIII. When statute of limitations has run
against a note secured by mortgage, is foreclosure

barred? On what grounds do the two competing
rules on this subject rest! What is the Illinois law
on the subject? "VVliat is the effect, if any, on the

running of the statute, of mortgagor's absence
from the state?

IX. A mortgaged to B three adjoining lots, 1,

2, 3. Afterward he conveyed lot 1, the westerly of

the three, to M; this deed was recorded; then lot 3,

the easterly of the three, to N ; this deed was not re-

corded ; then lot 2, lying between 1 and 3 to 0. The
last deed described the lot as bounded on the east by
the land of N and on the west by the land of M. On
foreclosure, claims that lot 3 should be sold be-

fore his own because he supposed when he bought
that lot 3 still belonged to A.

State and explain principles'involved.

X. A mortgaged to B a flour mill and an ad-

joining farm. Default being made, B took posses-
sion

; he rented the farm to his friend C for (a) $800

;

he operated the mill in person, at a net loss of (b)

$200. He spent (c) $400 in repairing the roofs of

the farm buildings, which were leaky, and (d) $600
in putting in a furnace for heating the house, which
previously had been heated by stoves. A fair rental

for the mill would be (e) $1000; for the farm with-
out item (c) of repairs, would be (f) $1000, with the
repairs and without the furnace $1200, and with
both (g) $1400. After B had been in possession
one year, A seeks to redeem. Which of the items,
(a, b, c, d, e, f, g,) should be deducted from, and
which added to, the amount of the mortgage debt
•lud interest? Reasons.



EXAMINATION IN MUNICIPAL
CORPORATIONS.

Professor Pomeroy.

(February 1915)

I. State, and illustrate briefly, four proposi-

tions derived from the cases studied, relating to the

remedies of judgment creditors of a municipal cor-

poration.

II. The city of X passed an ordinance giving

to a railroad company the exclusive right to occupy

two thirds of the width of a street with its tracks

and buildings; and giving the company a similar

right to occupy one half of a school lot. The ordin-

ance was unauthorized by charter or statute. The

company in reliance on the ordinance occupied the

street and lot for forty years, making improve-

ments worth $300,000, and claiming adversely to the

city. The city now sues for injunction to compel

the removal of the company's tracks and buildings.

The defendant pleads statute of limitations, pre-

scription, and estoppel.

Argue the case in behalf of the city. How, in

your opinion, would it be decided in Illinois!

III. A city had charter authority to buy and

own necessary tools and materials for use in the

improvement of its streets. A statute prohibited

the storing of dynamite within the limits of incor-

porated cities. The city rented A's building in the
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city for the expressed purpose of storing dynamite

accessary for use in blasting streets, and agreed

with. A to use due care. Through the negligence of

the city's employees A's building and the adjoining

building of B were blown up and destroyed. A
sues the city for the rental of the building and for

breach of the city's contract to use due care. B
sues the city in tort. Can either recover?

Reasons,

IV. In 1910 the charter of the city of A was

revoked by the legislature and all its teritory equal-

ly divided between and annexed to the adjoining

cities, B and C. In 1915 half of the territory so an-

Qexed to C was erected into the new city of D. The

statutes were silent as to the assumption of the debts

of A by B, C or D. Plaintiff, owning bonds issued

by A in 1908, sued B, C and D the^-eon in 1918.

Could he recover against any or all? What became

of the public real property owned by A?

V. Discuss, on principle, the validity of ordin-

ances compelling abutting property owners to re-

move snow from sidewalks in front of their pre-

mises.

VI. Rights of abutting owner who does not

own the fee of the street, to damages for injuries to

his property, (a) from a railroad in the street,

built there under authority from legislature; (b)

from a change of grade of the street. State the rules
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in these two subjects. (1) in Illinois before 1870^

(2) in New York to day; (3) in Illinois today.

Reasons.

VII. Discuss the validity of an act of the legis-

lature of Illinois erecting a designated territory in

the state into a municipal corporation, without a

vote of the inhabitants of the territory.

VIII. A was tried in the Circuit Court of

Champaign county for the offense of keeping a pub-

lic gambling house. He offered to prove, under a

plea of former conviction that he had been duly con-

victed of the same offense under an ordinance of the

city of Champaign. Should proof of the former

conviction be allowed!

Discuss question fully, showing the various

views that have been held of the situation where

the same act is made an offense by statute and by

ordinance. What is the Illinois holding?

IX. State, and illustrate briefly, three propo-

sitions relating to the liability of a city in assumpsit

for services rendered, money or property received,

etc., on an ultra vires contract.

X. Give two instances of liability of a city for

''defect in plan" of a public work or improvement,

and distinguish from cases holding city exempt
from liability for ''defect of plan".



EXAMINATION IN PARTNERSHIP

First Semester 1914-15.

PROFESSOR HALE.

I.

A, a boy 18 years of age, B a raarried woman,

and 0, an unmarried adult enter into a partner-

ship agreement to continue for three years. Each

contributes $500 to the capital of the partnership.

The firm owes debts amounting to $1800. The

capital is in intact. What are the rights of the credi-

tors of the firm in enforcing their rights?

11.

A owned a store building, B had some money

to invest, and C had had 10 years' experience in

the mercantile business. It was agreed that A
would furnish the building, B the money to buy a

stock of merchandise and C would manage the busi-

ness. For the use of the store A was to receive one

third of the net profits, for the use of the money B
was to receive one-third of the net profits, and

was to receive one-third of the net profits as salary.

In the course of the business C purchased goods of

X to the value of $1000. This bill not being paid

when due, X sues A, B and C as partners. What
judgment?

ni.

(a) The X company, a partnership was en-
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•gaged in the wholesale grain business, and was

composed of A and B. The Y company, a partner-

ship, was engaged in the retail grain business and

was composed of A and D, Grain was sold by the

X company to the Y company on credit to the

amount $500. It was agreed that the bill would be

paid in 30 days after the purchase. The 30 days

have elapsed and the bill has not been paid. How
may the X company realize upon its claim?

(b) A and B are in partnership. A sells a

horse to the firm for $100 to be paid for in 30 days.

Can A compel payment of this claim when it is due?

Suppose A assigns his claim to X, what are X's

rights 1

IV.

A and B had been engaged in a partnership

business in Champaign under the name of the A B
C/Ompany. A sold out to B and granted the right

to B to continue business under the old firm name.

Thereafter B bought goods of X, of whom the firm

had for many years bought goods. The amount of

this bill was $500. B also bought $500 worth of

goods from Y, with whom the firm had never had
any dealings.

(a) X sues A and B as partners. What judg-

ment?

(b) Y sues A and B as partners. ^Yhat judg-

ment?
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(c) Would your answer be any different m
either case if the partnership business had been

carried on under the name of the Acme Company?

Jones, Smith and Brown were engaged in the

wholesale grocery business under the iirm name of

Jones, Smith & Co. Smith and Brown sold theii

interest including the good will to Jones, who took

Johnson and Davis into partnership with him and

continued the business under the firm name of

Jones, Smith & Co.. Smith and Brown associated

with themselves another person by the name of

Jones, who was not related to their former partner,

and established a wholesale grocery business under

the firm name of Jones, Smith & Co., the business

being conducted in a building next door to that of

the original firm, and the front of the building, in-

cluding the sign, being painted in the same general

style as that of the original building. The new

firm advertised its business in the newspapers and

by circulars sent out to retail grocers, many of

whom had been customers of the old firm. Does

either firm have any cause for complaint against

the other?

VI,

X, Y and Z, having dissolved the partnership

which had existed between them, X undertook to

settle up the firm business, and in the course of do-

ing so reached a settlement with A by which it was



agreed that tlie firm was indebted to A to the

amount of $1,000; he also made a part payment ob

a debt of the firm to B which at the time of pay-

ment was barred by the statute of limitations.

€an either A or B in an action against the firm tak«

advantage of X's settlement or part payment?

VIL

A and B were partners in the butcher business,

doing business under the firm name, Boston Meat
Co. With money which they had contributed to

the firm they purchased Blackacre and built thereoa
a slaughter-house and used it in connection with
their business. With profits accumulated in the

business they purchased Whitacre for speculation.

They also kept on hand a herd of fifty beef cattle.

All the cattle were purchased under a bill of sale

to the Boston Meat Co.
Blackacre and Whitacre were each conveyed

to A and B.

A died. What part of this property may be
used in paying firm debts and how may the results

be accomplished?

VTII.

A, B and C were in partnership. A conveyed
his interest to X, B conveyed his interest to Y and
C conveyed his interest to Z; each conveyance be-
ing made for the purpose of satisfying a personal
debt. At the time of these conveyances the firm
owned property of the value of $6,000 and owed
debts amounting to $10,000.

(a) What may the firm creditors do in such a
case?

(b) Would your answer be the same if the con-
veyances had been made after proceedings for d
dissolution of the partnership were instituted?



EXAMINATION IN P^ERSONAL PROPERTY

Professor Green.

1. What is a chose in action. Give examples,.

2. If A wrongfully takes and detains B's.

goods, what remedies has B!

3. A had a gold watch chain. B had another

chain just like it. A accidently broke B's chain^

and B, to get even, broke two links from A's chain,

took them to a jeweler along with his own chain and

had the jeweler in mending the chain incorporate

A's links so chat no one could tell which links they

were. A carried off the whole chain from the jew-

eler !. Wliat are B's rights '2

4. A, B and C each had in his pocket a coin of

unknown denomination. A stole the coins of B and

G and put them in his pocket without noticing what

they were. He then went to D's soft drink empor-

ium and bought a ten cent drink. Pending he had

two quarters and a fifty cent piece, he paid one of

the quarters to D, who put it on a shelf by itself

and gave A a nickle and a dime in change. What
rights in the various coins have A, B, C and D?

5. A landlord leased his farm for three years

to a tenant who agreed in the lease not to remove

from the farm manure made from fodder grown
upon the farm. The tenant fed some of his cattle

on fodder grown on the farm and others on pur-
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^cliased fodder. The manure was all alike and lie

mixed it in a single heap. When the lease was up

he left the farm, but the landlord prevented him

from taking away any of the manure. May he sue

the landlord in trover?

6. A lent B a book to read free of charge, and

B took it away. C asked A for the book, and A
said, '*I hereby make you a present of it; it is

yours". He then handed to C a note to B which

read, *'I have given the book to C ; deliver it to him.

(signed) A." showed the note to B and demand-

ed the book, but B refused to give it up. C sued B
in trover. What decision?

7. A, in consideration of money paid by B,

.signed and delivered to B a written assignment of

the following claims:

(a) a claim against X for damages for assault;

(b) a claim against Y for damages for convert-

ing A's horse;

(c) a debt owed by Z for board and lodging.

Explain what rights, if any, B gets by the assign-

ment and how he may enforce them.

8. P„ who already owed money to a laundry-

man for washing, sent him a bundle of clothes to

wash at the prices printed in the laundry list. ^Alic^

they were ready, P called for them, but having with
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him only half enough money to pay for them, tend-

ered what he had and asked for the clothes, or at

least as many of them as his money would pay for.

The laundryman said, "I will not let you have a

single piece unless you pay for all this washing

and also what you owe for previous washing.""

WTiat are P^s rights?

9. Write a brief account of the law about

either wild animals,, wreck, or estrays. Answer as

to one only.

10. Explain briefly how one may acquire title

to personal property by gift, how by judgment in

aE action in rem, and how by satisfaction of judg-

ment in trespass or trover. Answer as to each.



EXAMINATION IN REx\L PROPERTY.

(Please give reasons in full)

Chas, E, Carpenter,

L

A owned Blackacre which adjoined the two

woodlots X and Y owned by B. For more than 20

yrs. A had been taking all the timber he needed to

use on Blackacre from the lots X and Y. He took

the timber under a claim of prescriptive right to all

the timber growing on X and Y. A conveyed

Blackacre to C (the right to take timber from X
and Y not being mentioned in the deed) C then

purchased lot X of B and assigned to D the right

to take the wood from lot Y. Who has the right to

take the wood growing upon Y : A, B, C or D ?

n.

(a) A and B are adjoining land owners. A
has a large brick dwelling house on his land which

stands close to the dividing line between A and B.

B makes an excavation on his land but takes precau-

tion to build a wall to furnish A's land lateral sup-

port. Because of this removal of lateral support

A's land sinks causing damage to A's house.

A sues to recover for the damage thus done.

What result?

(b) if B failed to give A notice that he was go-

ing to or had excavated or
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(c) if B was negligent in making the exeava-

or

(d) if C' a trespasser witlioiit B's knowledge*

or assent made the excavation would you reach a

different result as to A's right to recover from Bf

III.

A and B owned adjoining piece of land, X and

Y. A had an aluminum factory on his land X
which for twenty-five years poured out hydrogen-

sulphide fumes and other noxious vapors over the

land Y, in such manner that the health of anyone

residing on Y would have been seriously impaired.

Throughout the twenty-five years no one dwelt upon

Y. B then conveyed Y to the C company whic^r

erected a hospital upon it. A continued to pollut;^

the air in the same manner as before and great in-

jury was caused to D and E, patients in the hospitah

May D, E or C have an action against A

I

IV.

A, tenant in fee simple of Blackacre, granted to

B and his heirs a right of way across Blackacre to

'that parcel of land owned by B, commonly known
as Whitacre, and now used as a sheep pasture."

Thereafter A conveyed Blackacre to C and B con-

veyed Whitacre to D. For over twenty years from
the time of the original grant, the way was used only

to drive sheep to and from Whitacre. D now wish-

es to erect a factory upon Whitacre. Has he a

right to use the way for the purpose of bringing in

the materials to build such a factory?



V.

The plaintifT was leasee of farm laud adjoin-

mg a tract of land owned by the defendant. The

plaintiff grew celery and water cress upon his land

and irrigated the same with water taken from

Spring Creek.

To supply water to a lake and artificial reser-

voir in a park on his land and also to supply watei"

to a village near by, the defendant with A's per-

mission constructed a pipe through A's land to

Spring Creek and wells on his own land and

maintained and operated a pumping station there.

The defendant's operation of his pumping station

lowered the flow of water in Spring Creek so much.

as to render the plaintiff's irrigation plant useless

and lowered the underground water table on his land

so greatly that plaintiff found his land unfit for the

cultivation of celery and water cress. Plaintiff'

wseeks damages and a perpetual injunction to restrain

defendant from operating his pumping station.

What result?

VI.

A, who was tenant for life of a tract of land on

Jan. 1st. leased the land to B for 10 years reserving

rent payable annually. B on the same day sublet

the land to C for 5 years reserving rent to himself,

the rent payable annually. At the end of one year

B assigned his entire interest to A and A died on
the first day of September of the second year after

executing the lease to B. Is X the reversioner in
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fee or A^'s executor entitled to the rent for the whole

or a portion of the second year! Discuss the ques-

tion from the standpoint of the common law prior to

1738, of the later English law and of the law in the

states, Ho^v^ would it affect your answer if A was

a tenant in fee instead of a tenant for life and X
was his heir instead of a reversioner?

VII,

A owned a tract of land of which he had never

taken actual possession. About one third was

woodland, and the remainder cleared land, B owned

an adjoining tract and leased it to C from year to

year. Neither A's nor B's land was enclosed. C
thought that his lease covered A's land, and each

year cultivated the cleared portion, and occasion-

ally cut timber upon the woodland. After the lapse

of 12 years B sold his land to D. The deed did not

embrace A's land. C attorned to D, and C continued

to use A's land for 10 years more. Neither B, D,

nor C knew that C was using land which belonged

to A. C died, and his heir claimed A's land as his

own. \Vho is entitled to A's land.

VIII.

A, tenant in fee simple of X (in Champaign)
granted to R, tenant in fee simple of Y (not immed-

iately adjoining X) a right to lay and maintain a

drain across A for the use of Y ; and A covenanted

drain across X for the use of Y; and A covenanted

for himself his heirs and assigns, to keep such drain
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m repair. The grant and tlie covenant were reeorcT

ed. A tiiei eafter conveyed X to C and B conveyed Y

to D. D erected upon Y much larger building than

had formerly been upon it, and the amount of

drainage passing through X was greatly increased.

Is C bound to let D send his drainage across X?
Is C bound to keep the drain in repair?

IX,

A, B and G are adjoining reparian proprietors

on a river 200 feet wide. An accretion, shaped like

a half-moon, forms by inperceptible degrees in front

of the three lots. It is fifty feet wide at the widesi

part. The land wears away by inperceptible de-

grees somewhat more on the other side of the river,

so that the river is now two hundred and fifty feet

wide in front of the lots. How would you divide

the accretion between these three lots?

A owns lot X. B owns lot Y. C disseises A
and occupies X adversely for 15 years. D then

disseises C and occupies X adversely for more
than five years longer. C and afterwards D use

without rsght a roadway leading from X over Y
to a highway. Each while in possession of X uses

their roadway openly and continuously. After D
has then used it for five, years or more, D permits

B to fence up the way and C brings an action for

the obstruction. What result?



EXAMINATION IN SALES.

(First Semester 1914-15)

PROFESSOE HALE,

N. B. Develop law and reasons fully,

I,

A had certain standing timber . on his land

suitable for fine cabinet work, A was a skillful

carpenter and had the nails, tools, etc., for cabinet

vf^ork. B paid him $100 for a desk to be made from.

this particular timber. B was to call for the desk

as soon as it was finished. When the desk was

completed A sold it to C. B claims the property

from C. AVhat decision?

11,

B went to A's factory and ordered an auto-

mobile of a certain make and description to be paid

for on delivery. B was to call for it in ten days.

A had a car of the kind and description ordered set

up, placed in a corner of the room by itself and

marked for B. The next day B wrote A that he

had changed his mind and did not wish the car.

WTiat remedy or remedies are open to A?

III.

A in response to an order from B shipped

certain goods by a common carrier to be delivered
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to B upon payment of the purchase price and trans-

portation charges. Upon the arrival of the goods,

B with the consent of the carrier took them home,

promising to pay for or return them the next day.

B in fact had no intention of paying for the goods

•or of returning them. He sold the goods to X, a

hona fide purchaser and refused to pay. What are

A's rights against X?

IV.

A told B he had a horse for sale. B looked

;at it, inquired the price, and was told $250. B
then questioned the character of the horse. It was

thereupon agreed that B should take the horse home
a,nd try it, and, if satisfied should execute a note

for the purchase money and give a chattel mortgage

•on the horse to secure the note. After a few days

B expressed himself as satisfied with the horse but

before the note and mortgage were given the horse

died,

(a) Whose loss?

(b) Suppose the horse had not died but had

been attached by X, a creditor of B and that A had

sued X for conversion. What judgment?

The following is a memorandum of a trans*

action between A and B

:

"B, bought of A Twenty five thousand bricks locat-
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ed on my farm near Champaigii at $6 per thousand^

$150. This price to be F. 0. B. cars Champaign,

arid consigned to B at Chicago.

Received payment.
(Signed) A.""

(1) Suppose before anything further transpires,,

._ goes into bankruptcy. Is A's assignee in bank-

I jptcy or B entitled to the brick?

(2) Suppose when lialf the bricks are loaded on

tue cars A goes into bankruptcy. \Vlio is entitled

i'j the bricks at that time on the cars?

VI,

B in Chicago ordered a car load of corn of

A in Champaign to be shipped F. 0. B. Champaign.

A shipped the corn, taking a bill of lading to A or

order. A indorsed this bill of lading in blank, drew

a bill of exchange on B for the purchase price, pay-

able at sight to A or order, indosed this bill of ex-

change in blank, handed both the bill of exchange

and the bill of lading to his office boy, K, and re-

quested him to deliver them to the X bank in Cham-

paign and to request the bank to collect and place

the amount collected to A's account.

(a) Instead of taking the bill of lading to the

bank, K, sold it to C a bona fide purchaser, and ab-

s 'onded. The bill of exchange was paid by B
vdien presented. C demanded the corn of the car-

rier when it reached Chicago. The carrier acting
under orders from both A and B refused to deliver
it. C sues the carrier for conversion. What judg-
ment?



(b) Would your answer be the same or otlier-

wise if K had lost the bill of lading and M had

found it and sold it to C ?

(c) Suppose K had delivered the bill of lading

and the bill of exchange to the bank as directed and

the corn had been destroyed between Champaign

^;Qd Chicago and before the bill of lading and bill

of exchange reached Chicago. Upon whom would

the loss fall?

vn.

February 1, B came to A and offered to pur

cLiase and A agreed to sell 1000 bushels of corn.

The com was in a separate bin and was inspected

and approved by B. It was understood that B
should call for the corn at any time he wished.

B was to pay for the corn on April 1,

(1) Assume that a creditor of A attaches the
corn before April 1 and before B calls for it.

What are B's rights?

(2) Assume that B goes insolvent before April
1 and while the corn is still in A's possession.

What are A's rights?

VIII.

The X R. R. Co. ordered from the Y Locomo-
tive Works an engine suitable for hill climbing,
giving the grades over which it was to be worked
and the weight of the load to be hauled. The en-
gine sent was not of proper design for the pur-
pose; and was in addition made in part of defec-
tive materials. What are the rights of the X R.
E .Co. against the Y Locomotive works?



EXAMINATION IN TORTS.

First Semester 1914-15.

PROFESSOR HALE.

N. B. Develop law and reasons fully in eacTi

answer.

I,

Ay with B^s consent left his horse Blackie in

B's stable. B had sold his own horse, Dobbin, to

C. Blackie and Dobbin looked so very much alike

that only a person very well acquainted with botli

could tell them apart. When C went to B's stable

to get Dobbin he took by mistake A's horse Blackie.

The choice was made by C only after careful in-

vestigation, and especially after inquiry of B as to

which stall Dobbin was in, and B's directions which

were wronj^, were obeyed. A sues C in trespass.

What should the result bef

II.

In the foregoing case A without discovering

the mistake, took Dobbin and pledged him to X,

and Y upon A's request rode the horse to X's

house and turned him over to X. Will trover for

conversion lie against either A, X or Y?

III.

A's team was tied to a public hitching fence

in the town of X, which was several miles from A's



63

house, B unhitched the team, removed the harness

•and hid it. The search for the harness caused

A a delay of two hours after the time of his in-

tended departure for home,

(a) A sues B for false imprisonment,

(b) May A have any other action in the place

of or in addition to the action of false imprison-

ment ?

(c) Would your answer be any different in

either case if A and B had been in the habit of

playing pranks upon each other?

IV.

A points an unloaded gun at B. A thinks the

gun is loaded. B knows it is not loaded. B sues

A for assault. What judgment?

V.

A while lawfully hunting and while in the ex-

ercise of reasonable care fired at a bird. The

shot glanced from the limb of a tree and struck B,

companion of A. Is A liable in tort to B? Dis-

cuss fully.

VI.

A drove his automobile around a corner at an

unreasonable rate of speed. By turning suddenly

to one side he managed to escape running over B
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by a margin of one foot. B was so greatly frigh-

tened that she became ill and suffered a miscar-

riage.

Is A liable to B in an action of assault or any

other form of action? Discuss fully.

VII.

A was engaged to be married to C, a sister of

B. It appears that upon a certain occasion B had

said that A was afflicted with syphilis.

(a) What facts should A include in his declara

tion to make out a prima facie case of slaudei

against Bf

(b) What different possible defenses would be
open to B?

(c) Which of these defenses, if any, are open to

reply by A and what would be the character of the

facts essential to an effective reply?

VIII.

A, a private citizen, went to B's house and
told B to consider himself under arrest and to come
with him. B, without offering any resistance, wen.
with A to the police station where A turned B over
to the police officers and signed a complaint charg-
ing B with haviiig committed a breach of the peace,

B was thereafter put on trial and acquitted. A's
reason for having arrested and prosecuted B waK
that he had overheard a friend of his say that B
had been in a fight the day before.

(a) Assume that B sues A for false imprison-
ment.

(b) Assume that B sues A for malicious prose-
cution. What judgment in each case?
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Examination in Bankruptcy,

June, 1915.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

PART FIRST.

I. (a) Smith signed Jones' promissory note

as surety, June 1, 1914. Brown is the present

holder of the note, and Jones has no defense. On
Nov. 1st, 1914, Jones filed a petition in bankruptcy

and was adjudged a bankrupt. Would Smith

have had a provable claim under former bank-

ruptcy statutes? How may he proceed under the

net of 1898? Explain fully.

(b) Give two reasons why a claim for arrears

of alimony was not affected by the discharge (be-

fore amendment of 1903.)

II. A proceeding under State insolvency law

is instituted against a business college, a corpor-

ation, which had committed an act of bankruptcy

and owed debts of $1500. It was objected that as

10 this corporation the State insolvency law was

superseded by the national bankruptcy act. Dis-

cuss this objection Pro and con.



III. An oral contract is made and broken by

the baukrupt between the filing of the petition

and the adjudication. Is the claim for the breach

provable? Reasons.

IV. (a) A made a general assignment for the

benefit of creditors. Of his thirteen creditors,

eleven accepted the assignment, two refused to ac-

cept. B, one of these two, filed a petition in bank-

ruptcy againt A within four months after the as-

signment. A asserts that under these circum-

stances a single creditor cannot file the petition.

What result? Reasons.

(b) A sells goods to B and retains possession

of the goods. What three views of the legal ef-

fect of this retention of possession, as between A
and his creditors? Which is the Illinois view?

V. A, being indebted, conveyed to B land

worth $12,000. The deed recited that it was made
in consideration of a prior indebtedness of $7,000

and of services previously rendered by B as agent

in the sale of A's goods. A had no other assets

of value. In a suit by A's creditors, it appears

that the $7,000 indebtedness was genuine, but that

B, though appointed A's agent, had never sold

any goods. B claims that the deed should stand

as security for the $7,000. Discuss independently

of the bankruptcy acts.

VI. A has an unliquidated claim against B

for damages for B's tort.



(a) Is B's voluntary conveyance, whereby B
becomes insolvent, a fraud on A?

(b) Can A join in a petition to have B ad-

judged bankrupt?

(c) Is A's claim provable in bankruptcy
against B's trustee?

(d) If A becomes a bankrupt, can A's trustee

enforce the claim against B?

VII. A was engaged in building a house for

B from May i to July i; B now being indebted to

A tor labor and material, A filed a mechanics'

lien, under the laws of the State; B at that date

was insolvent, and on October 30 a petition in

bankruptcy was filed against B. Does A retain

his lien? Reasons.

VIII. (a) On January 2, while A was insol-

vent, judgment was recovered on A's note without

his knowledge, execution was levied, and property

of A's sold on execution February 15th. On Feb-

ruary 12 a petition in involuntary bankruptcy was

brought against A. Has A committed an act of

bankruptcy? Explain.

(b) State, briefly, the history of the section of

the act of 1898 relating to the surrender of prefer-

ences, and its interpretation.



Examination in Contracts.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

1. John Smith desires to have the infant sun

of his nephew, Edward Smith, named after him-

self, and is wilh'ng to give $10,000 to the young
man when he comes of age in return for his being

so named. The parents are willing, and you are

requested to draft a writing to be signed by the

said John Smith for the purpose of binding him to

such an agreement. In drafting the instrument,

adopt a form which will insure to the said John

Smith, Jr.. if possible, the right to sue and recover

thereon in his own name in any jurisdiction follow-

ing the English common law, and state your rea-

sons for the form which you employ.

2. On March i, 1914, A bought certain nur-

sery stock from B, a nurseryman, for $50, of which

he paid $10 down, and agreed to pay the balance

in six months. B warranted the stock to be strong

and thrifty and agreed to replace next season any

which did not live. One-half of the stock died

during the summer.

(a) Is B entitled to the payment of $40 on

September ist.

(b) Would X be entitled to such payment if

B had sold to him the nursery business, including

all outstanding contracts, during the summer of

1914, and then left the State?



3- Smith owed Jones $«,ooo and Franks $«50o.

Being pressed for ()ayment by Jones, he assigned

to Jones a note and mortgage of Harris for the

sum of $1,500 with the oral understanding that

Jones would seil theiu and out of ihe proceeds

pay Franks S500 and ap})!y the remainder on the

debt which was due to himself. Jones sold the

note and mortgage for $1,000 and kept the pro-

ceeds, sending Smith a receipt in full for his debt.

(a) Is this agreement affected by the Statute

of Frauds?

(b) If in writing, what would be the rights of

Smith and of F"ranks respectively against Jones?

4. Jones, who owned a house and lot in Ur-

bana, put it into the hands of Peters, a real estate

agent, to sell. Peters got an offer of a trade from

one Grant of a lot in Champaign, with $1,000 to

boot. Jones examined a lot on West Church street,

which Grant pointed out, and told Peters to notify

Grant that he would trade. Peters accordingly

sent the following letter to Grant:

**Urbana, III., May i. 1915.

John Grant,

Chamgaign, III.,

Dear Sir:

—

Mr. Jones instructs me to say to you

that he accepts your offer of your lot on

Church street and $1,000 in exchange for



his house and lot in Urbana, each party to

give warranty deed and to furnish at once

an abstract showing good merchantable

title. Deal to be closed within ten days.

Wm. Peters."

To this Grant replied the next day in a note

addressed to Peters:

"Your note of yesterday relating to

trade with Jones is satisfactory to me. I

enclose abstract herewith.

John Grant."

The abstract was for Lot i lo of the plat of

Champaign, which was on West Church street,

and was the lot shown to Jones. Grant also

owned Lot i [ i adjoining, which at the time Jones

did not know. Jones owned only one house and

lot in Urbana.

(a) Assuming that the above facts are proven,

should a plea of the Statute of Frauds be sustained

in an action for breach of this contract by Jones

vs. Grant?

(b) Or in an action by Grant vs. Jones?

5. In addition to the foregoing facts, assume

that Jones never furnished an abstract to Grant,

but conveyed his house and lot on May 5th to

Williams, and that Grant did nothing further in

the matter until May 15th, when he commenced
suit. Ignoring the question of the Statute of

Frauds, is Grant entitled ro recover?



6. A hired out to B for a year at a salary

of $r,200, payable in monthly installments of $ioo.

On the 15th of the third month, A was taken sick

and later died. What are the rights of A's ad-

ministrator and of B respectively, assuming that

only the first month's salary had been paid?

How would your answer be changed, if at all,

if it be assumed that A had quit B's employ with-

out excuse on the 12th. three days before he was

taken sick?

7. A contracted to purchase, and B to sell,

B's entire apple crop for the season of 1914, deliv-

eries to be made as the apples were harvested,

and settlement to be made at the end of each

week for the apples delivered during that week.

A defaulted in payment at the end of the first

week, during which 500 bushels had been deliv-

ered. B sent another load on Monday following,

but as A did not pay, he then discontinued deliv-

eries and notified A that he had decided to sell

his apples elsewhere. A on the next day offered

to pay and asked B to continue deliveries, assur-

ing B that payment would be made promptly

thereafter. B refused to deliver and A thereupon

refused to pay for the apples delivered, and now
sues for damages. B puts in a counter-claim for

the price of the apples delivered. Decide the

case.

8. Davis took out an accident insurance pol-

icy which contained among others the following
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provisions: "No liability shall accrue under this

policy unless the insured shall file a sworn state-

ment of the nature and extent of the injury,

within 30 days from the date thereof, signed by

his attending physician, and accompanied by a

statement by the physician that in his opinion the

injury was accidental;" also, "This policy shall

immediately become void if the insured shall enter

or engage in the military service of any belligerent

nation in lime of war.

'

(a) Is there any distinction to be drawn be-

tween these two provisions as to their effect upon

the rights of the insured?

(b) What would be the effect of a refusal by

the physician to make the statement required by

the first provision?

9. A, a manufacturer of furniture, contracted

with B to make and set up in B's bank by a certain

day, a complete set of bank fixtures of special de-

sign. Just before the date of delivery, A's factory

burned down from causes unknown, and the com-

pleted fixtures were consumed. A never rebuilt

his factory and B ordered fixtures from C of the

same design, at an increased cost of $500. What
are the respective rights of A and B?

Would your answer be the same if the failure

of A to perform were due to strikes of his em-

ployees, instead of fire?
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lo. '*Urbana, 111., June i, 1914.

"Ninety days after date we promise to

pay to Frank Jones and Peter Smith the

sum of ($2,000) Two Thousand Dollars,

with interest at six (6) per cent from date.

William Black,

Theron Chase,

Harlan Whitney,

Alonzo Karcher."

On the back of the above instrument was in-

dorsed, "I hereby assign all of my interest to Peter

Smith." Signed, "Frank Jones."

Karcher died on July 15, 1914, and Frank

Evans was appointed as his administrator. Sub-

sequently Smith sues Black, Chase and Whitney.

Is there anything wrong with the parties

plaintiff and defendant?

Could Evans be joined in this suit or sued

alone?



Examination In Conflict of Laws.

(Give reasons in all cases.)

PROFESSOR VKRNIER.

1. T, domiciled in East St. Louis, Illinois, ex-

ecuted a will at St. Louis, Mo., while ill in a St.

Louis hospital. I recovered and became dom-
iciled in Denver, Colo., where helater died. The
will devised real estate in Illinois, Kan. and Okla.

to A and bequeathed personal property in Illinois,

and Mo. to B, and money in a N. Y. bank to C.

The will was executed so as to satisfy the laws of

Illinois, Colo, and N. Y., but did not comply with

those of Okla., Kan and Mo. Which of the leg-

acies and devices are good, if any?

Which State would furnish the law to govern

i 's testamentary capacity?

2. (a) Suit by W, wife of 11, against D for

alienation of affections. M and W lived in N. Y.,

as did D. After D alienated H's affections H and

O lived in adultery in N. Y. W then moved to Pa.

intending to permanently reside there with her

parents. This suit is brought in the Federal Court.

l)'s sole defense is lack of diversity of citizenship,

judgment ?

(b) H and W married and lived in Ohio. They
separated by consent, and W moved to N. Y., in-

tending to reside there permanently. She lived
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in N. Y. for 26 ye irs an(i died there in 1910. Her
husband continued to reside in Ohio. V\ died in-

testate, owning nothing but personal property.

Which law will control the distribution of her

property?

3. D, domiciled in Illinois, owns the follow-

ing property: land in Ohio, a mortgage on land in

Wisconsin, personal property permanently used in

connection with a store run by his agent in Wiscon-

sin, shares of stock in a New Jersey corporation,

and money on deposit in a New York bank.

State the proper place for taxing each of these

interests.

4. P sued D for breach of contract in Mo.,

and obtained a judgement for $5,000 damages. D
was personally served with notice of suit in Mo.

Ihe contract was made and was to be performed

in Miss., where D resided. After obtaining his

judgment in Mo. P brought suit in Miss, on the

judgment. D defended on the ground that the

contract was illegal by Miss, law, and the Miss,

court so finding, gave judgment for D. P carried

the case to the United States Supreme Court.

How should it be decided there?

5. (a) P filed a bill in Equity in Illinois to en-

join D from continuallv trespassing on P's land.

The land is situated just across the border in Wis-

consin. D is personally served in Illinois. Grant-
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ihg tliat this is a proper case for equity to act were

the land in Iliinois, what decree should be given?

(b) On the same state of facts assume that P

asks for a decree ordering D to remove a struc-

ture, which D has erected on the Wisconsin land,

and which constitutes a nuisance. What decree?

6. (a) P sues D in Minn, for trespass to really.

[) is personally served in Minn. The land is in

Wisconsin. Judgment?

(b) sues D in England on an alleged debt

and recovers judgment for ;^300. Suit is brought

in Illinois on this judgment. D sets up the fol-

lowing defense: That he is and has always been a

citizen of Illinois; that he was served with process

ill England when on the point of taking a steamer

home; that the service was so made and timed

For the purpose of embarrassing him. and obtain-

iiig an unjust and unfair advantage of him by pre-

venting a fair chance of defense without making a

prolonged stay abroad. Plaintiff demurred. Judg-

ment?

7. (a) P, the widow of H, sues D in Minn,

for wrongful death of H. The cause of action

arose in Montana. 1 he Montana statute gave the

widow a right to sue at any time within three years.

I'he Minn, statute was similar except that suit was

barred in two years. This suit was started be-

tween the second aud third year after H's death,

judgment ?
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(b) Facts same as above, except that Mon-
tana statute allows two years and Minn, statute al-

lows three years for brinjifing suit. Judgment?

8. A obtained a divorce from his wife R, in

Illinois and within a year married C in Mo. A and

C after a short trip returned to Illinois and lived

here until C died. The marriage in Mo. was in

ignorance of the Illinois statute forbidding divorc-

ed parties to marry within a year. Is A entitled

to the property rights of a husband in C's real es-

tate in Illinois?

(a) Under the Illinois statute as it now reads?

(b) If the Illinois statute forbids both parties

to a divorce to marry within a year "in Illinois oir

elsewhere," and provides that such a marriage

shall be absolutely void in Illinois?

(c) If the Illinois statute reads that a decree

of divorce shall not terminate the marriage "until

suit has been heard on appeal, or if no appeal be

taken until the expiration of the period allowed

for appeal," (which we will assume is one year?)

Would your answer differ if the marriage was

celebrated in Mo. in order to evade the Illinois

statute?



Examination in Corporations.

June, 1915.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

1. The stockholders of the Westfield Brick

Company, desiring to form a new corporation

with larger powers, incorporated the Westfield

Tile Company, which issued its shares in exchange

for the Brick company's shares. The Brick com-

pany paid all its debts and then conveyed all its

property to the Tile company. The deed includ-

ed a conveyance of its "franchises." The Brick

company's business was thereupon discontinued,

the terms for which its officers were elected expir-

ed, and no new officers were elected or meetings

held. Afterward the soil of land of X subsided

because of a pit the Brick company had formerly

dug on its own adjoining land. The owner of

land has an action for its subsidence against an

adjoining owner whose digging has caused it, and

the right of action comes into existence when the

subsidence occurs. What are X's rights and how
may he enforce them?

2. A statute conferred on railroad corpora-

tions power to condemn land for railroad pur-

poses. A railroad corporation, which because of a

slip in its organization proceedings was a de facto

corporation only, carried through proceedings to

condemn A's land for railroad purposes. A let
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the proceedings fzo V)y defaiilr, refused to accept

the amount awarded, and when the railroad enter-

ed to build its road sued in trespass the corporate

officers wiio directed the entry. Should he re-

cover?

3. The Board of trustees of a state univers-

ity were a body corporate. To ensure for the

faculty and students adequate facilities for bil-

liards, bowling and barbering, as w^ell as supplies

of candy, coca cola and chiii con carni, the board

took a conveyance from B of a building near the

campus well stocked and equipped for such pur-

poses and of its contents, and there conducted the

various kinds of business above referred to. To
secure the purchase price they gave B a mortgage

on the books in the university library. The price

was not paid when due. What are B's rights i*

4. District Courts of the United States have

jurisdiction of suits at common law and in equity

between citizens of different states where the

amount in controversy exceeds $3000. A citizen

of New York was a shareholder and director in a

New Jersey corporation. He offered to sell it

certain supplies needed in its business, and the
board of directors, at a meeting which he did not

attend, unanimously accepted the offer. The cor-

poration however refused to carry out the con-

tract, to his damage in the sum of $5000. What
are his rights against the corporation? May he

enforce them in a district court of the United

States?
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5. A corporation owned land. D, owning len

of its thousand shares, offered $10,000 for the

land, and at a stockholders' meeting it was unan-

imously voted that "D's offer is hereby accepted;"

and the secretary gave D a memorandum of such

acceptance sufficient to satisfy the statute of

frauds. Next day the directors, at a meeting of

the board, unanimously voted to accept an offer

of $1 1,000 then made by one of their own number
with knowledge of the previous action of the

stockholders, and the secretary pursuant to in-

structions from the board executed and delivered

10 him a deed. In whom is the legal and in whom
the equitable title to the land?

6. The stock of a trading corporation is di-

vided into a thousand shares, all issued and out-

standing, of which A, B and C have two hundred

each. The company needs money and A is wil-

ling to make a ten year loan, if he can during that

time have control of the company so as to ensure

a consistent management. Accordingly B and C
convey their shares to A in trust for ten years to

vote as he sees fit, and A, at the request of the

board of directors, lends the money. Next year,

B wants the vote on his former shares cast in a

way different from that in which A wants to cast

it, and the stockholders other than A, B and C,

not having been parties to the agreement, object

to any of the six hundred shares being voted at

all. May the shares be voted, and who is entitled

to determine how the vote shall be cast?



7. A corporation had authority to increase

its stock by a two thirds vote of its shareholders.

The stock was selling in the market at one half

its par value. By a two thirds vote, the share-

holders voted to increase the stock by a small

amount and to sell the new issue at auction. It is

admitted that it will sell considerably below par.

Can a dissenting shareholder enjoin the sale?

8. The directors of corporation A refused

without reason to declare a dividend though the

company had made enormous profits.

The directors of corporation B declared a

dividend but would not pay it.

The directors of C, an Illinois manufacturing

corporation, whose factory was in Champaign,

were about to cause the tcorporation to buy land

in the city to put up houses to rent for profit to

its workmen.

X is a shareholder in each company. What
relief may he have, if any, against the directors'

conduct, in what proceedings may he enforce it,

and who are proper parties defendant?

9. A has sold and delivered goods to the X
company and the price is due and unpaid. The
company is insolvent. Y was one of the original

subscribers to its stock. He did not pay his sub-

scription but sold his shares to Z, who bought re-

lying on Y's statement that they were fully paid.
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When Z bought the subscription was overdue, and

A had delivered the goods but the price for the

goods was not then due. A asks you what to do.

What shall you tell him?

lo. Instead of any one or two of the questions

numbered 6, 7, 8 or 9, you may, if you prefer, sub-

stitute a brief account of one or two of the follow-

ing topics:

(a) The steps required in Illinois to incorpor-

ate a company for profit under the general incor-

p-oration law.

(b) The transfer of title to corporate shares.

(c) The liability of a promoter for profits.

(d) How a corporation may be dissolved and

what the effect of dissolving it is.



Examination in Common Law Pleading.

June. 1915.

CHARLES E. CARPENTER.

(Discuss each point suggested or raised, give
reasons in full but concisely, and omit irrelevant
matter.)

1. B came on to A's premises and without A's

assent or knowledge took A's horse and sold it 'o

X. Enumerate and discuss the forms of actions

in which A might have redress against X.

Against B.

2. Trespass for entering the plaintiff's yard

and fixing a spout there, so that the water came
into the plaintiff's yard and rotted the walls of the

plaintiff's house. The defendant pleaded not

guilty to all except entering the plaintiff's yard

and fixing the spout on his own, the defendant's,

house; and as to that he justified, for that T. S.

being seised in fee as well of the plaintiff's as of

the defendent's house, by indenture conveyed the

house and yard to the plaintiff, with an exception

in the deed of the free use of the yard, etc., to the

said T. S. and to all the tenants and occupiers of

the defendant's house, which house was after-

wards conveyed to the defendant; and averred

that the spout so fixed was necessary for the use

of the defendant's house and justified by virtue of

the exception. Demurrer to the plea; judgment

for whom?
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If the plaintiff had brought trespass on the

case instead of trespass would the matter set out

in the plea have been a sufficient justification?

3. Declaration bad in substance. The defend-

ant then entered two pleas, a plea of the general

issue and a special plea. Demurrer to the special

plea was sustained and the cause went to the jury

on the general issue and a verdict was given for

the plaintiff. Should the defendant move in ar-

rest of judgment; if not, how should he proceed?

4. Count by A against X for a bicyle sold and

delivered to X for $50. Plea that X was an in-

fant at the time of the sale. Replication that the

goods were necessaries. Demurrer to the repli-

cation. The demurrer was overruled by the trial

court and the defendant was given leave to plead

over. Defendant refused to plead over and the

court ordered an inquiry to be had before a jury

to determine whether the bicycle was sold and

delivered and to ascertain its value. Plaintiff con-

tends that the demurrer admits these facts and re-

fuses to introduce evidence and demands judg-

ment for $50. What result?

5. A declaration for trespass de bonis asport'

atis alleged the taking by the defendant X of cer-

tain goods the property of the said plaintiff. Plea,

a justification because the goods were taken under

the authority of one Carl to whom the said goods
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belonged. Special ilemiirrf^r on the grounfl that

the plea aaiounts to the p^eneral issue, judgment

for whom?
6. X sold out his business to A and agreed

not to carry on the same business within a certain

limit. A brings an action of assumpsit for breach

of the agreement by X in carrying on the same

business within the prohibited locality. X pleads

(i) that A did not perform his part of the agree-

ment, but in such a manner as lo make the plea

oad in substance, (2) as a set off against anything

A might recover, that A was indebted to the de-

fendant in the sum of $500. A demurs to the hrst

plea, and replies to the second that he became a

bankrupt and has procured his discharge from his

debts. Upon the argument upon the demurrer

X claims that the replication of bankruptcy made
to the second plea shows that A had no right of

action, but that it should have been brought by

his assignee; that as this appeared from the rec-

ord, judgment on the demurrer must go against

A. Judgment for whom?

7. A declaration in assumpsit is defective in

substance and the defendant pleads non-assumpsit

also a plea in confession and avoidance. I'he plea

in confession and avoidance is defective in sub-

stance and the defendant demurs to the plea.

What should be the ruling of the court?

8. Action of covenant, the declaration alleg-

ing the making of a certain indenture whereby
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the plaintiff leased a certain dwelling house to the

defendant and wherein the defendant covenanted

to keep the said premises in repair at his own ex-

pense during the entire term of 21 years. The
breaches alleged were that the defendant did not

keep the premises in repair during the said term

but during all the said term suffered them to be

and continue ruinous, prostrate, etc.

Plea to the breach, that the defendant did not

during the said term of 21 years by the said in-

denture created, suffer or permit the said premises

so demised for the term last aforefaid or any part

thereof, to be or continue, nor were the same for

or during all the said term ruinous, prostrate, etc.,

for the want of needful or proper reparation, etc.,

concluding to the country.

The plaintiffs demurred specially assigning

for causes— that the traverse and denial contained

in said plea are too large and informal. Joinder in

demurrer. Judgment for whom?

Would you reach the same result if the de-

murrer had been general?

Q. The plaintiff contracted with a city to build

for it a concrete conduit and the plaintiff was not

lobe paid until the work was accepted by the ciiy

engineer. Plaintiff built the conduit but the en-

gineer refused to accept it and the plaintiff sued

the city. One count of the declaration was in

special assumpsit on the contract, another count

was for the value of the service rendered and ma-
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terial furnished and a third was in debt for the

contract price. Upon which of these counts should

the plaintiff recover?

lo. To an action of debt upon a bond the de-

fendant pleaded two pleas—one non-est factum

and the other that the bond was obtained by

fraud of the plaintiff. Plaintiff moves the court to

require the defendant to strike out one of his

pleas upon the ground of their repugnancy.

What result?



Exammation in Domestic Relations.

(Give reasons in all cases. Indicate wherever

modern statutes make important changes in the

common law.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

1. H and W, a married couple, signed an in-

strument under seal, by which they agreed to live

apart. H promised, "in consideration of the for-

going agreement" to pay VV $75 a month. It was

also agreed that their nine year old son should re-

main in the custody of the mother and be taught

her religious belief. At the time the father be-

longed to no church. He later joined church and

requested that the son be taught his father's be-

lief. W refused. H then demanded custody of

the son, which W refused. H tried to obtain pos-

session of the child secretly and by force, and fail-

ing in this he sought to obtain possession by writ

of habeas corpus. Aside from inferences to be

drawn from the facts stated, H and W are equally

proper persons to have custody. How should the

matter be decided?

If H neglects to |)ay the $75 a month, has W
any redress?

2. VV sued H for divorce on the grounds of

adultery. The husband was personally served

within the State but did not appear. Should W
be granted a divorce ?
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(a) If the only evidence is a written confes-

sion by H ?

(b) If the only evidence is that of a prosti-

tute?

(c) If it appears that W directed her attor-

ney to hire detectives to procure evidence, and the

detectives without authority hired a prostitute to

lure the husband into an act of adultery?

3. (a) VV sued H for divorce a vinculo on

the ground of adultery and cruelty in a State where

both must be shown to obtain such divorce. Stand-

ing alone each is ground for divorce a mensa et

thoro. At the trial the following facts appeared:

H committed adultery, and W left him on this ac-

count. H then persuaded her to return and live

with him. Following this H was guilty of acts of

cruelty. W left him again and brought this suit.

Should a divorce a vinculo be granted?

(b) H sued W for divorce on the ground of

of adultery. She filed a cross bill asking divorce

for his cruelty. The suit is in a State where both

adultery and cruelty are grounds for absolute di-

vorce. Each prove their allegations. What de-

cree?

4. Plaintiff sued defendant for breach of

promise to marry. May she recover on defend-

ant's repudiation of his promise .f*

(a) If defendant promised to marry one year

after the death of his wife, who was at the time in-

curably insane?
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(b) If plaintiff is the sister of defendant's de-

ceased wife and the promise was made by defend-

ant at the death-bed of his wife and at her re-

quest?

(c) If defendant promised to marry one year

after the death of his wife from whom he was then

divorced?

Assume first that the above promises are

written, second that they are oral.

5. (a) W represented to H before their mar-

riage that she was worth $25,000 and free from debt.

In fact, she owed$io.ooo and owned only $5,000

worth of property. Can H have the marriage an-

nulled.^ Who is liable for W's debt.^

(b) W married H and at the time of marriage

owned the following property: (1) a house and

lot in town, (2) a horse, buggy and household fur-

niture, (3) a farm, (4) a 99 year leasehold in a

business block, (5) a $5,000 government bond, (6)

$10,000 on deposit in a bank, (7) clothing, jewelry.

etc.

State what interest, if any, H obtained in the

above property, (a) at the moment of marriage,

(b) by any act during coverture, (c) at the death

of W.

6 Suit by G against H for $40 worth of gro-
ceries. The groceries were ordered by telephone
by W, who asked that they be charged to H. G
charged them to H, not knowing who H was. H
is in fact the husband of W, but they are living

apart.
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Under what circumstances, if at all, may G
recover in this suit?

7 A, a boy of 19 became engaged to B, a

girl of 18. By statute the age of majority is 21 for

males and 18 for females, but "males of 18 and fe-

males of 16 shall, with the consent of their parents,

be capable of contracting marriage." A obtained

the approval of his parents to marry B and made
preparation to do so. Later he met C, a girl of

17 and married her. The marriage to C was with-

out the consent of the parents of A and C.

May B recover of A in a suit for breach of

promise to marry?

May the parents of A or C annul the marriage ?

May either A or C annul the marriage?

8 A, a boy of 19, bought a horse and buggy

of B, an adult. A paid B $250 for the horse and

buggy, which after one year's rough usage were

worth about $100. When A was 20 he offered to

return the horse and buggy to B and demanded
the return of the '3"25;o. B refused and A on reach-

ing 21 sues B for that amount. Judgment?

Would your answer be the same if A were sel-

ler instead of buyer and were suing to recover the

horse and buggy after squandering the purchase

price?



Examination in Equity.

June, 191.S.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

I. A manufactured a popular beverage called

Coca-Cola. Later B began to manufacture and

sell a beverage, similar in taste and appearance,

which he called Ko-Kola. A sues to enjoin B

from using this name. It is shown that A's bever-

age contains no trace of the drugs coca or cola,

but does contain a slight quantity of caffeine, a

stimulating substance much less deleterious to

health than the above drugs. Should plaintiff suc-

ceed? Discuss questions suggested by these facts.

II. (a) A sold to B, for cash, a mortgage on

C's land. Both A and B honestly believed that

this was a first mortgage and fixed the price ac-

cordingly. In fact, there was a prior recorded

first mortgage to the full value of the land which

B, in searching the records, failed to discover. C
is insolvent. Can B rescind? Reasons.

(b) B purchased A's half interest in a tract

for $1000, its fair value. Both A and B honestly

supposed , relying on the advice of an attorney as to

the legal effect of a deed in the chain of title, that

the other half interest belonged to B; in fact, it

belonged to A. If the truth had been known, the

parties would have bargained for the sale of A's

whole interest. Can B have reformation so that
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his deed shall include tho whole tract, on payincf

the fair value of the other half? ('an B have re-

scission?

III. Smith deposited in the C bank of Cham-
paign the sum of $6,000, to be credited to the A
bank of Oklahoma anel to be remitted to the -\.

bank on the A bank's request. The C bank

promptly notified the A bank of the deposit. A
week after the deposit the P bank of Oklahoma
claimed the deposit from the C bank, asserting

that the $6,000 was the proceeds of the sale of

certain cattle which Smith had mortgaged to the

P bank and had wrongfully sold and converted.

The next day the A bank demanded the $6,000

from the C bank. The C bank now brings inter-

pleader against fhe A bank and the P bank.

Explain whether or not these facts satisfy the

four "elements" or conditions which are essential

for the maintenance of a bill of interpleader.

IV. A obtained a deed to Lot i from B, the

former owner, in 1912. D in 191 1 recorded a con-

tract by C to convey Lot i to D. A seeks to have

this contract cancelled and removed from the rec-

ord as a cloud on A's title, stating that C claimed

the right to make the contract under a pretended

power of attorney from A which had no existence.

D demurred, and the lower court sustained

the demurrer. Criticize this ruling.
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V. Discuss the rule sometimes asserted that

on application for a permanent injunction against

a proved nuisance the court will "balance the in-

juries" to the parties. When and why may the

court "balance the injuries" on application for a

temporary injunction against an alleged nuisance?

Illustrate.

VI. A, a corporation promoter, issued a cir-

cular making various representations regarding

the B Co. and soliciting the public to purchase

notes issued by the B Co. A hundred persons

read this circular and loaned money to the B Co.

on its notes. The B Co. became insolvent and

paid 25 cents on the dollar on its notes, M, N and

O sue A in equity in behalf of themselves and the

rest of the hundred holders of the notes, alleging

that A's representations were false and fraudulent,

and claiming damages for each note holder in the

amount of 75 per cent of the face value of his

note. A demurs on the ground that the plaintiffs'

legal remedy by separate suits for damages is ad-

equate, and that equity has no jurisdiction. Dis-

cuss fully.

VII. (a) Mention three classes of cases in

which courts of equity may relieve from mistakes
of law.

(b) Give an example (facts real or imagined)
of reformation for mistake of law.

VIII. (a) What is marshalling of securities?

(b) For what three purposes may a creditor's

suit be brought?



Examination in Evidence.

June, 1915.

PROFESSOR HALE.

1. (a) What is hearsay evidence and what

are the objections to it?

(b) Give two illustrations of statements made
by X to Y which would not be considered hearsay

if testified to by Y.

2. A was indicted and tried for burglary. X
testified that one night about 1 1 o'clock A pried

open the door to his (X's) "bungalow" and took a

certain sum of money. Counsel for defendant

moved for a directed verdict on the ground that

the State had offered no evidence that defendant

had entered a "dwelling house." What judgment?

3. A sued B for breach of contract. Both A
and B testified. Judgment was given for B. The
case was reversed on appeal and sent back for a

new trial. Before the second trial A died and his

administrator was substituted as plaintiff. On the

second trial, K, a juror at the previous trial, was

called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff and

asked if he could state the testimony given by A
on the former trial. He replied that he could

state it in substance. Counsel for B entered the

following objections, each of which was overruled:
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(i) The testimony offered was hearsay.

(2) Witness must give A's exact language,

(3) Witness, having acted as a juror on the

previous trial, is not a competent witness.

4. A is on trial for the murder of B. Which,

if any, of the following circumstances (considered

separately) would justify the court in excludi»ig a

confession by A?

(i) The State's attorney said to A, "It will be

better for you if you tell the truth."

(2) The warden told A, who was a morphine

fiend, that he would get him some morphine if he

would confess.

5. The G Company sued B for gas supplied

at B's residence during the year 1914. To prove

the quantity of gas supplied, the company offered

in evidence a book in which the accounts with its

customers were regularly kept. M, the office man-

ager of the company, testified that the record in the

book was made by X, the company's book-keeper,

from memoranda turned in by Y and Z, the com-

pany's meter-readers. M further testified that X
was dead.

B objected to the introduction of the book in

evidence. What should the ruling have been?

6. A warranted that a suit of clothes which

he sold to B was "all wool." B sued A for a
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breach of this warranty, contending that the cloth

was one-half cotton.

B offered as a witness a tailor to testify to the

character of the cloth.

A objected to the testimony offered, on two

grounds:

(i) That the suit was the best evidence of its

quality, and

(2) That a witness must state facts and not

his opinion and that this witness was offering- to

state his opinion.

Was either objection valid?

7. A and B were in partnership. On dissolu-

tion the following agreement was executed:

"/\ has this day sold all his interest in the

firm, the A. B. Company, to B for the sum of $500,

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by A.

Said firm is hereby dissolved and B will assume all

liabilities and have all accounts."

B is suing A for damages for breach of an al-

leged oral agreement, made at the time of the dis-

solution of the partnership, not to enter business

in competition with B. A objects to proof of

this oral agreement. What ruling?
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8. A's will was worded as follows:

"I devise to the Board of Foreign Missions

my farm, being the south east quarter of section

5, township 15, range 10 west."

(a) The Baptist Board of Foreign Missions

and the Presbyterian Board of Foreign Missions

are each claiming the property under this will.

The following evidence is offered, (i) tnat the

deceased was a member of the Baptist church,

and (2) that he said to his lawyer before drawing

his will, "I shall give the Presbyterians s(^mething

for I have never given them anything."

Is any of this evidence admissible?

(b) It also appears that the testator did not

and never had owned the south east quarter of

section 5, township 15, range 10 west, but that he

did own the south east quarter of section 15, town-

ship 5, range 10 west.

May evidence be received to apply the will to

the land owned, or must it fail?



Examination in Equity Pleading.

DEAN HARKER.

1. How do the rules of Equity Pleading un-

der the statute and decisions in Illinois differ from

the rules of Common Law Pleading?

2. What do you understand by the terms

"Necessary and Indispensable Parties," "Neces-

sary but Dispensable Parties" and "Unnecessary

Parties?" Give an example of each.

3. Mention the different kinds of original bill

and define each.

4. How does a plea differ from an answer?

How may the sufficiency of the one or the other

as a def<inse to the bill be raised?

5. In a bill filed by A against B, the widow of

X, and C, D and E, the children and heirs of X,

to enforce a lien upon certain land owned by X in

his life-time, a default was entered against all the

defendants, they failing to answer. A decree pro

confesso was entered and that was followed by

proofs and a final decree declaring a lien and or-

dering a sale. Personal service was had upon all

the defendants and a guardian ad litem was ap-

pointed for D, a girl 16 years old, and E, a boy 19

years old. but he failed to answer.
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The land was sohi under the decree and A
became the purcha'^er. D and E have now at-

tained their majority. Assuming that tlie bill a:ul

decree are fully supported by the proofs on file,

have D and E any remedy, and if so, how may it

be enforced?

6. A, a relative of B, (insane) files a bill as

next friend of B, charging that C, the defendant,

is in control of the business and property of B un-

der a power of attorney made by B while in an

unsound state of mind, that the business is being

improperly conducted and the property dissipated,

and that if not restrained C will ruin the business

and waste the property. The bill prays for a can-

cellation of the power of attorne}- upon the ground

that B at the time of entering into it was of un-

sound mind, that C be enjoined from further con-

trol of the property and that a receiver be ap-

pointed to take charge of the same.

C by demurrer questions the right of A to sue

and resists the appointment of a receiver. What
should be the ruling of the court, and why?

7. Draft a bill for the specific performance of

a contract entered into on the 4th of December,

1Q14, whereby John Doe agreed to convey lots 4

and 5 in block 6, Coler's addition to the city of

Urbana, State of Illinois, to James Brown on

Brown paying to Doe on the 4th of March, 1915,

the sum of three thousand dollars.

Attach to the bill as an exhibit a copy of the
written contract made on the 4th of December,
1Q14.

I
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, 8. To A's bill for the specific performance of

a contract to transfer and assign shares of stock

in a certain corporation B, the defendant, an-

swered that the contract was mutually cancelled

before the day fix' d for the transfer for the con-

sideration of one hundred dollars paid by him to

A. To the answer A filed a replication and the

cause was referred to the Master in Chancer^' to

take the evidence and report. When the parties

appeared before the Master the defendant ad-

mitted the contract and then introduced evidence

showing a cancellation of it as set up in the an-

swer. The complainant then introduced evidence

(over the defendant's objection) showing that he

was induced to agree to the cancellation by the

false and fraudulent statement of defendant, that

the Attorney General had filed a petition to dis-

solve the corporation. When the cause came on

for hearing before the court, the defendant re-

newed his objection and moved the exclusion of

the testimony relating to the false statement con-

cerning the petition of the Attorney General.

What should be the ground of objection and what

the ruling of the court?

9. To the bill of Robert Allen, filed in the

Circuit Court of Champaign county, to compel the

specific performance of a contract made with Otis

Brown for the sale and transfer of thirty shares of

stock of the Urbana Lumber Company, draft an

answer, admitting the contract, but setting up by

way of avoidance a cancellation of the contract by

mutual consent and for a valuable consideration.
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lo. To A's bill asking specific relief on three

separate matters growing out of the same transac-

tion, B, the defendant, demurred as to one matter

and on the following day answered the other two

matters and prayed a dismissal of the bill. A,

thereupon, moved that the demurrer be stricken

from the files upon the ground that by filing an-

swer the defendant had waived all right of de-

murrer. State a proper ruling on the motion.



Examination in Public Utilities.

June, 191 5.

PROFESSOR GREEN.

(Answer three questions out of the first five

and three out of the second five. State your rea-

sons briefly for all answers.)

1. The A company is an incorporated ceme-

tery association with power of eminent domain;

the B company has a statutory monopoly of driv-

ing logs on a river, but is forbidden tu charge

more than enough to pay expenses; the C com-

pany collects news throughout the United States

and supplies it to newspapers at a fixed price per

year; the D company owns the water power of

falls capable of producing ten thousand horse

power of electricity, and supplies it to manufac-

turers; the E company operates the only grain

elevator in a small town; the F company, the only

stockyards in a large city; the G company, a pipe

line carrying oil fifty miles from an oil field to the

nearest railroad; the H company, a theatre; the I

company, a cheap lodging house; the J company,

an undertaking business. Each company holds

itself out as ready to serve all applicants in its line

of business so far as its facilities extend. At com-

mon law, which of them will be liable for wantonly

refusing service?

2. A common carrier of passengers by steam-

boat made a regulation excluding from its wharf
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the vehicles of all public hackmen except those of

a certain cab company which gave excellent ser-

vice. A passenger who was to arrive by the next

boat telegraphed to another public hackman to

meet him on the wharf and drive him to a hotel.

Against the orders of the steamboat company, the

hackman drove upon the wharf and met the pas-

senger. The steamboat company sued him in

trespass. What decision?

3. A applied to a telephone company to put

a telephone in his office, and tendered pay for a

year in advance. The company refused to install

a telephone for the following reasons:

(a) He had a telephone of a competing com-

pany, and each company had a rule not to serve a

subscriber of the other.

(b) He did not intend to use the instrument for

sending or receiving messages, but only to impress

his customers by the fact that he had two tele-

phones.

(c) His business was the fraudulent selling of

worthless mining stocks, and if he used the tele-

phone at all, it would be to defraud.

(d) He was and for six months had been in-

debted to the company for previous telephone ser-

vice, and his instrument had been taken out two

months before because he would not pay for it.
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(<;) When he formerly had a telephone he

persisted in letting his neighbors use it, against

the rules of the company of which he had notice.

Which, if any, of these reasons justify the

company's refusal ''

4. The Big Four railroad runs two passenger

trains a day in each direction between Danville

and Champaign, thirty-four miles apart, which

stop about every five miles at intermediate towns

whose population varies from two thousand to two

hundred. An electric railroad maintains an hourly

service between the same points and makes the

same stops. Discuss briefly the Big Four's right

10 discontinue stopping its passenger trains at

these intermediate towns, if because of the electric

railroad's coirpetition it no longer pays to stop.

5. A had a grain elevator and cattle pens

connected by his private siding wiih the tracks of

a railroad company. So, at a point a quarter of a

mile farther down the tracks, had B. For each

the company was in the habit of delivering upon

the siding cars of cattle and of grain in bulk. The
railroad agreed with A to make his siding the sole

place for the delivery of grain to the public, and

with B to make his siding the sole place for the

delivery of cattle to the public, each agreeing to

give the public access for that purpose, and then

notified A as to cattle and B as to grain that it

would no longer deliver to him at his siding, but
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wishes to hold the railroad to its agreement with

himself and objects to its carrying out its agree-

ment with the other. What are their rights ar

common law?

6. A and B published newspapers at Chicago.

C published a newspaper at St. Louis. Their

morning editions sold in competition at Spring-

field. The Alton railroad, running between Chi-

cago and St. Louis by way of Springfield, at A's

request and on his guarantee that the revenue

from it would reach a named amount, put on an

early passenger train from Chicago to Springfield

which reached Springfield earlier than any other

train, and agreed to carry on it /\'s paper and no

other. B demanded that the train carry his [japer,

too, there being room enough. C demanded that

the railroad under a like guarantef from him run

an early train from St. Louis to Springfield, a

shorter distance, so as to bring his paper to

Springfield as early as A's. The railroad would

not comply with either demand. What are the

rights of A and B.

7. A boy of 18, travelling by railroad for

the first time, showed his ticket to the brakeman.

The train was in motion and a gust of wind blew

it out of his hands and off the train. .'Xt the next

station, the conductor, though informed by the

brakeman of the facts, ejected the boy, who had

no money, for non-payment of fare. What is the

I



43

railroad's liability? How would you answer, if

the railroad charged two cents a mile for tickets

but three cents for cash fares, and the boy, unable

to buy a ticker because the ticket office was closed,

tendered fare in money at two cents a mile, that

being all he had?

8" What are the important points of difference

in the provisions about reasonable rates between

the interstate commerce act as it was originally

passed and as ir has been modified by later enact-

ments?

Q. A company was incorporated to build and

operate a public '^oll bridge across a river at its

narrovvest point. In building, the bridge was dam-

aged by a flood and had to be built over. For

this reason and because labor and materials were

then high, its actual and reasonable cost was

double what it would have cost a short time later

to replace it. The traffic became too large for the

bridge to accomodate and another company built

another toll bridge which, as the river was wider

there, cost twice the actual and therefore four

times the replacement cost of the former bridge.

The expenses of operating and maintaing the two

bridges are the same and they do an equal busi-

ness, so that if they charge the same tolls the first

bridge will make on its actual cost twice and on

i'.s replacement cost four times as much as the

s:^cond. A statute requires the public utilities

Cv)mmission to fix reasonable tolls. How shall it
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determine what each may charge? To what point

may the legislature reduce the tolls of each ?

TO. An Illinois statute forbids a common car-

rier to grant any preference or advantage as lo

rates to any corporation or person, or to establish

any unreasonable difference as to rates between

localities. The Interstate Commerce act forbids

a common carrier to charge one person or corpor-

ation more than another for like service under

similar conditions or to give any person or locality

an unreasonable preference over any other. As-

sume that the Illinois Central's ordinary rate on

corn from Champaign to Chicago is the same as

the Chicago and Eastern Illinois' ordinary rate

from Danville to Chicago, an equal distance; but

that on corn coming to Champaign from Danville

over the Big Four and destined to Chicago, the

Illinois Central makes a rate from Champaign less

than its ordinary rate by the amount of the Big

Four's reasonable freight charge, while on corn

that comes from Danville over the Wabash the

Illinois Central makes no reduction. Discuss the

legality of the Illinois Central's differences in

rates. What would you say if each city was in a

different State?



Examination in Quasi Contracts.

(Give reasons in all cases.)

PROFESSOR Vfc:RNIER.

1. D, a Champaip^n merchant, sent his agent

to P, the manager of a student boarding club, to

collect a bill of S6o which D claimed was due for

groceries furnished the previous year. P, on pre-

sentment of the bill exclaimed, "I have an idea

that I paid that bill last June." The agent asked

P to show his receipt or cancelled check. P re-

plied that he had left his receipts and cancelled

checks for the past year at home when he had

gone there for the summer vacation. The agent

insisted that the bill was due, and P finally paid,

saying, "1 have a notion that I paid this bill last

June and if I find the receipt or check I'll make
you return the money." The agent made no reply.

D received the money, after whieh P discovered

the receipt for the bill at home. What are P's

rights, if any, if D refuses lo restore the money?

2. D claiming to have a patent on a certain

device, gave P by license in the ordinary form the

exclusive right to make and sell the device in Illi-

nois for five years. After operating under the li-

cense for two years, P discovered that D's patent

was void. P brings this suit to recover $2500 roy-

alty paid to D. Can he recover?

Suppose that D assigned all .lis rights under

the patent to P for $25000 and it was discovered
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as before that the patent was void. In a suit to

recover the $25000 would your answer be the

same?

3. P contracted to supply U. a meat dealer,

with ice for one year, the contract specifying the

number of tons to be delivered each month and

the price per ton each month. No payment was

to be made until the end of the year. After per-

forming satisfactorily for six months, P was forced

to cease deliveries, because all the ice producers

combined and refused to sell to P, who had no

plant of his own. Can P recover for the ice al-

ready delivered to I)? If you decide that he can,

state accurately the rule of damages to govern the

amount of recovery.

Would your answer be the same if P ceased

to deliver after six months because lie found a

better market for his ice elsewhere?.

4. P contracted in writing with the ofificial

board of the D church to erect a church building in

accordance with certain plans and specifications.

The building when completed varied materially

from the plans and specifications. I'he ceiling was

lower, the windows more numerous and smaller,and

the seats narrower. Ihe seats were also made
of different but better material than that specified.

P was negligent but acted in good faith. The
building is reasonably adapted for use as a church.

Can P recover anything? If so, state the rule of

damages.

I
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Would your answer he tlie same, if the com-

pleted huihiintr departed marerially from the plans

and specifications, hut the departures were in the

nature of improvements?

5. D in ihe usual course of business hecame

indorsee for value of a check for $100 drawn on

the P Bank. 1) presented the check to the P

Bank, which paid it and charged it to the account

of M, whose name appeared thereon as drawer.

M's name had been forged. The P Bank on dis-

covery of the forgery made prompt demand on D
for the roturn of the $100. On U's refusal P

brought this suit. Judgment?

Would your answer be the same if M's signa-

ture were genuine but the check had been raised

from $10 to $100?

6. B owed D i>50. D was pressing for pay-

ment, when B informed D that he would arrange

to have P supply D with $50 worth of coal in sat-

isfaction of the debt. D agreed to this. B then

went to P and told P that D wanted $50 worth of

coal delivered. P, supposing that B was D's

agent, delivered the coal to D and charged it to

D. However P did not send a statement to D for

the coal until most of it had been consumed. It

was customary for P to wait a month or so before

sending statements to customers who were financ-

ially responsible. D refused to pay for the coal.

B has disappeared. What are P's rights, if any,

against D.



Real Property [Conveyancing.]

June, 1Q15.

CHARLES E. CARPENTER.

PART I.

1. The plaintiff leased a lot to the defendant

for a term of five years. The defendant agreed to

pay the rent and taxes and not to assign or under-

let without the written consent of the plaintiff.

The defendant entered into possession and occu-

pied the premises for two years, paying the

rent and taxes promptly. At the end of two years

the defendant assigned the remainder of the term

to A with the written assent of the plaintiff. The
plaintiff collected the rent from A for one year

then the payment of rent fell in arrear and A left

at the end of his second year, and the premises

have remained vacant ever since. The plaintiff

after five years from the beginning of the term of

the defendant sues the defendant for the rent for

the last two years of his five year term. What
result? Bailey vs. Wells, 8 Wis,, 33.

2. J. D. was the owner in fee of the nw % of

the ne % of sec. ig town 6 range 2 in P'ayette

county, 111.

J. D. died leaving as his heirs A & B. A & B
went into possession and agreed to divide the land

equally between thejii,and A then deeded to B all

his interest in the east 3^ of the nw % of the ne
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yi oi rhe said section, and B deeded to A all his

interest in the west 5^ of the nw % of the ne %
of said section. They borrowed an old surveyor's

chain with two links missing and measured off

from the east side of the 40 acres what they con-

sidered one half. They then erected a fence along

the line thus ascertained and A occupied the por-

tion west of the fence, and B the portion east of

the fence for ten years. A conveyed to the plain-

tiff and B to the defendant and the plaintiff dis-

covering that the true line was several rods be-

yond the fence on the part occupied by the de-

fendant brought an action of ejectment for the

sirip. What result?

3. J. L. owned a large tract of land and a

street was laid out over it called Tidmarsh street.

Plaintiff, heir of J, L., conveyed to the defendant a

tract bordering on the street describing the boun-

dary on said street as follows: "154 feet more or

less to Tidmarsh street, thence southeasterly, along

the northerly side of the said Tidmarsh street 401

feet more or less to Twelfth street," Tidmarsh

street was vacated by authority of law a tew years

later, and the defendant went into possession up

to the center line of said street and the plaintiff

now brings ejectment for the strip. What result?

4. The plaintiff leased to the defendant a

house and lot for the term of 13 months, from April

I, 1888, for the agreed rent of $540.00 per annum,

payable in equal installments of $45 in advance,
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on the hrst day of each month. The defendant

entered and occupied the premises during the

term, and after its expiration held over and con-

tinued in possession, and paid rent to the plaintiff,

in accordance with the terms of the lease up to

and including the month of November. i88q. vSev-

eral days prior to Oct, 30, 1889, the defendant

served upon the plaintiff written notice that he

would vacate the premises on Nov. 30th next en-

suing. In pursuance of this notice he vacated the

premises and has not since that time occupied them

or paid rent Plaintiff now brings action to recov-

er rent from Dec. i, 1889, to May i, 1890. What
result?

5. A made a deed to B of his farm Lakeview;

he signed,sealed and acknowledged the instrument

and gave it to S who was attorney for A and B in-

structing S not to deliver the deed to B until B
paid him $10,000. B requested S to record it so a

desirable sale could be effected. B promised S to

deposit stock with him, S, which B represented to

be of the value of $20,000, to secure the payment

of the purchase price if S would record the deed.

S recorded the deed and B deposited the stock

B sold the land to C who did not know A had not

been paid. The stock was worth about $9,000.

Who has title to Lakeview?

6. (a) In 1880, X who claimed title to a va-

cant piece of land called Plumb Thicket,but who re-

ally had no title to it, made a deed of it containing

covenants of seisin and warranty and quiet enjoy-
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deed of it to C who immediately went into pos-

ession, but in igoo was ousted by the rightful own-

er. What are C's riofhts against X?

(b) Suppose in the preceding case X had

acquired the title in Plum Thicket in i8qo and C
had brought ejectment against the one who ousted

him. What judgment ?

7. Plaintiff brings his bill to protect his right

in an easement. The plaintiff and defendant

bought a double house of Mrs. Mabey. They
went together and bought on the same day ar-

ranging to divide the premises equally through the
partition wall. Each house was supplied with wa-
ter from a well in the rear by pipes connecting
with pumps in each kitchen. Neither the plaintiff

nor defendant or Mrs. Mabey knew where the
well was. The defendant gave $10 for the choice
of houses and chose the one upon which the well

was though he did not know this or choose his side

)n that account. When he discovered the com-
:i-ion well was on his side he disconnected the
plaintiff's pipe. Is there any remedy open to the
plaintiff?

8. John Doe lives in Milwaukee, Wis., and
owns a store building in Uanville, 111. He au-
1 horizes John Smith, of Danville, to look after and
10 lease the premises and to cellect and remit the
rents. Smith calls on you, as attorney, to draw up a
lease of the premises to Richard Roe with all the
clauses that are advisable to be inserted for the
!)rotection of the lessor, (a) Draw the lease and
have it appear to be executed ready for recording,
(b) Give reasons for the clauses inserted for the
lessor's protection.



Examination in Real Propeity.

June, IQ15.

CHARLES E. CARPENTER.

(Discuss each point raised, give reasons in full

but concisely and omit irrelevant matter.)

1. In 1285 A was seised in fee simple of

Blackacre which contained 3000 acres; he en-

feoffed B and C of 1000 acres each. B in 1300

made a feoffment of all his land to D and his

heirs. In 1310 D died and E, D's heir entered.

In 1325 C died without heirs and E committed

treason. What is the state of the title?

2. A, seised in fee of land, conveys it to B, C
and D and their heirs. B then conveys to C and

C dies; then later D dies. Who has title now?
Discuss the question under (a) common law; (b)

modern statutes.

3. What is the state of the title in each of

the following:

(A) A, seised in fee of Blackacre, enfeoffed

B and his heirs of it:

(a) to the use of C and his heirs;

(b) to the use of C;
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(c) to the use of the feoffor;

(d) without declaring^ any use.

(B) A. seised in fee of Blackacre, bargains

and sells it for a consideration to B and his heirs:

(a) to the use of C and his heirs;

(b) to the use of C;

(c) to the use of A;

(d) What would be the situation if the bargain

and sale were to B and his heirs without declara-

tion of the use?

4. In 1536 A, tenant in fee simple of Black-

acre, while standing on Blackacre, said to his son,

B: "Stand forth, B, and I will give you Blackacre

so soon as I die and you marry, to have and to

hold for your life, then C shall have it for his life,

and then D and his heirs forever." B paid lOC;^

in consideration of the conveyance. What was

the state of the title in Blackacre after this trans-

action?

5. A, seised in fee simple of Blackacre, cov-

enanted with B, his brother, to stand seised of it

for the use of B for 10 years, then to the use of C
and D and their heirs, if C married. Before B's

term of 10 years expired C married and D died.

Who has title I*
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6. X enfeoffed A for life, B for life and re-

mainder to C and his heirs. B during A's life

granted to D for life and A attorned. What is the

state of the title after the death of A and B, but

before U's death ?

7. A owns a farm in fee worth about $5000.

He gives B a mortgage on the land to secure a

a loan of $3000 which B makes to A under an

agreement that A is to use the money in the pur-

chase of an engine and machinery for his canning

factory which he agrees to attach to the land so as

to further increase B's security. A buys a $4000

engine from C, giving him a chattel mortgage on

the engine tor the rest of the purchase price. A
affixed the engine to the land in a permanent

manner and B's mortgage coming due, and A be-

ing in default, B brings suit to foreclose the mort-

gage and joins C as a party. The land has de-

preciated so that it will not bring more than $3500

with the engine and machinery. Who will prevail

as to the engine?

8. B, who was in possession of land under a

contract to purchase from the plaintiff, allowed

the defendant to erect thereon a small building

and to put in it certain heavy machinery which

was screwed to the floor and a clock which was

screwed to ih*" wall. B agreed with the defendant

that the building and contents should be regarded

as personality and removable at the defendant's

will. The contract for the purchase of the land
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was rescinded by ihc plaintiff and the defendant is

now proceeding to remove the building, machinery

and clock from the land and the plaintiff brings a

bill to enjoin him. What result?

Q. A leased a store to B for a term to con-

tinue so long as C (A's son) should not desire to

occupy the premises. B let the premises fall out

of repair. C later desired to occupy the premises

and B gave up the possession to /\. Is B liable to

A for having let the premises fall out of repair?

lo. A was tenant for life, B for years and C
at will, of X. Each lo years previously had plant-

ed an apple orchard and this spring a crop of

corn. In July, before either crop was ready to be

gathered, A died, B's term for years expired, and

X terminated C's term. In each instance who can

take the crop when it is ready to be gathered?



Examination in Suretyship.

PROFESSOR DECKER.

1. A purchased B's business including ac-

counts having a book value of $5,000, of which B
agreed that "$4,000 shall be realized, without

charging for the personal services of A or other

costs of collection, except those incurred in suits,"

(a) Would this agreement be enforceable

against B, if oral, assuming that only $3,000 was

realized on the accounts?

(b) If in writing, what principles should be

applied to the construction of the agreement, and

what is your conclusion as to the nature and ex-

tent of A's rights thereunder?

2. B was picked up unconscious after an auto-

jnobile accident and carried into the house of C,

who called X, a physician, to attend B, and told X

:

"If B does not payy ou, 1 will." X's bill was for $50,

of which $25 was for an operation performed on

B's head before he became conscious, and the bal-

ance was for treatment afterwards. B has never

paid any part of the bill and X now sues C, who
pleads the statute of frauds. Decide the case.

3. S wrote on the back of a note from P to C
for $200 the following: "I hereby guarantee the

payment of the within note," and signed his name.
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If sued by C one 3'ear after the maturity of the

note, which, if any, of the following defences

would be legally available to him:

(a) That C had not sued P or notified S of P's

default.

(b) That P was a minor.

(c) That C owed P $100 for goods sold and

delivered which P had a good right to set-off

against the note?

(d) That the note was given for a horse sold

by C to P, but which X had since replevied and

proven to have been his at the time of the sale?

(e) That P had tendered to C the amount of

the note when it came due, but C had told P that

he did not need the money then but would let him
know when he needed it, after which P later be-

came bankrupt ?

4. S became surety for P on a bond to C,

which was also secured by a mortgage on Black-

acre, property of P.

(a) What would be the effect on S's liability

if C should release the mortgage without compen-

sation?

(b) Would S have any remedy if C still held

thCjUiorigage but refused to foreclose it and com-

menced suit at law against S on the bond?
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5- P, who was employed by C as cashier in

his store, was discovered to be short in his ac-

counts and admitted that he had taken money to

play on the races. P's father made good the

amount and C agreed to give P a further chance

if he would give a bond for the faithful perform-

ance of his duties. The bond was drawn by C's

attorney who handed it to P for the purpose of

getting two sureties. P forged the name of his

father and then got an uncle who knew nothing of

the circumstances, to sign.

Has the uncle any defense, if sued on the

bond for further embezzlements by P, arising

either from the forgery of the father's name, or

from the other facts stated?

6. A, a guardian, without authority of court,

loaned money of his ward to X, and took a mort-

gage on X's home as security. X made a second

mortgage to Y. X was insolvent and the mort-

gaged property so deteriorated that it was not

sufficient to pay both mortgages. On a settle-

ment of the guardianship estate, A was ordered to

account for the money loaned and S, the surety

on his guardianship bond, finally paid the amount
to A's ward. What are S's rights as against A, X
and Y respectively?

7. P was sued by C who recovered a judgment

of $4,000, from which P appealed to the Appel-

late Court, giving an appeal bond with S as sur-

ety. The judgment being afifirmed, P again ap-
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pealed to the Supreme court, giving a new bond

with T as surety. Both bonds were conditioned

for the payment of the judgment, with costs of ap-

peal if the judgment was affirmed. If the Supreme
court affirmed the judgment, what are the rights

of C against S and T, and what are the rights of

S and T between themselves?

8. Discuss the operation of the statute of h'm-

itations as affecting the surety's rights of indem-

nity, subrogation and contribution.

9. A and B were sureties on the bond of X as

county treasurer. X was a defauher to the

amount of $5,000, which A and B paid in equal

parts. X afterwards gave A a mortgage on his

homestead as a partial security for the amount so

paid by A, on which A afterwards realized by

foreclosure the sum of $1,500. B now sues in

equity for an accounting and to recover one-half

of the amount so realized. Decide the case.

ID. S gave C a continuing guaranty of any ac-

count for goods which P might purchase from C,

not to exceed $2,000. P was later adjudicated a

bankrupt, at which time he owed C for goods the

sum of $4,000. C proved the claim for the full

amount and received a dividend of 50 per cent.

.He now sues S on his guaranty contract, and
claimed the right to recover $2,000. S admits his

liability for $1,000 and tenders that amount.
Which is right?



Examination in Torts.

June, 1915.

PROFESSOR HALE.

1. (a) A in order to induce B to marry her son,

told B that her son owned the farm on which she

and her son were living. A knew that her son did

not own the farm. After the marriage B discov-

ered the falsity of A's statement and sued A for

deceit. What judgment .f*

(b) What constitutes bad faith in the law of

deceit?

2. A was driving down a narrow street of a

city, asleep. B observed that A was asleep and

could thereafter have avoided a collision by turn-

ing into a side street. B was unreasonably slow

in thus turning out and a collision occurred, result-

ing in damage to both A and B.

(a) Each sues the other. What judgment in

each case?

(b) What would your answer be if it appear-

ed that B was negligently paying no heed and be-

cause of this failed to discover A before the col-

lision?

3. A and B went out riding together in a row

boat. B fell out. A was unreasonably slow in
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throwing a rope to him with a life buoy attached.

As a result, B drowned. Action is brought against

A for B's death. What judgment?

4. The X Manufacturing Company manufac-

tured and sold to the Y Railroad Company, a lo-

comotive. While going at an ordinary rate of

speed the boiler exploded, causing a wreck. A, a

passenger, was seriously injured. The explosion

was due to the use of defective materials in the

process of manufacture. The X Company knew
that the materials were of doubtful strength but

thought there was a chance of their holding.

Discuss (i) the liability of the X Manufactur-

ing Company and (2) the liability of the Y Rail-

road Company to A, the injured passenger.

5. A and his child C, six years of age, went

riding with B in B's automobile afe B's guests.

They were approaching a railroad crossing just as

the gates were being lowered to permit a train to

pass. The watchman without proper regard to

the nearness of the train held the gates a moment
and motioned to B to cross. Both A and B ob-

served the danger. A said to B, "We can make
it." B attempted to cross. A collision occurred

in which both A and C were injured.

(a) Action by A against the Railroad Com-
pany.

(b) Action by C. by his next friend, against
the Railroad Company.

What judgment in each case?
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6. A asked B if he might go swimming in a

lake on B's premises. B knew that there were

dangerous quicksands in the lake but did not tell

A. A mired in the quicksands and was drowned.

An action is brought by A's personal representa-

tive against B for A's death. What judgment.

7. A had a large gasoline tank on his prem-

ises in a thickly populated part of the city, in which

he stored gasoline for his automobile. A fire which

was accidently started in a neighboring house was

without A's fault communicated to A's garage and

from there to the gasoline tank. An explosion fol-

lowed which damaged B's house a short distance

away.

B sues A. What judgment ?

8. Temperton is a dealer in building materials.

Myers is a builder who refuses to discharge a non-

union employee who is employed by the day, at

the request of X and Y, union officials. The ob-

ject in securing the discharge of the non-union em-

ployee is to unionize the work. The union then

requests Temperton to cease selling materials to

Myers. Temperton refuses this request. There-

upon the union officials, X and Y, notify Brentano

another builder who has been accustomed to buy

materials of Temperton, that the union will refuse

to work upon any material purchased of Temper-

ton, In consequence of this notice, Brentano

ceases to purchase materials of Temperton, arc-
suit desired by the union.
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(a) Temperton sues X and Y, the union of-

ficials, for the loss of Brentano's custom.

(b) Suppose Myers because of a threat on the

part of X and Y to call a strike of his union em-
ployees had refused to continue the non-union em^

ployee, A, in his employ. What would have been

A's rights against X and Y?



Examination in Trusts,

(Give reasons in all cases.)

PROFESSOR VERNIER.

PART I.

1. F devised land worth $100,000 to T in trust

to pay the net income to "my son S during life,

free from the control and claims of creditors and

nor to be anticipated by assignment or otherwise."

S became bankrupt. He had mortgaged his in-

terest in half the land to A to secure a loan of

$5,000. B had a judgment against S on another

claim. He also owed smaller sums to C, D and E.

What are the rights, if any, of A, B, C, D and E?

2. A contracted to erect a $25,000 building

for B. To secure performance of the contract A
executed a bond, and in addition deposited $5,000

in the C bank. It was agreed in writing between

A, B and the C bank that the bank should pay B
for any breach of contract such part of the $5,000

as B should be damaged, the damage to be de-

termined by a board of arbitrators. A completed

the building to B's satisfaction, but meanwhile the

the C bank had failed, paying lifty cents on the

dollar. What are A's rights against the bank?

Would your answer differ if the bank had

agreed to pay A 4 per cent interest if the money
were left a year and A had demanded the money
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at the end of six months after satisfactory com-

pletion of the building, and also after the bank

had failed as above?

3. (a) A contracted orally to sell land to B.

A then contracted in writing to sell the same land

to C. A finally conveyed the land to B, who at

the time of conveyance knew of the contract with

C. What are C's rights, if any, against B?

(b) A named B execntor of his will and di-

rected him after the payment of debts and specific

legacies, to convert the residue of the estate into

money and invest the same for the benefit of his

niece C, paying her the net income during life and

distributing the same among her lawful heirs at her

death. B gave bond as executor with D as sure-

ty. Ten years after B began to serve he lost part

of the funds in speculation. Is D liable for this

loss?

4. (a) T made his will, naming C as sole ben-

eficiary. Learning that T was about to cancel the

will and name B as beneficiary, C murdered T.

Assume that if T died intestate the property

would go to A. On proof of these facts, who is

entitled to the property?

(b) H is the heir of A. H murdered A from

motives of revenge and not to secure his property.

If H had died before A, the property would have

gone to B and C. On proof of these facts who is

entitled to A's property?
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5- A insured his life for $5,000 in the B Insur-

ance Co. A later executed a voluntary deed to C
by which he assigned all his interest in the policy

to C in trust for D, and covenanted to keep up the

premiums. The deed was delivered to C, who
consented to act as trustee, but A retained the

policy. Neither D nor the B Insurance Co. were

notihed. Later A surrendered the policy and re-

ceived $3,000, its surrender value. D then learned

the above facts. What remedy, if any, has he

against A, the B Insurance Co and C?

6. (a) May the following act as express

trustees: the State, an alien, a married woman, an

infant, a near relative of the cestui? Discuss

briefly.

(b) A will devised real estate "in trust for C"

but did not name a trustee. How may the trust

be established, if at all?

(c) T holds land, personal property and

stock in trust for C. If D wrongfully seizes the

land and converts the personal property, how can

the cestui be protected? Who is entitled to vote

on the stock? Who is liable for taxes on the trust

property?

7. X held $10,000 worth of stock in trust for

Y. Y assigned one fourth of his interest to A for

value. A did not notify X of the assignment. La-

ter Y purported to assign all his interest in the

same stock to B, who bought without inquiry as to
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previous encumbrances. B at once notified X. X
died and W was appointed trustee and received

the certificate of stock and the other trust papers.

B's notice was not received, having been lost. Y
made a third assignment to C, who first inquired

of W and was informed that Y's interest was un-

encumbered. The assignment to C, like that to B,

was total. C notified W. State the order of pri-

ority of A, B and C and discuss fully.

Would your answer be the same if the prop-

erty held in trust were real estate and the ques-

tion arose in a jurisdiction having no recording

system ?

8. A devised real estate to B in trust for A's

son C, to be converted into money, invested in

bonds and mortgages and the income to be paid

toC annually. Other property was devised to B

in trust for C with instructions to convert it into

money and to pay it to C as follows: $5,000 when
C attained the age of 21, $10,000 when he became

25, $10,000 at the age of 30 and the residue with

I he accumulated income at the age of 35. C was

i8 years old at the death of A. The directions of

the will were complied with until C became 24. Ke
then decided that he would like to have full con-

trol of the property, in order to enter the manu-

facturing business. He therefore filed a bill against

B to end the trust. C is the sole cestui. Should

he succeed?



Examination in Wills.

June, 1915.

PROFESSOR POMEROY.

I. lestator's will contained a devise of Black-

acre to A and a legac}^ of $1000 to A, both of

which were void. C is the residuar}- legatee, and

I) the sole surviving child of A. Who takes ihe

devise and legacy under common law and Illinois

law? Reasons.

II. Stale four of the things that are made
necessary to the validity of a nuncupative will by

the section of the Illinois statute relating to such

wills.

III. (a) Give in substance the first half of

^ 2 of the Illinois Wills Act, viz: the part re ating

to the acknowledgment, execution and attestation

of wills. State the substance of three holdings of

Illinois cases on the question, what is a sufificient

acknowledgment.

(b) Does a residuary devise abate for pay-

ment of debts before a specific devise? State rea-

sons fully.

IV. (a) A's will read, as originally executed,

"I give my farm to my son John, $1000 to my
niece Mary, and the rest ot my property to my
daughter Ann." WMien the will was found after
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his death, the woicis "my farm to my son John"

had been cancelled with a stroke of the pen.

There is no direct evidence concerning the cancel-

lation, but it is proved that the will had been in

A's custody continuously from its execution. Who
takes the farm? Discuss fully.

(b) In which of the following cases is the will

revoked? B throws his will into the fire with in-

tent to destroy it, but only a corner, on which

there is no writing, is scorched. C throws his will

into the fire, but changes his mind and pulls the

document out before it is so far burned as to be

illegible. Reasons.

V. (a) Smith and Jones were business rivals.

For a number of months each maliciousl}'^ annoyed

and intimidated the customers of the other with

the result that the business of Jones and Smith

was greatly injured; but neither party gained in

any way by reason of the injury suffered by the

other. Each party, therefore, had a cause of ac-

tion against the other. Smith died. The execu-

tor of Smith sues Jones for Jones's tort, and Jones

sues the executor of Smith for Smith's tort. Can
either or both recover at common law or in Illi-

nois? Reasons.

(b) A was injured by the negligence of the B

railroad company, and two months later died of

his injuries. A's wife and children were depen-

dent upon him for support. His executor now
sues the B company. Can he recover, (i) under
the English law; (2) under the Illinois law? If he
can recover, what damages? Reasons in full.
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VI. Testator's will read, "I bequeath my
house and the furniture therein to A, $1000 to B,

$500 to C, and the balance of my personal estate

to D." The assets that came to the executor's

hands consisted of the furniture, worth $500, and

cash to the amount of $1200. The house was

worth $4000. Testator also owned at the time of

his death an unimproved lot worth $2000. How
should the estate be distributed if there are no

debts or expenses? If the debts and expenses

are $1200? If they are $2400? If they are $3700?

Reasons.

VII. A, a widow, made her will in 1913, leav-

ing all her estate to B, her only son. In August,

1914, her son being then in Europe, she received

news that he had been killed in attempting to es-

cape from Germany. She immediately executed

a codicil to her will, in these words: "Since I have

heard that my son is dead, I revoke my bequest to

him and leave all my property to my nephew C."

A died a few days later in the belief that her son

was dead. As a matter of fact he was alive, and

claims the estate. Who takes: B or C? Reasons.

Give two other illustrations of the general prin-

ciple involved.

VIII. State five ot the Illinois rules of de-

scent, giving facts illustrating four of the five

rules.
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EXAMINATION IN AGENCY
CHAS. E. CARPENTER

I. A made an oral contract to sell B land for

$15500. A later made out a contract under seal which

he signed but left a blank for the amount of the pur-

chase price. He orally instructed B to fill up the blank

for $15500. B in A's presence filled up the blank for

$5500. A sues B for the purchase price $15500. May

he recover?

II. An automobile and a chauffeur are hired

from a garage by the hour. Is it the proprietor or the

hirer who is liable for the chauffeur's negligence from

the garage to the hirer's home, or while hirer is being

conveyed from home to his destination, or while the

automobile is going thence to the garage? Is it of con-

sequence that the accident happens through the hirer's

insisting that the chauffeur must proceed at a pace

beyond the speed limit?

III. The defendants were the owners of the

Victor hotel and they employed one Humble to manage

it for them. Humble's name was over the door. The



plaintiff contracted with Humble to sell five automo-

biles for the use of the hotel. The plaintiff never heard

of the defendants. Humble refused to take the auto-

mobiles when tendered and plaintiff now sues the de-

fendant to recover damages for breach of the contract

to purchase the automobiles? What result?

IV. The plaintiff was a cabinet maker and the

defendants timber merchants. Youngman was em-

ployed by the defendants to sell their timber on com-

mission. Youngman knowing that a certain mahogany

log was defective in the interior represented to the plain-

tiff that it was perfectly sound and sold it to him for

3s per foot. The plaintiff called for the log, removed

it to his premises and sawed it up before discovering the

defect. The log was in fact not worth more than Is, 3d

per foot. The plaintiff brings an action of deceit against

the defendant? What result?

V. The defendant bought a horse from one

Seaver for $65.00 and agreed that if the horse sold for

more than ^65.00 he would divide the profit with Sea-

ver. Defendant then had $80 of plaintiff's money in

his pocket with which to buy that horse and was to buy

it as cheaply as possible and receive one dollar for his



services. Defendant told Seaver he had sold the horse

for $80.00 and gave Seaver $7.50, keeping $7.50 for

himself. Plaintiff wishes to know of you what his

rights are.

VI. Adams, without authority, makes a contract

to sell Peter's land to Tidd. The next day Firth obtains

a judgment against Peters and has the judgment entered

as a lien upon Peters' land. Later Peters ratifies the

contract made by Adams and seeks to compel Tidd to

accept a conveyance of the land. Can he?

VII. A cabinet maker left property in the control

and possession of his agent with the power to sell and

apply the proceeds to the security or payment of a note

indorsed by the agent. After the agent received notice

of the revocation of his authority and communicated

such notice to the defendant, he sold the property to the

defendant. Did the defendant get a good title? Sup-

pose the agent had died and his executor had sold the

property to the defendant. Would the defendant then

have got a good title?

VIII. P authorizes A to buy hay of T upon P's

credit. T refuses to ha\e anything to do with P. A,



therefore, intending to buy for P, buys the hay of T

upon his own, A's, credit. While T is still looking to

A for payment and is without knowledge of P's in-

terest in the transaction, P pays A for the hay. A not

having paid, T sues A but before judgment brings an

action against P for the price of the hay. Has P any

defense to the action ?



EXAMINATION IN BILLS AND NOTES
PROFESSOR VERNIER

1

.

Defendant D signed a printed blank check,

filled in the blanks except those for the amount and

payee and locked it in a drawer in his desk. He gave the

key to a clerk with directions to use the check during

defendant's absence if told to do so by letter or tele-

gram. P, a porter in defendant's office, broke open

the desk, stole the check, filled in his own name as payee

and two hundred dollars as the amount, and indorsed

it to B, who gave value in good faith, B cashed the

check at the drawee bank. May the drawee bank

charge this two hundred dollars to D's account?

If the drawee bank had dishonored the check could

B recover the two hundred dollars of D, after making

proper presentment and giving due notice of dishonor?

2. Is the following instrument negotiable?

$275.00 Winchester, Ind., Jan. 20, 1890.

June, 1, 1890, for value received, we jointly and

severally promise to pay to the order of Galbraith Bros.

the sum of Two Hundred and Seventy-five dollars, ne-

gotiable and payable at the Randolph County Bank of

k



WiAchester, Indiana, with inte^-est at the rate o/ 8 per

cent per annum from date, without any relief whatever

from valuation and appraisement laws. And the draw-

ers and indorsers severally waive all defenses on the

ground of any extension of time of its payment that

may be given by its holders to them or any of them.

Benjamin E. Frazee,

William Frazee.

3. Assumpsit by the Chicago Trust and Savings

Bank against Siegel, Cooper & Co., on the following

instrument:

$300.00 Chicago, March 5, 1887

On July 1, 1887, we promise to pay D. Dalziel

or order, the sum of three hundred dollars, for the

privilege of one framed advertising sign, size 20x22

inches, one end of each of one hundred and fifty street

cars of the North Chicago City Railway Co. for a

term of three months, from May 15, 1887.

Siegel, Cooper & Co.

On the day of execution, Dalziel, the payee, in-

dorsed to the plaintiff bank for value. Before the time

for advertising arrived Dalziel lost his right to use the

cars for advertising and the privilege was never fur-



nlr-hf-d. The d^fensfe is failure of consideration. Is it

good against plaintiff?

4. Is the follovviug instrument negotiable in

form?

$1500.00 Denver, March 1, 1912

Pay to the order of S. B, Allison, Fifteen Hundred

dollars on account of contract between you and the Smith

Milling Co., and charge to our account, on ledger B.

Smith Milling Co.

To J. J. Lightner,

Denver, Colo.

5. Replevin by William Hobbs against Samuel

A. Brown to recover 10 coupons valued at $25 each.

The coupons while owned by Hobbs had been attached

to bonds issued by the Adams Express Co., and had

been detached by a thief and sold to Defendant Brown,

who bought them in good faith and for value. The

coupons were payable to bearer and were negotiable

in form, unless made not so by the following stipulation :

"Payable only out of the assets of this company, which

is an unincorporated joint stock association." Judg-

ment?



8

6. Suit by P, payee of two notes, against the

maker, M. M admits his signature but in defense sets

up the following facts : That the notes when signed by

him were blank as to amount and payee; that he gave

these blank notes to his agent A, with authority to see

X and Y, and if satisfactory to X and Y, to make them

payees of the notes and to fill in the notes for what-

ever amount M owed X and Y, which in neither case

exceeded $300; that A, disregarding his authority filled

in the first note for $500, made P, payee, and gave it

to P in its completed form in payment of a debt due

from A to P : that A gave the second note to P for a

loan of $500, P filling in his own name as payee and

the amount at $500 in A's presence. M does not deny

P's good faith in either case. Should he recover?

7. Plaintiff, as indorsee of a bill of exchange,

sues defendant as acceptor. The bill was drawn in

the ordinary form, but there was no acceptance upon the

face of the bill. Should plaintiff recover

:

(a.) If he puts in evidence a written promise of

defendant to accept the bill, such promise being dated

before the bill was drawn?

(h.) If the word accepted is written across the
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no signature?

(c, ) If plaintiff proves that previous to taking

the bill he called defendant by telephone and defendant

orally promised to accept the next day?

8. M is the maker of a note payable to P or or-

der, dated and executed in Chicago, Jan. 31, 1905,

payable one month from date. The note is indorsed by

P, A, B, C, and D, in the order named, E is the holder

at maturity. State in detail the steps E must take to

fix the liability of all prior parties under the following

circumstances:

M resides in Chicago, where the note is dated, but

is engaged in business in Pullman. At the time the note

falls due he is attending the session of the legislature

(as a member) at Springfield. P lives and does busi-

ness in Chicago. A and B live in Peoria but have no

fixed place of business, C and D live and do business in

Urbana, where E also resides,

9. (a,) M signed a promissory note for $500

payable to the order of P. The consideration between

P and M has failed. P indorsed specially to A, who
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took for value in good faith. A indorsed to B who

took by way of gift. B, who held the note at maturity,

was induced to indorse to C by fraud of C. C, after

maturity, indorsed to D, who took for value in good

faith. May B recover possession of the note from D ?

(b.) In a suit on the note by D has M any de-

fense ?
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EXAMINATION IN CONSTITUTIONAL LAW
PROFESSOR GREEN

1. A Louisiana statute required railway compan-

ies to provide equal but separate accommodations for

white and colored passengers, and made it a misde-

meanor for any passenger to insist upon going into a

coach reserved for persons of the other race. A color-

ed passenger was prosecuted for violating the statute.

Is he subject to punishment?

2. An Illinois statute provided that corporations

of other states doing business in Illinois should be charg-

ed the same license fees as those which their own states

exacted of Illinois corporations. When the law was

passed a Pennsylvania corporation was doing a business

of life insurance In Illinois under a license for a year.

The year now being up, it contends that, although

Pennsylvania exacts heavier license fees from Illinois

corporations than any other state does, Illinois cannot

require it to pay a heavier license fee, as a condition of

doing business for the future, than Illinois exacts from

life insurance companies of other states, because to do

so would deny to it the equal protection of the laws
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and deprive it of property without due process, of law,

and also that the statute is void as an attempt by the

legislature of Illinois to delegate legislative power to

other states. Are these contentions sound?

3. It has been said that the due process clause

in the fourteenth amendment was intended and should

have been construed to restrict only the power of the

states over procedure, and should not have been so

construed as to restrict their power to alter substantive

rights. What is your opinion?

4. In the case of Ju Toy, a man of Chinese de-

scent, who attempted to enter the United States at San

Francisco was detained to enforce an order made after

hearing by the Collector of the port for his exclusion

upon the ground of alienage. He petitioned for a

writ of habeas corpus to obtain his release, that he

might enter the country, and satisfied the court that

he was a United States citizen. What was the deci-

sion ? Explain its reason and scope.

5. After repeated decisions of the highest court

of a state that bonds issued pursuant to a certain statute

were valid, a city of the state made such an issue of
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bon/is, and the star^ court, overruling its former deci-

sions, so construed the state constitution as to make the

statute and the bonds void. A citizen of another state,

who had bought a bond in rehance upon the earher

decisions, sued the city upon it in a United States court.

Will the United States court construe the state consti-

tution according to the earlier decisions, according to

the latest decision, or according to its own opinion?

What principle do you think should control the decision

of the United States court?

6. A state senate by resolution directed a com-

mittee of its members to investigate the management of

the state normal schools. By state statute committees

of the house or senate were given power to summon

and examine witnesses. X, summoned by the commit-

tee as a witness, refused to attend, and after hearing

him, the senate pronounced him guilty of contempt and

committed him to jail. He brings habeas corpus pro-

ceedings alleging that the senate has not judicial power

and that its sentence to imprisonment for an offence

not committed in its presence is void. What decision?

7. Discuss the power of Congress in time of peace

to issue treasury notes in small denominations and make
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them legal teader in payment o.f private dfbt.

8. Is an act of Congress which taxes incomes in

general valid as applied to income from bonds of the

city of Champaign? Is an act of Congress which taxes

inheritances in general valid as applied to bonds of the

city of Champaign?

9. A sold in Illinois two casks of oleomargarine

artificially colored to look like butter which he had

brought for the purpose of so selling them, one from

Canada and the other from New York. What is the

validity as applied to these sales of an Illinois statute

taxing at a cent a pound the sale of oleomargarine so

colored? Of a statute forbidding the sale of oleomar-

garine so colored? Forbidding the sale of all oleomar-

garine ?

10. A bill introduced into Congress provides for

a federal commission whose duty it shall be to examine

moving picture films submitted to the commission, and

to license those which are not immoral. It forbids un-

der penalty transporting in interstate commerce an

unlicensed film, or altering, except by elimination, a li-

censed one. Discuss its constitutionality.
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CONTRACTS
PROFESSOR DECKER

1. At a farm auction, it was announced in ad-

vance that no bids could be withdrawn, and that every

article put up would be sold without reserve to the

highest bidder.

(a.) Jones bid $50 for a corn-husker, but after-

wards notified the auctioneer that he withdrew the bid.

The husker was nevertheless knocked down to Jones,

whose bid was the highest. Is he liable for the price?

(b.) Suppose that instead of Jones withdrawing,

the auctioneer had withdrawn the husker after Jones'

bid. What are Jones' rights?

2. D had been looking at automobiles in P's

garage. He liked the looks of a certain machine and B

told him to take it out and try it and if he did not bring

it back by evening, he, P, would consider it sold. D
took the machine out, drove it into the country and did

not get back until next day. He then returned the

machine to P's garage and said he would not take it.

Whose machine is it?

3. X offered to sell a certain horse to Y and



16

tojd him that he would keep the cff^r open for a wee^:.

Two days later Y saw M driving the horse and was

told by a friend that M had bought the horse from X.

Y immediately went to X and said that he had decided

to accept X's offer and tendered the price of the horse.

X refused the money, having in fact sold the horse to

M. What are Y's rights?

4. D, a Chicago wholesaler, on the 10th wrote

to P, a salesman then in New York, as follows: "Our

southern representative has been taken sick and we need

a good man for his territory at once. We are willing

to pay $2,500 a year and expenses to the right man.

Would you like the job? If so, let me hear from you

without delay." P received this letter on the morning

of the 12th, and on the same evening he wired D : "Yes,

I accept position. Leave for Chicago tomorrow." This

message was delayed by a blizzard and had not reached

D when P called on him in Chicago on the 15th. At

that time D informed P that he had not intended his

letter as an offer, but that he was too late anyway, as

he had hired X the day before. P claims a contract.

W^hich is right?

5. X sent his son for Christmas a note for $1,000



17

payable in 60 days, and in a letter accompanying the

note, he said: "Now you can buy that automobile which

you have been wanting so long." The son promptly

contracted with a dealer for an automobile to cost $1,-

200, payable $200 down, and the balance payable Feb-

ruary 25th, intending to use the proceeds of the note.

The son then wrote and thanked his father for the

note and told him what he had done, to which X made

no objection.

(a.) If X does not pay the note, will he be liable

in an action thereon by the son?

(b.) If the son had indorsed the note to the

dealer, at the same time that he paid the $200 in pay-

ment for the machine, would X be liable in an action on

the note by the dealer?

6. Roe and Doe, managers of the Star Lecture

Course, after some correspondence, entered into the

following agreement: "W. F. Byron agrees, subject to

the proviso hereinafter contained, to deliver a lecture

at the University Auditorium at Urbana, 111., on the

evening of the 5th day of January, 1916, on the sub-

ject, 'The Dove of Peace.'

"Roe and Doe, Managers of the Star Lecture
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Course, hereby agree to pay the said W. F. Byron the

sum of $200 immediately after said lecture as compen-

sation therefor.

"Provided, however, that if the said W. F. Byron

shall find that other duties will make it impossible for

him to meet the above engagement, he may cancel this

agreement at any time prior to December 15, 1915, by

giving written notice of his intention so to do."

This agreement was originally signed by Mr.

Byron and afterwards by Roe and Doe on the 15th of

October, 1915.

(a.) Would Roe and Doe be liable for breach of

contract if they should deny Mr. Byron the right to lec-

ture at the time agreed upon?

(b. ) Would it alter your answer if they had noti-

fied Mr. Byron on December 1, 1915, that they had de-

cided that his lecture would not be popular and that he

could consider the engagement cancelled?

7. A ordered a suit of clothes from his tailor, B,

without agreement as to the price.

(a.) Suppose B delivered the clothes with a bill

<^or $40 and A puts the clothes on and wears them.

What would be the extent of A's liability? How should
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13 sue If A fails to pay?

(b. ) Suppose B delivers the clothes without a

bill, but later sends one for $40 after A has worn the

clothes. A refuses to pay, claiming $40 Is too much.

Same questions as above ?

(c.) Add to facts in (b) that A and B finally

agree on $35 and A promises to pay that amount in 30

days. In the meantime the clothes wear poorly and it

appears they are not worth more than $20. There was

no warranty of quality. Is A bound by his promise?

8. Discuss the doctrine of moral consideration

briefly.

9. Smith holds Jones' note for $100, bearing 6

per cent interest, due January 2, 1916. On that day

Jones paid Smith $25 and told Smith that he would

pay the balance within the next 30 days If Smith would

agree not to press the claim for that length of time.

Smith agreed provided that Jones would get a surety.

Peters, at Jones' request, guaranteed the payment by

Jones according to agreement.

(a.) What is the earliest date that Smith will

have a right to sue Jones?
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(b. ) tis the rr any ccMisidexationior Pefers' prom-

ISC'

10. X, an importer, agreed with Y, a cloth manu-

facturer, to furnish Y with all the dyes that he needed

in his business for the year 1914, and Y agreed to buy

at certain prices agreed upon. Because of the war, the

price of dyes began to soar and in September, X notified

Y that he could not furnish any more dyes at the con-

tract price, and would furnish no more at all unless Y

would agree to pay the market price. Y agreed to this

and X then shipped another consignment of dyes. At

which price is X entitled to payment?
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EXAMINATION IN CRIMINAL L/^W
PROFESSOR VERNIER

1. Producing an abortion is made a felony by a

statute reading: "Whoever, by means of any instrument,

medicine, drug, or other means whatever, causes or

attempts to cause any woman to abort or miscarry, un-

less the same be done as necessary for the preservation

of the mother's life, shall be punished, etc." M, be-

lieving that she is pregnant, induces D to administer

drugs for the purpose of causing an abortion. The

drugs used cause M's death and it is ascertained that M
was not pregnant. Of what crime, or crimes, if any, is

D guilty?

2. Defendants, three Chinese, are indicted for

conspiracy to bring other Chinese into the United States

contrary to law. The plan was originally suggested to

defendants by government detectives who wished to

place the principal defendant in a position where he

would be willing to disclose the names of other Chinese

believed to be at the head of the business of importing

Chinese into this country contrary to law. Defendants

were reluctant to engage in the enterprise, but were in-
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duced to act by a p'romise of governm'enti'l protection.

The only authority given the detectives was to ascertain

who were engaged in illegal importation of Chinese

and make arrests. This indictment was found when

defendants refused to reveal the names of any others

engaged in importing Chinese. Are defendants guilty

under this state of facts?

3. (a) D is indicted in Illinois for the murder

of A. Should he be convicted on the following state

of facts? D gave A poison at Gary, Indiana, which

caused A to become unconscious. D, believing that A
was dead, in order to conceal the body, boxed it up and

took it to Chicago, where he cut it up and burned it.

Assume that A did not die until his head was cut off

in Chicago.

(b). D, standing in Illinois near the Indiana line,

shoots at A who is standing in Indiana. A is taken to

Rochester, Minnesota, for an operation and dies there.

Where should D be indicted for murder? If he is in-

dicted in Indiana, is D subject to extradition from Illi-

nois?

4. Is D guilty of rape at common law under the
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following states of fact? Is D guilty of any other

crime?

(a.) A permits D to have carnal intercourse

with her in the mistaken belief that he is her husband

H.

(b. ) A is a woman 20 years old. D, a physician

induces her to permit carnal intercourse by him, by

representing that this is medical treatment to which

her father has consented, and that in order to save her

life, it is necessary to submit to this or permit an opera-

tion which might and probably would result fatally.

The above representation is wholly false, but is believed

by A.

(c.) D is a boy of 13 and has forcible intercourse

with A, a girl of 18. A does not consent.

5. Is D criminally responsible for the death of

A under the following states of fact? If so, how?

(a.) D committed assault and battery on B.

B's mother, A, seeing the fight and suffering from a

weak heart, died of shock within a few minutes.

(b.) D commits assault and battery on A. A

k knocked from the sidewalk onto the street where an

automobile runs over and kills him.
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(c.) D shoots A, inflicting a wound not n-ere"?-

sarily mortal. A dies from scarlet fever negligently

communicated by the physician called to attend A's

wound.

6. (a.) D, the proprietor of a saloon in a city

which has v^oted dry, opens a restaurant and serves

soft drinks. A manufacturer induces him to under-

take the sale of a new drink, alleged to resemble beer

except that it is not intoxicating. To be safe, D pre-

pares to have a bottle analyzed before beginning sale.

He tells his former bar-tender B not to begin selling

until D telephones the result of the analysis, A few

hours later, C, a practical joker, imitating D's voice,

telephones B,
—"Go ahead, the analysis is all right." B

thereupon begins the sale of the new drink, which is in

fact intoxicating as the analysis proves. B and D are

both indicted for selling intoxicating liquor in dry ter-

ritory. Have they any defense?

(b). D sold liquor to a minor in a state having

a statute reading, "Whoever, by himself, or his agent

or servant, shall sell or give intoxicating liquor to any

minor without the written order of his parent, guar-

dian or family physician, shall for each offense be fin-
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ed, etc." D's defense is that he sold in good faith, rea-

sonably believing the minor to be of age. Assuming

that D did sell in good faith and that it was reasonable

to mistake the minor for an adult, is the defense good?

7. Is D guilty of manslaughter in the following

cases ?

(a.) A statute makes racing on the public high-

ways a finable offense. D, while racing on the public

highway with B runs over and kills A.

(b.) A statute makes it a finable offense to pass

a toll-gate without paying. D attempts to drive by a

toll-gate without paving. A, the keeper, lowers the

har. D's horse >s frightened by being driven against

the bar, plunges aside and kills A.

(c). A statute makes it a misdemeanor to carry

concealed weapons. D, while violating this statute,

engages in a friendly scuffle with A. D and A fall

and the weapon is discharged, killing A.

8. D, rooming in the same house with A, plans

to poison A. D buys a liquid poison, which he places in

a medicine cabinet until an opportunity offers to use

it safely. The opportunity occurs one night when A is
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sick and as4^.s D to bring him a glass of water. D, in

his haste, mistakes a bottle of mild emetic for the bot-

tle of poison, places a spoonful of the former in A's

glass of water and gives it to A. A is made slightl)

ill but suffers no permanent injury. Of what crime,

if any, is D guilty?

9. A handed D, a barber, a five dollar bill in

payment for a shave and hair-cut. The latter secured

the change and then decided to deceive A. He gave A
four dollars only in change, instead of the proper

amount—four dollars and sixty cents. Of what crime,

if any, is D guilty?

10. Should D the servant of M be convicted of

larceny under the following states of fact?

(a) M hands D a parcel to be delivered to W.

D keeps it.

(b). D delivers the parcel toW and receives $10

in return, which he keeps.

(c) D delivers the parcel and is given a load of

wood to be hauled back to M in M's wagon. On the

way back D sells the wood for $10 and keeps the money.
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• DAMAGES
PROFESSOR DECKER

1. What Is meant by a remittitur? When is it

proper and what criticism has been directed toward the

practice? Illustrate.

2. A agreed to sell and B agreed to buy Black-

acre for the sum of $5,000, and as part of the contract

stipulated that if either party failed to perform, he

should pay to the other the sum of $500 as liquidated

damages. A refused to complete the purchase because

his wife did not like the property. B sues and seeks

to recover the amount stipulated. Is he entitled to that

amount, assuming that experts would testify that the

property was worth not less than $4800 ? Would the

fact that the stipulation is made to work both ways af-

fect the question involved?

3. (a.) P holds D's note for $1,000, payable

in one year from date, "with interest at six per cent."

Assuming that all parties reside in Illinois, how much

interest can P recover in a suit on the note, if judgment

is entered one year after maturity?
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(b. ) Would your answer be affected if the nott

contained the following stipulation: "If not paid when

due, then this note shall bear 20 per cent interest until

paid"?

4. By his father's will, P was left two portraits,

one of his father and the other of his mother, which he

very highly prized, but which would neither have

had a salable value of more than $5. One of these pic-

tures was destroyed by the negligence of the servants

of the X railroad, which had received them for ship-

ment as "pictures,*' without asking their value. The

other was stolen during transit. P offered a reward

for the return of the stolen picture of $50, which he

subsequently paid to a pawn-broken, who had obtain-

ed the picture from the thief and restored it to P. In

an action on the case against the X railroad, what ele-

ments of damage may P recover, and how should they

be measured? Would a verdict for $500 be excessive?

5. Smith owned a house and lot which he occu-

pied as a residence on the east side of Urbana. Brown

owned a low lot adjoining on which he maintained a

pigpen In a filthy condition, so that the stench was very
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o.ffenr.ive to Smith and his family. On the other side

of Smith's lot the Urhana Electric Co. erected a large

powerhouse, the machinery in which caused a very

noticeable vibration of the ground for some distance

around it. Smith brings separate suits against Brown

and the Electric Co. and in each case seeks to introduce

evidence of the decrease in the value of his land because

of the acts of the defendant. Is such evidence admis-

sible in either or both cases?

6. P owned a coal mine near Danville, 111. In

May, 1914, he contracted with the Board of Educa-

tion of Chicago to supply it with coal for all of its school

buildings for a year, at $2.60 per ton, F, O. B. Chi-

cago, deliveries to be made in specified quantities, com-

mencing with 1,000 tons in September, and continuing

through the winter. In June, 1914, P made a contract

with the Chicago & Eastern R. R. Co., which operated

a line from Danville to Chicago, by which that com-

pany agreed to furnish P with not less than SO cars

per month at the pit mouth to be loaded with coal for

Chicago, commencing in September and continuing till

March following. The railroad supplied only 20 cars

in September and as a result P could not meet the re-
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quirements cf his contract with the Board of Education,

which rescinded it. The existence of this contract was

known to the railroad on September 1st, but not before.

The railroad furnished 80 cars in October and after-

wards conformed to its contract. The wholesale price

of coal in Chicago during September was $2.50 per ton.

In October it was $2.40 per ton, and so continued for

the balance of the winter. What damages is P entitled

to recover from the railroad?

7. On April 1, 1915, Jones hired out in New

York to Smith, master of a merchant steamer, to sail

as first mate for six months between the port of

New York and neutral Atlantic ports, with .i

salary of $150 per month. On the first

voyage, the ship put in at Liverpool and was there char-

tered by the English government to serve as a supply

ship between London and the Dardennelles. Jones pro-

tested that he would not serve and went ashore to see

the American consul. He was arrested by British of-

ficers as a deserter, confined for two days and then dis-

charged. In the meantime the ship had sailed, carrying

off part of his clothes. He remained in England for a

month to sec the sights and then took passage to New
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"^I'nrk as a common seaman, though he ('ould have ob-

tained a job as an officer on an English ship at

$200.00 per month. In New York he was idle for two

months, though he searched diligently for a job as first

mate of an American or other neutral ship. He then

took a job as second mate of a vessel in the American

traffic with a salary of $100 per month. To what ele-

ments of damages is he entitled from Smith, and how

should they be estimated?

8. X sold and conveyed Blackacre to Y by full

warranty deed, for the sum of $5,000. Y was evicted

by S, whose title was prior to and superior to X's. The

property was worth $5,500. How much could Y re-

cover from X in an action for breach of the covenant

of warranty?

9. D agreed to let to P 20 cows and 20 sows for

a term of three years. P agreed to conduct a dairy

business and feed the skim milk to the sows and their

offspring. P was to have the cream and P and D were

to share equally the increase of the hogs. If D breaks

this agreement, what will be the extent of his liability

toP?
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EXAMINATION IN EQUITY
PROFESSOR POMEROY

I. May the rendering of personal services, with-

out taking possession, be a sufficient part performance

to take an oral contract to convey land, made in con-

sideration of the services, out of the statute of frauds?

Discuss the question fully, with illustrative facts, ex-

plaining the principles involved, and showing the state

of the law on this question in England, in the United

States generally, and in Illinois.

II. State the rule of Mayor vs. Emmons, i. e.,

the exceptional case where specific performance of a

building contract is decreed. Show how a similar rule

applies to the case where a railroad company buys a

right of way from A and agrees to maintain a "first

class station" for A's use.

III. The Wabash Railroad, in extending its line

from Champaign to Gibson City, has received a permit

from the city of Champaign to lay its tracks in North

State street. A, owning a house and lot fronting on

North State street, also owns the fee of the adjacent
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part of the street to its middle line. The \V. R. R. Co.

is laying its track in the middle of North State street, in

front of A's premises, without A's permission, and

without bringing a condemnation suit against A. A now

sues the W. R. R. Co. to enjoin the laying of the track.

Should A succeed ? On what grounds? Show whether

or not A's legal remedies are adequate.

IV. Clark, a physician in Chicago, sold his prac-

tice to Brown, and agreed not to engage in the practice

of his profession in Cook county. Clark, in connection

with this contract, executed a bond for its performance,

with a stipulation for $50 as "liquidated damages" for

each and every breach. Clark having committed sev-

eral breaches of the contract. Brown sues to enjoin him

from further breaches. Clark asserts that Brown's

remedy at law is adequate. Discuss.

V. In 1895 the city council of Douglas granted

the Arizona telephone company a franchise to operate

telephones in that city for thirty years, the company

agreeing that $3 per month should be the maximum

rate for business telephones during the continuance of

the franchise. The city at the same time by a separate
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contract rented to the company for fifteen years a

building for its central station at $100 per month, with

on option to renew the lease on the same terms. In 1910

the company raised its rates for business telephones to

$5 per month; and the city refused to renew the lease

for less than $200 per month. The company sues the

city for specific performance and the city sues the com-

pany to enjoin it from raising its rates. The city de-

fends on the ground that by the growth of the city the

rental value of the building has more than doubled. The

company defends on the ground that its subscribers have

increased four fold, and proves that its operating ex-

penses have much more than quadrupled; it being a

pecularity of the telephone business than an increase in

business involves more than a proportional increase in

operating expenses. What results? Discuss.

VI. (a.) Is specific performance usually grant-

ed of a contract for the sale of a patent? Why?

(b. ) Why does a court of equity take jurisdiction

of a vendor's suit for specific performance?

VII. A contracts to sell a tract of land to B. A's

title to a portion of the land is defective, (a.) When
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may A force B to take the land with a deduction from

the purchase price? (b.) When may B compel A
to convey, B paying the full purchase price? (c.) When

may B compel A to convey for less than the purchase

price? (d. ) In the last two cases, suppose the defect

in the title consists of the possibility that A's wife may

survive A and claim dower in the land?

VIII. Explain fully, with an illustration, what is

meant by "equitable waste."

IX. A is mortgagor, B. mortgagee, C, A's gran-

cee of the mortgaged premises, who has assumed pay-

ment of the mortgage debt. Explain the relationship

of these three parties, showing: (a) what remedies B

has for the collection of the debt, and why; (b) the

effect of an extension of the time for payment given by

B to C ; (c) the effect of payment of the debt by A.

X. Show whether each of the six elements re-

quisite to constitute an estoppel is contained in the fol-

lowing case

:

Brown sold and conveyed a house and lot to his

daughter Jane for her residence, the purchase price be-
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ing stated by the deed to be unpaid. The deed was re-

corded. Brown stated to Gray, a grocer, "I have given

the house to Jane so that she can have all the credit

she needs for household supplies," Gray, relying on

this statement as to Jane's ownership, sold her a large

bill of goods on credit; got judgment against her, and

levied execution on the land. Brown asserts that his

grantor's lien is superior to the judgment lien. Gray

replies that as against him Brown is estopped to set up a

grantor's lien.
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E^'AIilINATICN n INSURANCE
PROFESSOR GREEN

1. In Taylor v. Dunbar meat insured against sea

peril was damaged by delay on the voyage caused by a

storm of unusual violence. In Montoya v. London As-

surance Co. the flavor of tobacco insured against sea

peril was spoilt by rotten hides stowed near it. The

hides rotted because wet by sea water shipped on the

voyage in a storm. In each case the court talked about

the proximate cause of the loss. What was decided as

to the underwriters' liability? Comment upon or ex-

plain the application of the doctrine of proximate cause.

2. A insured against damage by fire the furniture

contained in his dwelling house. A fire broke out next

door and A, fearing it would spread to his house and

damage the furniture, reasonably hired a boy for $2

to help him carry it to a place of safety. It was raining

at the time. The fire was easily put out, and the furni-

ture if left alone would not have been harmed. A tried

to recover from his insurer the $2 paid to the boy, the

damage to the furniture by rain, and the value of some

of the furniture which the boy stole. What, if any-
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thing, may he recover for?

3. A policy against death by accident provides

that it shall not cover death resulting from gas. Will

the company be liable in case of death from the concus-

sion of an accidental explosion of gas? In case of death

from gas intentionally inhaled at a dentist's? In case

of death from inhaling while asleep illuminating gas

accidentally turned on?

4. A owned land worth $1000 and a house on

it worth $5000. He insured the house against fire for

$4000. Then he mortgaged house and land to B to se-

cure a debt of $4000 which he owed to B. B insured

the house for $5000 in a different company. C Inten-

tionally set fire to the house and it was totally destroyed.

Neither policy said anything about the interest of the in-

sured. For how much is each company liable? To what

extent, if any, is each entitled to subrogation?

5. A insured his house in Urbana with the X fire

insurance company. The Y company thereafter agreed

wiih the X company to reinsure all its risks in Urbana.

A's house burned. The X company is insolvent and
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can

it

pay only a small percentage of the claims against

What is the X company's liability to A? What is

the Y company's liability to A? What is the Y com-

pany's liability to the X company?

(^. A owed $1000 to B who was incurably ill. C,

B's son and only next of kin, with A's consent insured

A's Hfe for $1200 for the purpose of protecting himself

against loss of the debt. B died. A paid the debt to

B's administrator, D. C thereafter assigned the policy

for value to E. A died. Is the insurance company

liable ; for how much ; and to whom ?

7. A, absent from home, received an anonymous

letter threatening to burn down his house. In alarm

he telegraphed to his brother to procure insurance at

once. The brother procured insurance as agent of A.

He mistakenly told the company, in answer to their

question that the house was heated by stoves only and

not by furnace. In fact it was heated by furnace only,

a safer method. The house burned by a fire which

caught from the furnace. Is the company liable?

8. A took out a policy of life insurance with the
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X company, in which it y/a? stated that the application

was a part of the policy. In the application A stated

over his signature by filling blanks in a printed form

that he had not applied to any other company for in-

surance, and that he had never had tuberculosis. In

fact he had applied to another company and had been

examined and accepted by it, but had decided to insure

with the X company instead. He had for several years

had tuberculosis of the lungs, but had been told by his

doctor and believed that it was only chronic bronchitis.

He died of tuberculosis. Is the policy enforcible and

why?

0. A policy provided that it should be void if

there were prior insurance. There wa§ prior insur-

ance. In an action on the policy, the insured offered

to show that he informed the company of the prior in-

surance just before making the contract and that he

did not know the policy contained a clause against it

until after the loss. Is the evidence relevant?

10. The owner of goods insured against fire sold

a half interest in them to A and at the same time In-

dorsed on the policy, "Pay one half the loss to A," sign-
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ed it and delivered the policy to A, who presented it to

the insurance company and asked them to assent. The

company wrote underneath the indorsement "Assent-

ed to by the company," The goods were burned. For

what, if any part of the loss is the company liable and

to whom?
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EXAMINATION IN MORTGAGES
PROFESSOR POMEROY

I. A son entered into an agreement in writing

with his father, whereby the son agreed to spend $500

in building a house on the father's farm, and the father

agreed that if he should sell the farm, out of the money

arising from the sale $500 should be payable to the

son, with interest from the time the house was complet-

ed; or in case the father should die without devising the

farm to the son, that $500 should be paid the son out

of the estate. The son complied with his part of the

contract, and five years later, no interest having been

paid, and the farm not having been sold, he sues his

father to foreclose the equitable Hen which, he main-

tains, arose from the contract. Should he succeed?

Discuss.

II. A mortgaged a house to B on January 2nd,

1915, to secure a note falling due January 2nd, 1916,

for $3000, the fair value of the house being $5000.

The mortgage contained a clause giving B an option

to purchase the equity of redemption on or before Jan.

2nd, 1916 for $2000. On December 15, 1915, B gave
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notice of his intent to exercise this option. On January

2nd, 1916, A tendered B the principal and interest due

on the note, and B tendered to A $2000; each tender

was refused. A now sues to redeem from the mortgage

and B brings a cross bill for specific performance. What

result? Reasons.

III. A mortgaged a tract of land to B for $1200.

Subsequently A divided the tract into four lots and sold

them, by waranty deed, in the order 1, 2, 3, 4, to P. Q.

R and S respectively. Each of the purchasers, Q. R.

and S. had notice, at the time of his purchase, of the

sale of the lots previously sold. P and S. each recorded

his deed immediately, but B never had actual notice of

the sales to them. Q and R each failed to record his

deed, but B had actual notice of the sales to Q. and R.

Later, B released R's lot (No. 3) from the mortgage.

B now forecloses. Lot No. 1 will sell at foreclosure

sale for $700, each of the others for $500. In what order

should they be sold? State reasons fully.

IV. A mortgaged lots 1 and 2 to B in one instru-

ment; this mortgage was recorded, A afterwards mort-

gaged lot 1 to C ; this mortgage was also recorded.
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Later A mortgaged lot 2 to D. Lot 1 is insufficient to

pay both B's and C's mortgages; lots 1 and 2 together

are insufficient to pay all three mortgages. What are

the rights of C and D? Discuss fully.

V. A on April 2nd mortgaged a farm to B. By

the terms of the mortgage the mortgagee is entitled to

immediate possession. On January 1 previous, A had

leased the premises to C, the rent being payable quar-

terly, on April 1, July 1, October 1, etc. On Septem-

ber 2 B served notice on C to pay him (B) all arrears

of rents and all rents as they should fall due in future;

on September 1 A had served a similar notice on C. Ten

days later C paid the April and July rents to A, but

failed to pay the October rents to either party. On

October 15 B sues C for the April, July and October

rents. What result? Explain fully.

VL A sold certain machinery to B for use in B's

mill, A retaining title to the machinery until paid for.

On February 1st B mortgaged the mill with all its

machinery and fixtures to C, to secure a note for $10,-

000, which was more than the mill without the machin-

ery was worth. On that date a part of the machinery
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had been put in place and a part was stored in a shed

on the premises; the latter part, however, was put in

place within a month. By the law of the jurisdiction,

the title of a conditional vendor of chattels is good even

against a bone fide purchaser of the chattel. Can C,

who was ignorant of A's title to the machinery, include

it in his foreclosure sale? Reasons.

VII. A, owning two adjoining lots X and Y,

mortgaged X to B, later he sold X to C, reserving a

right of way over X for the benefit of Y ; C assuming

payment of the mortgage debt. The mortgage was

foreclosed, A and C being parties to the suit. C pur-

chased at the foreclosure sale, and now resists A's

claim to the right of way. What result? Reasons in

full.

Viri. On January 3rd, 1916, Smith, having an

oral contract to purchase Blackacre from Jones, who

held the recorded fee-simple title, executed a mortgage

of Blackacre, with full warranties, to Brown, which

was recorded on the same day. On January 4th, Smith

received from Jones his conveyance in fee simple of

Blackacre, which was recorded on the same day. On
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January 5th Smith mortgaged Blackacre to Gray, who

had no notice of Brown's mortgage, unless the record

thereof was constructive notice. Does Gray, who record-

ed his mortgage immediately take in subordination to

Brown's mortgage? Discuss.

IX. On Jan. 2, 1915, Smith purchased Blackacre

the money being furnished by Jones, and received title.

On January 3rd Smith mortgaged to Brown, who took

his mortgage in good faith without knowledge of Jones's

equity. In April Jones began suit to have a resulting

trust declared in the land, making Smith and Brown

parties. On July 2nd, Brown's mortgage being due,

Gray advanced to Smith the money to pay it off, and,

that being done, received from Smith a mortgage to

secure the amount so advanced. In September a de-

cree in Jones' suit was rendered in his favor. On Oct.

2nd, White, with knowledge that Gray's mortgage had

been given in substitution for the previous mortgage

to Brown, advanced to Smith the money to pay off the

Gray mortgage, which was done. Has White any right

as against Jones ? Discuss.

X. T mortgaged Blackacre to A on January
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2nd to secure $1000 then loaned, and such loans, not

exceeding $1000, as A might thereafter make to T,

This mortgage was recorded. On Jan. 10th T mort-

gaged Blackacre to B to secure $900 then loaned. On

January 20th A advanced $800 to T under the first

mortgage.

Blackacre yielded $2200 on foreclosure. How

should this fund be distributed on the suppositions : ( 1

)

that A had actual notice of B's mortgage before Jan.

20; (2) that A had no actual notice of B's mortgage

but the latter was recorded before Jan. 20 ? Reasons.
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EXAMINATION IN PARTNERSHIP
PROFESSOR HALE

1. A and B agreed that A should buy a farm with

his own money, take title in his own name and own the

farm; that B should buy the necessary stock and im-

plements for farming, should own the same, and should

furnish all the labor and carry on the farm, and that

the crops should be equally divided.

A and B also made another agreement as to an-

other farm in all respects the same, except that the

crops should be sold and the net proceeds divided after

paying to A a certain stipulated rent for the farm, and

to B a certain sum for the use of his farm implements.

In the first agreement A and B described themselves

as partners, but in the second agreement nothing was

said on the subject. Was there a partnership in either

or both cases?

2. X, a member of the firm of X, Y, and Z, with-

out the knowledge or consent of his co-partners, but

acting on behalf of the firm, obtained goods from the

plaintiff by fraudulent misrepresentations, sold them,

pocketed the proceeds, and absconded. Plaintiff sued
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only Y, who pleaded the nonjoinder of X and Z. Was

the plea good ?

3. A, B, C, D, E, and F, each owned 2 acres of

land and had laid out his tract into city lots. They

incorporated for the purpose of grading and paving

the streets. A, B and C were elected directors of the

company, which was called the Parkland Improvement

company. One thousand dollars worth of paving ma-

terial was purchased of X, who dealt with the company

on the assumption that it was a corporation. The law

under which the incorporation was attempted has been

declared unconstitutional and the debt to X remains

unpaid. How may X proceed to realize upon his claim ?

4. A and B were in partnership. The firm is

bankrupt and A and B are bankrupt. How shall the

separate property be distributed provided:

(a.) The firm assets are sufficient to pay firm

creditors 10 cents on the dollar and the individual assets

are sufficient to pay individual creditors 80 cents on

the dollar.

(b.) The firm property will be exhausted in pay-

ing the costs of the bankruptcy proceedings.
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5. A and B were In partnership in a mercantile

business in the town of X under the name of the A Co.

A sold all his interest in the partnership to B. What

privileges does this transfer give to B in the future con-

duct of the business and what restrictions are imposed

upon A? Give reasons for rules laid down.

6. A and B formed a partnership for the practice

of law. A v/ithout B's knowledge or consent ordered of

the X book company in the firm name the following

books

:

Shearman & Redfield on Negligence $10.00, Wig-

more on Evidence ^32.00 and the Lives of the Lord

Chancellors of England, $25.00.

B denied all liability on this order.

(a.) In an action by the X Book company against

A and B as partners, what judgment?

(b.) Supi^ose A had borrowed $60 from the Y

Bank to pay for the books and executed in the name of

the firm a note in favor of the bank for that amount,

what rights would the bank have on this note?

7. A, B and C were In partnership engaged in the

business of raising cattle for the market. They owned

as partners one thousand acres of land and one thousand
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head of cattle. X, Y and Z, individual creditors of A,

B and C, respectively, each in turn had the interest of

his debtor in the partnership seized under execution and

sold. X, Y and Z also each bought in the interest he

had seized. Thereafter K, a creditor of the partnership

levied upon and bought in the entire holdings of the

partnership. What are the rights of X, Y, Z and K

to the property?

8. A and B were in partnership. In the conduct

of the business debts to the amount of $2000 were in-

curred. The partnership assets amounted to $500. Al-

so at this time A owed personal creditors $1000 and

had individual assets of the value of $800; and B owed

personal debts to the amount of $500 and had indivi-

dual assets of the value of $ 1 00. A thereupon conveyed

all his interest in the partnership business to B and B

agreed to assume and pay the firm debts.

Assuming that the Court of Bankruptcy takes

charge of the affairs of the firm and individuals while

in this condition and that the rights of the various

claimants are properly presented what disposition shall

be made of the assets among firm and individual cred-

itors?
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EXAMINATION IN ILL. PROCEDURE
DEAN MARKER

1, State the difference between personal service

in a suit at law and service by publication; how long

service of summons must be had before the term of court

to which it is made returnable; how long before service

by publication must be had; the difference between the

judgments that may be rendered on default in case of

personal service and in case of service by publication.

2. A brought suit against B for the September

term, 1903, of the Peoria County Circuit Court. Ser-

vice was not obtained for that term and an alias sum-

mons issued on the 10th of October, 1903. It was re-

turned by the sheriff as follows, "Served this writ on

the within named defendant by reading the same to

him this 20th day of October, 1903." At the Novem-

ber term, 1903, a default was entered against the de-

fendant and a judgment rendered against the plaintiff

for $4000, The summons commanded the sheriff to

summon the defendant to appear "before the Circuit

Court of Peoria County on the first day of the term

thereof, to be holden at the court house in the city of
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Peoria, on the second Monday of September next," etc.

In January, 1904, an execution issued from the judg-

ment and on it a city block belonging to B was sold to

A for the amount of the judgment and costs. There

being no redemption, a deed was issued to A in June,

1905.

The judgment record recites that B was personally

served with summ.ons, but there is no summons among

the papers, excepting the summons to the September

term, 1903, which was returned not served.

State the proceedings necessary for B to have the

judgment vacated and the sheriff's deed to A set aside.

3. A, a resident of Champaign Co., Ill,, died in-

testate without issue. She left surviving no children,

but she left living a husband B, who, for the last twelve

years has lived at the soldiers' home in Washington,

D. C. The only other relatives left surviving are C,

a brother residing at Cairo, III., and a sister residing

at Peoria, 111.

State who has the first right to administer, and

give in detail all of the steps necessary to a complete ad-

ministration of A's estate. She died seized of lots 4

and 5, in block 6, of Scott's Addition to Champaign,
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and owning $1200 worth of personal property. She

left debts amounting to $1800.

4. A railroad company constructed a dam which

caused the water in a stream to back up a distance of

one mile and cover 40 acres of B's land. The water

is used exclusively by the railroad company. The dam

structure is permanent and B is thereby deprived of the

use of his land. He sues the railroad company in eject-

ment. How should the company plead? What should

be the finding and judgment?

5. A leased a business house to B for a period

of two years. The lease contained certain conditions

with reference to keeping a steam heating plant in the

building and plumbing in repair. The lease provided

that a failure to perform condition would void the

lease. B, after he had occupied the premises a year

refused to have repaired a certain damage that had

been done by the freezing of a water pipe. The effect

of the defective water pipe was to flood and injure

an adjacent building belonging to A. State what reme-

dies are open to A and what course of proceedings you,

as the attorney of A, would adopt.
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6. Asa Watts recovered a judgment against John

Brown In ejectment for the sj^ of the se34 of sec. 21,

tp. 19, R. 8 E., in Champaign county, 111, Brown had

been in possession of the premises adversely for a period

of two years under a tax title that was held by the court

to be worthless. Prepare a declaration in ejectment as

of the September term, l9l5, of the Champaign

County Circuit Court. Judgment in ejectment being

rendered on the 20th day of January, 191 6, prepare

proper suggestions for rents and profits.

7. James Smith rented of the Urbana Motor Co.,

a corporation conducting an automobile livery, an auto-

mobile for the purpose of making a trip to Bloom-

ington. He promised to return the automobile in two

days. He did not return to Urbana, but sold the auto-

mobile to William Carr, a resident of Monticello, and

then absconded. The agent of the motor company,

six days after the machine was rented, learned that

it was in the possession of Carr. Carr retains it and

claims he is an innocent purchased of the machine, and

refused to part with it. Prepare all necessary papers

in an action of replevin.

8. Charles Brown took up his residence in the
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state of Colorado in 1903, leaving his wife and a

small infant son one year of age, with the intention

of subsequently moving his wife and child to Colorado.

In 1904, he wrote to his wife to join him in Colorado.

She did so, but found that he had no home, no occu-

pation, and no means of support. She returned to her

home in Decatur, Illinois, and two years later filed a

bill for divorce upon the ground of desertion. A few

weeks afterwards she died, before obtaining a decree,

The child was adopted by William Brown, the wife's

father, at Decatur, Illinois The proceedings for adop-

tion were begun in the County Court of Macon county.

No personal service was had upon the father of the

child, but there was service by publication. The affi-

davit upon which notice was given was fatally defec-

tive. Brown now returns to Illinois and desires the

custody of the child. The order of adoption shows

that the defendant was properly served by publication

but the defective affidavit Is on file. Employed by

Brown, state the proceedings you would adopt.

9. What are the functions of the following nam-

ed writs?

Certiorari,
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Habeas Corpus,

Injunction,

MandamuS;

Quo Warranto,

State a concrete case under each.

10. A, owning 160 acres of land in Champaign

County, in 1880 set off one acre in the southwest cor-

ner for a grave yard, and within three years from that

date buried a wife and child there. He allowed neigh-

bors to use the ground for that purpose to the end that

some 15 or 20 bodies were buried in It before 1890,

when he conveyed the entire tract to B, who ten years

later conveyed to C. In 1915 C conveyed to D. Dur-

ing the time it was owned by B and C the one acre was

used as a public burial place by the neighborhood, al-

though there was no reservation in any of the deeds.

Both B and C joined with the neighbors In planting

shrubbery and In otherwise ornamenting the yard.

After D acquired it he forbid any further use of

the yard by the public, nailed up the gate leading from it

to the highway, and began cultivating the ground. X

and Y, residents of the neighborhood, having the re-
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mains of friends buried in the grave yard, seek to en-

join D.

State the averments that should appear in the bill

and the reasons for sustaining it on demurrer.
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EXAMINATION IN PERSONAL PROPERTY
PROFESSOR GREEN

1. A lent his bicycle to B for a week. When

the week was up, A demanded the bicycle and B refused

to let him have It, claiming it as his own. A has heard

of trespass, trover, detinue, replevin and bills in equity,

and asks you to tell him which of these remedies he may

use, and what relief. If any, each will give him. What

shall you say?

2. A steamship was sunk In a storm on Lake

Michigan, and all on board perished. Her cargo of

general merchandise was washed ashore on land be-

longing to the city of Chicago. On the same day an

aeroplane fell to earth at the same place and its pilot

was killed. The city kept the cargo and the aeroplane

for two years, the owners being unknown. Then X
claimed each, and proved he was owner at the time of

loss. The state also claimed. What disposition should

be made of the cargo? Of the aeroplane?

3. A had grain in his barn. B stole it and made

alcohol of it. An act of Congress taxes making alcohol,
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and provides thaf the United States government may

confiscate and sell alcohol made without paying the

tax. B sold and delivered half the alcohol to C. Then the

United States government confiscated the rest because

no tax was paid, and sold it also to C. D obtained judg-

ment against C on a debt and the sheriff levied on all the

alcohol and sold it to satisfy the judgment. A claims

the alcohol from the purchaser from the sheriff. To

whom does it belong?

4. A shoe manufacturer recently bought a

quantity of leather and made it into shoes. It now

turns out that the leather was stolen. Whose are the

shoes ?

5. A by mistake cut trees on B's land, and sold

and delivered the logs to C, who made them into lum-

ber worth twice the logs. B got judgment against A in

an action for trespass to land in which the damages in-

cluded the value of the severed trees. Then finding

the lumber, B took it from C. Then A paid to B the

amount of the judgment. Thereupon C sued B for tres-

pass in taking the lumber. What judgment?



61

6. S had a ring which he kept in a safe. On his

death bed, intending to give the ring to his friend T,

he handed T a key, saying, "This is the key to my safe

where you will find my ring, which ring I hereby give

you; go and take it." S then became unconscious. T
went at once to the safe, but S had given him a wrong

key by mistake, and he could not get the ring. S died

without regaining consciousness. Whose is the ring?

7. What is a lien? How does a general lien dif-

fer from a special lien?

8. A borrowed a dress suit of B to take to a dis-

tant city and wear to a dance. After the dance he took

it with him to a public inn where he lodged for the

night. Next morning, as he had spilt ice cream on it at

the dance, he handed it to the innkeeper to be cleaned.

The innkeeper cleaned it thinking it belonged to A. A
left without paying. B demanded his dress suit of the inn-

keeper who refused to let him have it unless B paid

both for the cleaning and for A's lodging. What, if

anything, must B pay to get the suit?

9. X borrowed of Y $1000 for three months,
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pledging his automobile as security. Y, a month later,

borrowed $1000 of Z and delivered the automobile to

Z as security. X, without tendering the $1000, im-

mediately demanded the automobile from Z and on Z's

refusal to give it up brought trover. What judgment?

10. C kept tame pigeons in a pigeon house. They

often flew to the land of D, his neighbor, to feed. D
set a trap there and caught them. Blackbirds nested on

D's land and molested C's crops. C shot them on his

own land. C demands the pigeons from D. D demands

the dead blackbirds from C. What are their rights?
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EXAMINATIONS IN REAL PROPERTY
CHAS. E. CARPENTER

I. The plaintiff was a riparian owner of land.

The defendant owned non-riparian land further up

stream and lying back of riparian land owned by X the

plaintiff's neighbor. The defendant with the permis-

sion of X had constructed a conduit to take water from

the stream for irrigating his land. The defendant also

sunk wells from which he pumped great quantities of

water which normally would have percolated under the

land of X and the plaintiff to the stream. The defen-

dant was making a wasteful use of both the water taken

from the stream and the percolating water and It de-

prived the plaintiff of sufficient water supply In the

stream to run his mill continuously and it also lowered

the underground water table on the plaintiff's land so

as to render It unfit for the growing of celery and

water cress, the principal use made of the plaintiff's

land. What relief is the plaintiff entitled to against

the defendant?

II. A, who has recently purchased a new automobile,

has space on the rear of his lot for a garage but there Is
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no way of access to the rear of his lot Over his own land.

A asks B If he may build an ornamental cement way to

and from his proposed garage over the rear of B's lot.

B tells A that he may. A builds an expensive garage

and a beautiful passageway out over B's lot. After A
uses the way for one year B refuses to let A continue i>s-

ing the way and builds over the end of the way next to

A's lot a garage on his own lot and makes use of the old

way for his own garage. Has A any remedy against B

either in law or equity? Discuss fully?

III. (a.) A is tenant for life of Blackacre and

C has the reversion in fee. A makes a lease of Black-

acre for 10 years to B reserving an annual rent of $1,-

000, payable monthly in advance. Two years and five

and one-half months after the beginning of B's term,

A dies. B's rent being 6 months in arrears. Who is

entitled to the unpaid rent?

(b.) Suppose instead of A's dying he surrender-

ed his term to C, the reversioner. What rent could C

collect from B ?

IV. A made a lease in writing and under seal to

B of certain premises for 10 years at a rent of $1000
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per annum. Two years later A orally agreed to reduce

the rent to $850 per year and B occupied and paid rent

at the rate of $850 a year for two years. B then aban-

doned the premises and A secured a new tenant at the

rate of $750 per year for 12 years. At the date for the

termination of the original lease for 10 years, A sues

B. What should be the form of action and to what

relief is A entitled?

V. The plaintiff is a babe three months old duti-

fully living with his parents on a farm adjoining the

defendant's premises. The defendants maintain a soap

factory on their premises and the noxious fumes from it

seriously injure the plaintiff's health. What remedy

has the plaintiff? Discuss fully.

VI. A owns tracts of land X and Y. To supply

water to tract X he has used for many years a pipe lying

deeply under the surface of Y. A conveys Y to B not

m.entioning the pipe under Y and describing the western

boundary of Y as "a line 40 rods from and parallel to

the center of Newton road." A and B then erect a

fence as the dividing line between X and Y, 35 rods

from the center of Newton Road. A occupied tract X
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and up to the fence for 10 years and then conveyed X
to C describing the eastern boundary of X as " a line

paralled to and 40 rods west of the center line of New-

ton road." C occupied X and to the fence for 10

years. D who has recently talcen a conveyance of Y

discovers the existence of the pipe line and the mistake

in the location of the division fence. What are the rights

of the respective parties?

VII. A signed, sealed, acknowledged and record-

ed a deed of his farm to B and gave the deed to S, his

(A's) attorney, instructing S not to deliver the deed to

B until B paid S the full purchase price. C on the

strength of the recorded title took a deed of the land

from B paying him cash. A being unable to satisfy a

judgment for the purchase price obtained against B

brings an ejectment against C. What result?

VIII. (a.) In 1880 X conveyed land to A by a

deed containing the usual convenants. X had previous-

ly given a mortgage of the land to Y who brought fore-

closure proceedings against the land in 1885. While

this suit was pending A by quit claim deed conveyed to

B. In 1900 B is evicted by the rightful owner of the

premises. Upon what covenants may B recover against
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X? Against A? Has A any remedy against X?

(b). Suppose instead of B being evicted X in

1900 acquires title to the land and then B bring an ac-

tion on the covenants against X. What result?
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EXAMINATION IN SALES
PROFESSOR HALE

1. A owned an apple orchard. In January B

advanced to A ;^500 under an agreement that the apples

raised that year on the north half of the orchard should

belong to B. A also had facilities for making cider.

In order to secure a loan of $200 from C he executed a

mortgage on all the cider to be made from the apples

grown on the south half of the orchard. In October

of that year after the apples had been harvested and

the cider made, but before either B or C had taken

possession of the apples or cider, A became bankrupt

and X, A's assignee in bankruptcy took possession of

all the apples and all the cider.

(a) B brings an action of replevin for the apples.

(b) C, (the mortgage debt being due) brings

an action of replevin for the cider.

2. A went to B's store and ordered a dollar's

worth of sugar. B showed A several barrels containing

sugar of different kinds and grades and A decided upon

the sugar in barrel number one. A requested that B

deliver the sugar the next morning which would be



69

Sunday. After A left the store, B weighed and wrap-

ped the sugar and wrote A's name on the package. The

sugar was delivered the next morning, (i. e. on Sun-

day) in accordance with A's request.

B has been indicted for the violation of a statute

prohibiting the sale of goods on Sunday, Has B vio-

lated this statute?

3. B purchased from A an automobile, paying

$500 down and agreeing to pay the balance of $1500

in monthly installments of $100 each. It was also

agreed that B was to have immediate possession of the

car but that in case of default all payments previously

made should be forfeited and the car should be imme-

diately surrendered up to A. At the end of 10 months,

during which B had kept up his payments with regular-

ity, the car was destroyed without any fault on B's part.

Five months later A sued B for $500 the balance due

on the contract. What judgment?

4. B in Champaign, ordered from A, a whole-

saler, in Chicago, a car load of pianos to be paid for

against a bill of lading. A shipped the pianos and took

a bill of lading to himself or order. He thereupon drew

a bill of exchange on B and indorsing the bill of ex-
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change and bill of lading in blank took them to the

X bank to secure a loan. The loan was refused. On his

way back to his office, the documents were lost. C

found them and took them to the Y bank and secured

a loan of $2000. Upon B's refusal to pay the bill of

exchange, Y secured possession of the pianos from the

railroad company when they reached Champaign. A
now brings an action of replevin against Y for the

pianos. What judgment?

5. A in response to an order from B shipped a

carload of potatoes. It was agreed that they were to

be at the risk of B while in transit and that B was to ac-

cept a bill of exchange against a bill of lading. A took

a bill of lading to his own order. A few days later A

called up his bank over the telephone and asked for a

loan, saying that he would transfer the bill of lading

covering a car load of potatoes as security, and requested

that the sum be placed to his credit, to which the bank

agreed. A then requested the bank to send a messen-

ger for the papers. One X overheard this conversation

and went immediately to A's office and falsely repre-

sented that he was from the bank. A thereupon indors-

ed the documents in blank and handed them to X. Upon
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the arrival of the goods at their destination, X secured

possession of them and stored them at the K warehouse

taking a warehouse receipt to himself or order. This

warehouse receipt he indorsed and sold to C, a bona fide

purchaser.

Who is entitled the potatoes, A. B. or C ?

6. A shipped goods to B, at B's expense and risk,

under a straight bill of lading to B, it being agreed that

B was to pay for the goods within sixty days from the

date of shipment. Ten days after the shipment and

while the goods were still enroute B became bankrupt.

The carrier at A's request redelivered the goods to A.

A immediately resold them for $700. The contract

price was $500.

Has B's assignee in bankruptcy any remedy against

A?

7. B in Boston negotiated with A in New York

for the purchase of a quantity of hides. When the deal

was closed B paid A the purchase price. Thereafter A

went to X and by fraudulent representations induced X

to turn over to him two certain lots of hides. Lot num-

ber one he assumed to be purchasing for himself and
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lot number two for one C. Neither lot was paid for.

A immediately shipped lot number one to B taking a

bill of lading to the order of B and mailing it to B.

A also shipped lot number two to Boston taking a

bill of lading to his own order. This bill he indorsed and

sold to D for cash.

(a) As between B and X which is entitled to lot

number one?

(b) As between D and X which is entitled to lot

number two?

8. By written contract A agreed to sell, and B

to buy a certain lot of potatoes, being all the potatoes

stored in a certain warehouse. At the time the bargain

was made a sample of the potatoes was shown to B. Un-

known to the parties the potatoes at the time of the

bargain ,though they appeared in good condition, had

started "second growth" to such an extent as to be un-

fit for human food, although they could be used for

the manufacture of starch. The bulk and the sample

were alike in this respect. What are the rights of the

parties?
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EXAMINATION IN TORTS
PROFESSOR HALE

1. A and B were standing near X, conversing,

A with his baclc toward X and B facing X. X with

the intention of frightening A, for whom he had great

dislike, aimed and fired his revolver at a tree a few

feet away from A. A was startled by the sudden re-

port but did not discover until later why the revolver

had been discharged. B, who observed X aim and fire

the revolver, and who knew that X had at one time

threatened to shoot A, thought that X was attempting to

kill A. B was thereby so alarmed that she fainted and

was ill for several weeks thereafter. X realized that B

would be alarmed but did not care.

(1) A sues X for assault. What judgment?

Why?

(2) Has B any cause of action against X? Why?

2. A saw a person standing on the street corner

whom he thought to be his old friend X. A and X had

been in the habit of playing practical jokes on each

other. A decided in a spirit of fun to reach through a

nearby open window with his cane and knock X's hat
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awry. Just after he loosened the hat a sudden gust of

wind carried it away and against the eye of M who

happened to be passing, causing considerable injury to

M's eye. It turned out that the wearer of the hat was

not A's old friend X, but a total stranger, B. What

are B's rights against A? What are M's rights against

A?

3. A threw a stone and struck B's horse which

was standing on B's land. B consults you as to his rights

against A. How would you advise him ?

4. A requested B to pick up a piece of Iron and

hand It to him. A knew that the iron was hot enough

to burn B badly. B did not know that the Iron was hot.

B took hold of the Iron and was seriously burned. What

are B's rights against A?

5. A stole a horse, Blackle by name, from X and

left It at B's stable. Later A sold the horse to C and

promised that he would have It delivered to C at C's

home which was m a neighboring town. A few days

later A learned that D wished to hire an extra horse

to haul a heavy load to the town where C lived. A let
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him use Blackie for a charge of $5 and instructed D
to leave Blackie with C. C in turn pledged Blackie to

E. Discuss in turn X's rights against B, C, D and E,

assuming that none of them knew of the theft by A.

6. (a) A met B on the street and said to him:

"You are the most despised man in this city, by your

vicious oppression of your employees you are causing

more suffering than any other person in this country.

My friend X, in whom I have the greatest confidence,

says he is well acquainted with you, and he has inform-

ed me to this effect."

(b) A week later A wrote this same statement

on a postal card and mailed it to B.

Give your opinion as to B's rights against A under

each set of circumstances.

7. (a) A was a witness testifying in court. J,

the judge, said to him, "Young man, you are committing

perjury."

(b ) Shortly thereafter A applied to X for a posi-

tion in X's bank. X went to see J, told J that A had ap-

plied for a position in the bank and asked J if A would

be a desirable employee. J replied, "He is very dishon-
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est; he committed perjury In my court." Whereupon

X refused to employ him.

Assuming J's statements to be false is he liable to

A in an action of slander in either (a) or (b) ?

8. X's house had been robbed. Y learned some

facts which led him to believe that A had committed

the robbery. Y being an intimate friend of X, wrote

X that A was the robber. X immediately swore out

a warrant for A's arrest on the charge of robbery. A
was later tried and acquitted. It appears that X before

causing A's arrest was overheard to say: "I have been

looking for a long time for a chance to get even with

A; this is my chance."

(a) A sues Y for slander.

(b) A sues X for malicious prosecution. What

judgment in each case? Why?
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EXAMINATION IN AGENCY
CHAS. E. CARPENTER

1. One Iglehart, at a public auction sold the land

of one Dodge and the crops growing on It, also certain

machinery standing In a machine shed on the premises

to one Walters. Inglehart made out a memorandum of

the sale and signed his own name to It. Dodge stood by

and watched Inglehart make out and sign the mem-

orandum without objecting. Dodge contends he is not

bound by the contract and Walters consults you as coun-

sel as to his rights. Could Dodge compel Walters to

perform the contract?

2. A, B, C, D, and E, the retail grocers of Cham-

;^
paign, 111., contract with Adams to deliver their grocer-

ies for them. Adams has six men to make the deliveries

^. and each has a distinct district of the city to cover. A
driver on each trip, delivers to the customers of all the

grocers. Johnson while delivering groceries races on

the street with an express wagon and injures a clerk of

A who is crossing the street at the time. Who is liable

for the injury?



3. Peters has a beautiful park upon his land to

which he admits the public for a small charge. A foot-

bridge across a small stream running through the park

has iron railings along either side. The railing on one

side becomes weak in two places which we designate as

X and Y. Peters employs Adams to strengthen the weak

places. Adams inadequately strengthens the place X
and after inspection fails to discover Y. While a group

of picknickers are crossing the bridge the railing gives

way at X and Y and Timothy is thrown off at point

Y and Mike at point X. Is Adams liable to either or

both of them ? Is Peters ?

4. The defendent purchased the plaintiff's wool. It

was agreed that the plaintiff should deliver the wool at

the store of one Hoyt, a merchant and that defendant

would leave the money with Hoyt to pay for the wool.

The defendant left the money at Hoyt's, and plaintiff

delivered the wool and accepted in payment cash for a

part of the price and a personal check of Hoyt for the

balance. The check of Hoyt was dishonored and plain-

tiff sued the defendant for the balance of the purchase

price, and obtained the judgment of the trial court.



Should the defendant appeal from the judgment? Is

Hoyt liable to the plaintiff ?

5. The plaintiff sold a bill of dry goods of $500

to H. F, West on three months credit. West was in

fact acting as agent of the defendant at the time and

bought the goods for the defendant but did not disclose

this fact to the plaintiff. West gave a note signed In his

own name on receiving delivery of the goods. I.alci

the plaintiff purchased an automobile of H. T. West for

$ 1 000, paying only $500. Plaintiff now sues the defen-

dant on the note and also for goods sold and delivered.

May be recover? Can the defendant set off the amount

of the debt the plaintiff owes West? Could plaintiff

recover from West? Could West set off the debt plain-

tiff owed him? If West sued the plaintiff could the

plaintiff set off the debt West owed the plaintiff ?

6. James T. Howe was a conductor for the New

York Central Railroad Company, charged with the duty

of collecting and receiving fare from passengers. He

was Instructed by the company not to accept or receive In

payment of fare any ticket which had indorsed upon it

"good for six days only from date" after the time so



limited. He was required to exact payment of fare from

any passenger presenting such ticket. A Mr. Hotchkin

presented to the plaintiff a ticket of that description

more than six days from its date. Mr, Howe refused

to accept it and demanded fare and upon the refusal

of Hotchkin to pay it, Mr. Howe stopped the train and

put him off. Hotchkin later sued Howe and recovered

a judgment and Mr. Howe gave his note in satisfaction

of the judgment. Mr. Howe now sues the railroad

company. Should he recover?

7. Slay owned a tract of land in Alabama valuable

for the iron ore it was known to contain. He placed this

land in the hands of Chambers for sale. Chambers

agreed to undertake the sale of the land and promised

to and did transport specimens of ore taken from the

land to England for inspection there and he promised

to and did advertise in at least one respectable paper in

each of the cities of Birmingham and London. By

way of compensation Chambers was to receive an un-

divided y^ interest in the proceeds of the sale when the

land was sold and he was given the exclusive right to

sell. When Chambers had about completed a sale to



one Wayne, Slay revoked his authority, but Chambers

proceeded and completed the contract with Wayne. A
few days later Slay conveyed the land to one Glidden for

$20,000.

Has Wayne any rights against either Slay or Cham-

bers?

Is Chambers entitled to commissions from Slay and

if so, how much?

8. Action for the value of services as a dentist

rendered by the plaintiff to the defendant's infant

daughter at the request of one Mrs. Beecher in whose

custody the child had been temporarily placed by the

parents. At the beginning of the year 1893 the plain-

tiff sent a bill to the defendant for these services, and

received no answer, either in approval or dissent, and

during the ensuing three years, or more, up to the time

of the commencement of this action, several communica-

tions of his to the defendant, with regard to his claim

met with no better response. The court held that a

ratification was to be inferred from such silence. Is

the holding correct?



EXAMINATION IN CARRIERS
PROFESSOR GREEN

1. At a grade crossing of a steam railroad and

an electric rairoad, a train and an interurban car came

into collision. A passenger in the interurban car and

a traveling inspector employed by the railroad company

who was riding on a pass on the train in the course of

his employment, were injured. Each brought a suit for

his injuries in which the two railroad companies were

joined as defendants. Each plaintiff asks for a separate

Instruction to the jury as to each defendant that it was

bound to use the highest degree of practicable care,

and that there Is a presumption that it did not do so.

What rulings?

2. A lighterman, who professed to carry goods

in his lighter from the shore to ships loading in the

harbor for anyone who would deal with him, accepted

goods to be carried to a certain ship so loading. On

the way, the lighter was carried by a sudden gust of

wind against a bridge. The bridge, because insufficient-

ly built, collapsed, fell on the lighter and sank it with



the goods. Is the lighterman liable in tort? In con-

tract?

3. The owner of a bull, wishing to send him by

railroad to a cattle show, led him to the railroad stat-

ion by a rope fastened to a ring in the bull's nose and

delivered him to the railroad company by handing the

rope to its employee. The employee put the bull into

a box car and fastened him by the rope. The rope

was sound but not strong enough to hold the bull. The

bull was frightened by the starting of the train, broke

the rope, broke through the closed door of the car, fell

off and was injured. Discuss the carrier's liability.

4. A delivered to the American Express company

a sealed package addressed to his agent at another

town in the same state. The express company said at

the time of shipment, "Take notice that the company

will not be liable for loss by theft whatever the value

of the package. Nor will it be liable for more than

$50 whatever the cause of loss unless you inform us

that the package is worth more than $50, and in that

case the charge for carriage will be higher." A knew
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the value was $100, but said nothing and paid the rate

demanded. Without the company's fault the package

was stolen from the safe in its office at the town of des-

tination, in which safe the company had put the package

as soon as it arrived. Is the company liable and for

how much?

5. In April, 1916, B, at Decatur sold a horse

worth $200 to C in Champaign and shipped it to C

by railroad. Knowing that the railroad had a higher

rate for horses worth over $100, B said that the horse

was worth only $75 and that therefore he would agree

that it wasn't worth over ^100. Thereupon the rail-

road gave him a bill of lading in which to B's know-

ledge was the following clause, "It is agreed that the

horse is not worth over $100," and charged the lower

rate, which B paid. By the railroad's negligence, the

horse was so injured in transit that it was practically

worthless. C, at Champaign, presented the bill of lad-

ing indorsed to him, received the horse, and now sues

the railroad in tort for negligently injuring his prop-

erty. What, if any, damages? How would you answer

if the shipment had been from St. Louis to Champaign?



6. In an action against a railroad company for

breach of contract to carry goods with special dispatch

from Chicago to New York in time to connect with a

particular steamer for Europe, the breach being that

the goods received only ordinary dispatch and arrived

too late for the connection, the railroad's plea admitted

making the agreement, and admitted the breach, but

alleged that the goods were shipped at its regular sche-

dule rate of freight, that the schedule contained no

provision for special dispatch, that to have given special

dispatch at the regular rate of freight would have been

making a discrimination whereby an advantage was giv-

en to a particular shipper contrary to the Interstate Com-

merce act. Demurrer. What judgment?

7. X shipped goods by railroad from Chicago to

New York agreeing to pay $1 freight. He accepted a

bill of lading which contained no restrictions on car-

rier's liability. The goods arrived damaged to the

extent of $5 by an incendiary fire. The carrier had

used all possible care. By the rate schedule filed with

the Interstate Commerce Commission, of which X

had no knowledge, the rate on such goods when the
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carrier's liability was unrestricted was $3, and when

it was agreed that the carrier should not be liable for

fire the rate was $2. No copy of the schedule was

posted at the station at Chicago. What freight is due?

What is the carrier's liability?

8. Flour shipped by railroad reached its destin-

ation at midnight, and was unloaded from the cars, and

placed in the carrier's warehouse ready for the consignee

to take it. At three a. m. it was destroyed by an incen-

diary fire. The carrier used all possible care. Is the

carrier liable for the loss?

9. A common carrier ran weekly steamboats be-

tween St. Paul and St. Louis. A passenger for St. Louis

duly checked his trunk at the St. Paul office, and took

the boat; but the baggage master purposely and with-

out excuse detained the trunk for the next week's

steamboat. The next week's steamboat was wrecked by

a tornado and the trunk was lost. It contained wear-

ing apparel for personal use and also jewelry for sale at

St. Louis. What is the carrier's liability?
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10. X, at Urbana, delivered corn to a railroad

and received a bill of lading by which the railroad un-

dertook to deliver the corn at Indianapolis to X's order.

Then X secretly retook the corn and fed it to his hogs.

He then assumed to sell the corn to Y, who bought and

paid on faith of the bill of lading which X indorsed

and delivered to him. Y sues the railroad for not de-

livering the corn. Is it liable?

How would you answer if the railroad, reasonably

believing X to be honest, had consented to his retaking

the corn?
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EXAMINATION IN CONTRACTS
PROFESSOR DECKER

1, Jones solicited the job of painting Smith's

house. Smith said the price was all right, but he did

not know what kind of a workman Jones was. The lat-

ter then said he would guarantee satisfaction, and if the

job did not suit Smith he need not pay for it. Smith

let the contract to Jones on these terms and Jones paint-

ed the house. Smith said he was not satisfied and de-

fended on that ground when sued for the price of the

work.

Should Jones recover if he can prove that the work

was done in a workmanlike manner and would satisfy a

reasonable man t

2. M. F. & Co., on November 1, 1913, contract-

ed with Smith to hire him as a department manager for

three years, to begin December 1, 1913. Smith was

taken sick in November, of which M. F. & Co. had no-

tice, and did not report for duty till December 3, when

he was informed that his services were not needed.

(a) What are his rights?
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(b) Would It alter the case if the contract had

contained a clause as follows : Time is of the essence of

this contract? Explain.

(c) Suppose M. F. & Co. had notified Smith on

November 15th, that it would not accept his services and

he had commenced suit Immediately for breach of the

contract. Would the action He ?

3. A contracted to buy and B to sell on the in-

stallment plan a city residence. After the first Install-

ment was paid, but before A took possession, B dug up

and carried away a lot of shrubs which were on the

place. The cost of replacing the shrubs with new ones

would not have exceeded $50, but several years would be

required to bring them to the same period of develop-

ment as those carried away.

(a) Has A the right to rescind the contract?

(b) Can he rescind and recover damages both?

(c) What would be the effect on his legal rights

If he were to enter Into possession of the property with

knowledge of B's depredation?

4. Brown contracted to sell and deliver to the
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Home Telephone Co. 500 telephone poles at $1.00

each. After delivering a load of 50 poles he asked for

the pay therefor. The company refused to pay until

all were delivered. Brown then refused to deliver any

more and sued in indebitatus assumpsit for goods sold

and delivered to the value of $50.00. The company in

its plea set out the terms of the contract as a complete de-

fense to Brown's action and in addition claims damages

for the failure to deliver the balance of the poles.

Decide the case.

5. A and B made a contract by which A was to

furnish B, a tool manufacturer, with 1000 tons of tool

steel to be delivered in monthly installments of 50 tons

each, payment to be made at the end of each month. The

first month's installment was apparently up to grade

and was accepted and paid for. On working it up, how-

ever, the quality was found to be poor. The second in-

stallment was accepted and paid for, but notice was giv-

en to A of the poor quality of the prior shipment and

that no more of that kind of steel would be accepted in

the future. A promised to do better and shipped the

third installment which reached B on the last day of
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the month. He refused to pay for it until he had had

time to test it, which required several days. On finding

it no better, he told A that he would not pay for it and

A need not ship any more as it would not be accepted.

A nevertheless, sent a fourth shipment which he ten-

dered to B and which was up to the contract grade, but

B refused to receive it.

A sues B for breach of the entire contract and for

the price of the third installment. B pleads the fore-

going facts in defense. Decide the case.

6. Smith, who owned a creamery, entered into an

agreement with a number of farmers, including Thorpe,

to take all of their milk for a year, manufacture it In

his creamery Into butter and cheese, sell the product

and pay each 50 per cent of the proceeds of milk so de-

livered. The parties operated successfully under the

contract for six months and at a profit to the farmers

of 10 per cent above what they could otherwise get for

their milk. Then the creamery burned down with its

contents, which included milk delivered by Thorpe

worth $50 on the market. Smith refused to rebuild or
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to take any more milk. The fire was caused by light-

ning.

(a) Is Smith liable to Thorpe for the loss of the

m.ilk delivered?

(b) Is Smith liable to the farmers for not con-

tinuing the business for the rest of the year?

7. A, a contractor, was building a house for B.

A owed C $400 for lumber and gave C an order on B,

as follows: "Please pay to C $400 out of what may be

due to me on the contract for building your house." Be-

fore C presented the order to B, X sued A on a note for

$1,000, and garnisheed B. There was then due A on

the contract the sum of $800. What are the respec-

tive rights of C and X against B, either at law or in

equity?

8. Y borrowed $50 from X and gave him an as-

signment of "all wages earned by me until the debt shall

be paid in full." At the time Y was employed as a clerk

for W, to whom X gave notice of the assignment, W
promptly discharged Y. At the time he owed Y $15

wages, but Y owed him a grocery bill of $8. Y then
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hired out to T, who was also notified of the assignment,

but paid no attention to it and paid Y his wages as they

matured in excess of $50.

(a) What are the rights of X against W and T
respectively ?

(b) How should X have proceeded to enforce

his rights in a law court in Illinois if this had happened

20 years ago ? Would the same be true to-day ?

9. X is owner of a farm subject to a mortgage

to Y. X sells his farm to Z, who promises to assume and

pay the mortgage debt to Y and also to pay M, X's

daughter, the sum of $1,000 on X's death. Before eith-

er Y or M knew of this transaction, Z conveyed the

property back to X, who released him from his contract.

What are the rights of Y and M respectively

against Z?

10. "We promise to pay to John Jones and Wil-

liam King the sum of One Hundred Dollars, one year

after date, with interest at six per cent."

Dated May 1, 1914. Signed, Peter Smith, Frank

Black and James Corwin.

(a) Is this instrument a negotiable Instrument?
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(b) What would be the effect of the death of

Corwin on the rights and liabilities of the parties?

(c) Would a suit lie by John Jones against Peter

Smith?

(d) Could Jones and King properly join Smith,

Black and Corwin's administrator in one action?

(e) What would be the effect of a release by

Jones alone, of Smith alone, after payment of $50?
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EXAMINATION IN CORPORATIONS
PROFESSOR GREEN

1. The A corporation, whose shareholders were

B, C and D, carried on a grocery business in a certain

town. So did the firm of X, Y and Z. M bought out

the business of each, both the corporation and the sev-

eral members of the firm agreeing with M not to

carry on the grocery business in the town for a year.

Thereafter B, C and D formed a partnership and X
and Y, joining with them their former employee P,

formed a corporation. P contributed two per cent of

the capital, but the amount was advanced to him by

X and Y, on his agreement to hold his stock in trust

for them. Both the partnership and corporation went

into the grocery business in the town within the year.

What, if any, remedy has M?

2. Adams Express company, a joint stock asso-

ciation, had statutory power to contract in the com-

pany name. The statute provided that all its members

should be individually liable for its debts. The com-

pany issued bonds executed in the company name, which

by their tenor were payable to bearer, but only payable
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out of company assets. A bond so issued was stolen

and bought without notice from the thief. The ques-

tion arises whether the buyer has title against the for-

mer owner. It is contended that the bonds are not

negotiable because payable only out of a limited fund,

and that therefore the thief could not pass title. Dis-

cuss the question of negotiability.

3. A statute, which was unconstitutional because

its subject was not expressed in its title, provided for

the formation of business corporations. Certain per-

sons attempted in good faith to form a business corpor-

ation but inadvertently omitted to state in the organiza-

tion papers the location of the office, a statement which

the statute prescribed. The company having carried

on business for several months, sold goods to X through

an agent who did not disclose his principal. The price

fell due and the corporation sued X, who defended on

the grounds ( 1 ) that there was no de facto corpora-

tion; (2) that at any rate its incorporation

was defective, and he did not knowingly deal with

it and so was not estopped to set up the defect. Are

these defences good?
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4. A manufacturing corporation established a

pension fund for superannuated employees, laying aside

a part of its surplus each year for a pension reserve. The

reserve was invested partly in its own stock and partly

in the stock of a railroad company. A stockholder of

the manufacturing company is opposed to the mainten-

ance of the fund, and to such investment of It, if main-

tained. How, if at all, may he enforce his wishes?

5. A corporation with power to make and sell

railroad cars agreed with X in time of foreign

war to furnish him a quantity of explosive shells.

Y offered a higher price for shells, and

the company broke its contract to supply X and

delivered its shells to Y. X suffered loss in conse-

quence. The war ended suddenly and Y refused to pay

for the shells, which were still in his possession. What

are the company's obligations to X and rights against

Y?

6. A is sued on his subscription to the stock of a

corporation formed in Illinois in 1916. The subscrip-

tion was made on the books of the commissioners under
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the statute. Others had subscribed after A In reliance

on A's connection with the enterprice. A defends on

the following grounds:

(a) He gave notice of withdrawal before the

stock was all subscribed and before the certificate of

incorporation was issued.

(b) He was induced to subscribe by fraudulent

misrepresentations made by the commissioners when

they solicited his subscription, and he gave notice of

withdrawal as soon as he discovered the fraud.

(c) The corporation is not de jure.

(d) It was a written condition of his subscrip-

tion that he should be elected a member of the first

board of directors and he was not so elected.

(e) He was not notified that the directors had

made a call for payment of subscriptions until after the

suit was begun.

Which, if any, of these defences are good, if

proved?

7. A hotel company needed money which it could

advantageously borrow only from bankers who would

not lend unless they were invested with the control of

I
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the company for five years. In order that the company

might obtain the loan, the holders of a majority of

stock, in pursuance of an agreement with each other,

transferred their shares to the bankers in trust for five

years, the bankers to vote upon the shares as in the

bankers' judgment the interests of the company should

require. A minority shareholder wants to prevent the

bankers voting. So does one whose shares are held

by the bankers under the trust. May they prevent the

bankers voting and how?

8. A newspaper corporation was capitalized at

$100,000. Its assets were $150,000. Its debts were

$30,000. The directors declared and paid a cash divi-

dend of $100,000. The stockholders received the divi-

dend believing it was all paid from surplus. A fire ren-

dered the company insolvent. What, if any, remedy

against stockholders or directors have creditors?

9. At a stockholders meeting a vote to buy land

belonging to a stockholder is carried by that stockhold-

er's vote. Can a minority stockholder enjoin the exe-

cution of the purchase?
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10. A, who owns the majority of the stock of a

corporation and controls Its directors, has embezzled

some of its funds, Y, a shareholder, asks you to explain

to him his rights and to advise him how to protect his

interests. What will you tell him ?
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EXAMINATION IN EQUITY
PROFESSOR POMEROY

i. (a) Mention three classes of cases in which

courts of equity may relieve from mistakes of law.

• (b) Give an example (facts real or imagined) of

relormation for mistake of law.

2. A steam railroad is constructed, under author-

ity from a city down the middle of a street, the street be-

ing owned by the city. The operation of the railroad

constitutes a nuisance to A, an owner of property abut-

ting on the street, and diminishes the value of his prop-

erty. The cases studied present two different views as

to A's remedy in equity against the railroad company.

State these two views fully—the reasons for them,

and the results. Which is the Illinois law?

3. A conveyed to B, leaving $3000 of the price

still unpaid, but the deed did not show this. B con-

veyed to C for $3500, of which $2500 was still unpaid

when C for the first time received notice of A's claim

on the land. A sues to enforce his lien on the land.
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which is now worth $3000; C, on these facts, asserts the

rights of a bona fide purchaser.

State and explain the different ways in which var-

ious courts treat C's defense, under these circumstances.

4. (a) When may an injunction, preliminary or

final,, preventive or mandatory, be had against a nui-

sance without tirst establishing the existence of the

nuisance in a court of law?

(b) B mortgaged a tract to C ; the mortgage was

recorded : C went into possession of the tract, as he

was permitted to do by the terms of the mortgage. Later

B contracted in writing to sell the tract to C. This

contract was not recorded. Still later B conveys the

tract to A, who made no inquiries from C. Has A notice

of the contract?

5. In each of the following cases state, with full

reason, whether or not reformation may be had, and

whether or not rescission may be had.

(a) Plaintiff bargained to sell to defendant his

undivided interest in a certain tract. Plaintiff and de-

fendant both supposed that plaintiff owned a one fourth
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interest. Later, but before the deed passed, defendant

learned that plaintiff owned a three-fourths interest in

the tract, but did not communicate this knowledge to

plaintiff. Plaintiff in accordance with his bargain, and

in ignorance of the extent of his interest, made a deed

to defendant releasing all his interest in the tract.

(b) A sold a house and lot to B, for $5000, both

parties supposing that the house, worth $3000, was

wholly on the lot; in fact, it projected ten feet over

C's adjoining lot; this fact was not discovered until after

conveyance. The house cannot be moved back, and C

is threatening to demolish the projecting portion.

6. A, a corporation promoter, issued a circular

making various representations regarding the B Co. and

soliciting the public to purchase notes issued by the B

Co. A hundred persons read this circular and loaned

money to the B Co. on its notes. The B Co. became

insolvent and paid 25 cents on the dollar on the notes.

M, N and O sue A in equity on behalf of themselves and

the rest of the hundred holders of the notes, alleging that

A's representations were false and fraudulent, and

claiming damages for each note holder in the amount
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of 75 per cent of the face value of his note. A demurs

on the ground that the plaintiffs' legal remedy by separ-

ate suits for damages is adequate, and that equity has no

jurisdiction. Discuss fully.

7. Smith sold and conveyed Blackacre to Jones;

the deed was properly recorded. Later, Brown recov-

ered judgment against Smith and levied execution on

Blackacre; and the sheriff is threatening to sell it as the

property of Smith to satisfy the judgment. Suit by

Jones, who is in possession of Blackacre, to enjoin the

threatened cloud on his title. Demurrer, on the ground

that the sale will not create a cloud.

Four different tests are applied by the courts of

different states, to decide the question whether the sale

will cloud Jones' title. State and explain these four tests.

8. Certain jewelry once the property of a testa-

tor, is claimed by A as a gift made by the testator in his

lifetime to A. The jewelry has come into the possession

of the executor with the other assets of the estate. B,

the residuary legatee, denies the gifts, and claims that

the jewelry should be distributed to him. A threatens
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suit against the executor, who now brings his bill of in-

terpleader against A and B. Do these facts present a

case for interpleader? Reason.
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EXAMINATION IN EVIDENCE
PROFESSOR HALE

1. In an action by A against B for personal injur-

ies arising from the alleged negligence of B in the opera-

tion of his automobile, X testified that Y, B's chauffeur

told him two weeks after the accident that he was not

paying much attention to what he was doing when the

accident happened. A verdict was given for A. The

verdict was set aside and a new trial granted. Before

the case could be tried again X died. On the new trial,

K, a spectator at the first trial, was placed on the stand

and asked to repeat the testimony of X given at the for-

mer trial. It was objected on behalf of B (1) that

what K heard X say was hearsay; (2) that this was not

the best evidence of what X had testified to since a court

reporter had taken and extended the testimony given at

the former trial.

(a) Was it error to overrule these objections?

(b) Was the evidence properly received at the

former trial?

2. To pr()\e the dntc of a storm a witness, A, pro-
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duces a daily record of th» weather which he has been

for many years in the habit of keeping. A witness, B,

produces a similar record kept by his father, now de-

ceased. How, if at all, can these documents be used?

3. In a railroad collision several persons are ser-

iously injured. In an action on behalf of one of the in-

jured passengers, may X testify to statements of the in-

jured person (a) as to his physical condition, (b) as to

the cause of the collision?

4. John Doe and Mary, his wife, go out driving;

the horse is frightened by a derrick left in the street by

the defendant X Co. ; the horse runs away, and John Doe

is thrown out of the carriage, expiring shortly after he is

taken to the hospital. In an action by the son as ad-

ministrator for the death, the plaintiff offers to show

( 1 ) the habits of the deceased as a prudent driver, and

(2) several prior instances, during the same week, of

the frightening of horses by the same derrick. Should

the evidence offered be received?

5. A sued B on a coitfract. B pleaded Infancy.
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To prove his age he offered the following extract from

the dairy of his father: "June 1, 1900. Bought the

first suit of clothes for my boy B, three years old today;

price $3 ; I am to pay the storekeeper in chickens." Is

this admissible?

6. To prove that alterations were made prior to

the execution of a will, proponent offered in evidence the

original pencil draft of the will in the testator's hand-

writing containing the alterations, and also post testa-

mentary declarations of the testator to the effect that the

alterations were made before the will was executed.

Would the court err in receiving the evidence over ob-

jection?

7. A shooting affray occurred between four per-

sons, two on each side. A, who was on one side, and C,

who was on the other, were mortally wounded and soon

died. B is on trial for causing C's death and D is on

trial for causing A's death. Shortly before his death

A said, "It is hard to die by the hand of another and

leave a family. I know D shot me, but I can stand it

better because my. bullet is taking C along with me."
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May A's statement or any part of it be received in

either case?

8. Testator bequeathed $10,000 to the Univer-

sity Medical College at Rochester for medical research.

There was no such institution at Rochester. But there

was a corporation known as the "Mayo Foundation,"

which was carrying on research work at Rochester, and

some negotiations had taken place relative to its affilia-

tion with the College of Medicine of the University of

Minnesota, located in Minneapolis. Both institutions

claimed the legacy. The "Mayo Foundations," offered

evidence that the testator had been operated upon at

Rochester and that while there be expressed his desire

to aid them financially in their research work. Is the

evidence admissible?
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EXAMINATION IN FUTURE INTERESTS
CHAS. E. CARPENTER

1. A written lease under seal with condition that

on failure to pay the rent the lease shall be void. Rent

is payable quarterly on the first days of January, April,

July and October. The rent due on July 1 being un-

paid, the landlord brings ejectment, and subsequently

distrains for rent. The ejectment pending and the ten-

ant still in occupation, the landlord on Oct. 1st demands

a quarter's rent, and upon refusal brings covenant for

the rent due according to the terms of the lease the first

of October. Can he recover?

2. Whiteacre was devised to A for life, remainder

to B for life, remainder to the heirs of A in equal shares

A died leaving two children C and D, and devising all his

real estate to E. During B's life, D died unmarried and

devising all his real estate to F. On B's death, who had

the fee in Whiteacre under the Rule in Shelley's case?

3. Devise to A for life, on his death to B for life if

he survive A, and on B's death to C and his heirs, but
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if C dies without issue then to D and his heirs. State

as to the estate of B. C and D respectively whether it is

a remainder or an executory devise, and if a remainder

whether it is vested or contingent.

4. A died leaving four sons, B, C, D and E, his

heirs at law. He devised a parcel of land to B for life,

and on his death to B's children but if he died without

children, then to the testator's heirs. D died leaving

an only child F, and devising his property to his wife G.

Then B died, never having had any children, and devised

his property to N college. Who is entitled to the land?

5. A devise of Blackacre by A to trustees to pay

the rents and profits to B for life, and on B's death to

convey the land in equal shares to such of B's children

who should either before or after B's death reach 25.

Except for the above mentioned devise A died intestate

Jan. 1, 1886, and B Jan. 3, 1910. B at A's death and

at his own death, had three children—C born Feb. 4,

1860, and D born February 4, 1880, and E born Mar.

7, 1884. C, D and E are now alive. The land has
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never been conveyed by the trustees. To whom should

they convey it?

6. A who died in 1870 devised land to B for life,

and on B's death to such of B's issue as B should by will

appoint, and in default of appointment to D and his

heirs. B died in 1900 and by will appointed the land

"to my children in equal shares for their respective lives

and on the death of each, his or her share to go to his

or her children equally." At B's death he had two

children—a son E, born in 1868, and a daughter F,

born in 1874. On B's death E had two children, G

and H, and F had one child K. On B's death who had

what estates in the land?

7. Devise of land to A for life, and on his death

to such one or more of his children as he should be will

appoint, and in default of appointment to the Royal

Infirmary. A by will appointed the estate which was

subject to the power to such uses as A's son C should ap-

point in writing. C appoints by will to D and dies short-

ly after A. Who gets the fund ?
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8. X bequeathed and devised property to A for life

with remainder to the heirs of A's body. On the death

of X, A had sons B and C living but D, a son, was born

after X's death but before A's. By the law of Illinois

who has the property on A's death?
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EXAMINATION IN CONFLICT OF LAWS
PROFESSOR VERNIER

\. (a.)T, domiciled in Florida, carried on a loan-

ing business in Iowa through an agent there. The notes

and mortgages securing the loans were kept in a bank,

in Illinois across the state line. Are they subject to tax

in Iowa. If T died where are they subject to an inheri-

tance tax?

(b) A resident of Massachusettes died in that

state leaving in a New York safe deposit vault promis-

sory notes made by residents of Virginia and Illinois.

Are the notes taxable as "property within the state" un-

der the New York transfer tax law?

2. Plaintiff worked in New Jersey for defendant

under a contract made in New York, but contemplating

work in either state. Which state will furnish the law

to govern the tort liability? Assuming that the injury

occurred after each state had adopted workmen's com-

pensation laws, which compensation law will control?

3. A New York life insurance company issued a
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policy in Indiana payable to a citizen of Pennsylvania.

When the policy became payable the beneficiary sued

the company in Pennsylvania, where the company also

did business. A Pennsylvania statute provided that no

foreign insurance company should do business in that

state until it had filed an agreement with the state insur-

ance commissioner to accept service through him. This

company had never filed such an agreement. This suit

is based on service on the state insurance commissioner.

Judgment? Will your answer be the same if we assume

that the cause of action arose in Pennsylvania?

4. H owes B $300. Both live in Illinois where

the debt was contracted. B owed C, a resident of Ind-

iana $500. H while visiting in Indiana was personally

served in garnishment proceedings by C and agreed to

pay C and did pay C the $300 owed to B. On H's

return to Illinois he was sued by B for the debt. H
pleaded payment. Judgment? State and discuss several

theories involved in this problem.

5. Where is the following property subject to

an inheritance tax?
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(a) A, domiciled in Illinois, dies leaving lands and

chattels in Ohio and debts due from an Ohio creditor.

(b) A, domiciled in Ohio, dies leaving land and

chattels in Illinois and debts due from Illinois citizens.

A also owns stocks, notes and bonds of Indiana corpora-

tions and these are deposited in a Chicago bank for safe

keeping.

6. Plaintiff, a fireman of the defendant railroad com-

pany, was injured in Ohio by the carelessness of the en-

gineer. Plaintiff was domiciled in Ohio and the defen-

dant company was incorporated in New Jersey. Suit

was brought in the Federal court. Which state should

furnish the law to govern the application of the fellow

servant doctrine to this case?

7. Where is a minor son domiciled under the fol-

lowing states of fact?

(a) The father lives in Illinois but the son has

run away and is living in Missouri where he intends to

stay indefinitely.

(b) Facts same as above, except that the son who

is under the age of consent for marriage, has married

without his parents consent.
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(c) Father lives in Illinois but the son is living

in Michigan with his mother who has separated from the

father, and is living with her parents.

(d). The father dies domiciled in Illinois. The

mother marries again and moves with her husband to

live in Ohio. The son rem.ains in Illinois where he has

a permanent job.

8. M, a married woman, domiciled in state A

where a married woman cannot enter a partnership

business without her husband's consent, entered into such

business in state B where a married woman is not subject

to this limitation on her right to contract. Is she liable

for breach of the partnership contract in State B? In

state A? The partnership contract was executed in

state B.

Assum.e that the partnership is one to deal solely in

land in State A, will your answer be the same?
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EXAMINATION IN MUNICIPAL
CORPORATIONS
PROFESSOR POMEROY

1. The constitution of the State of North Alaska

provided that no city should become indebted in excess

of two per cent of the assessed valuation of property

in the city, as shown by the last assessment roll. The

legislature, by act of March 1, 1920, provided that the

city council of any city might issue bonds not in excess of

the constitutional limit of indebtedness. Another stat-

ute required every city to keep a public record showing

its total indebtedness. The city of Fairbanks, on July 1

1920, was indebted ^40,000; the valuation of property

in the city, as shown by the last assessment roll, was $3,-

000,000. On that date the city issued bonds, payable to

bearer, to the amount of $50,000. Each bond was

signed by all members of the council, and recited that it

was one of an issue of $50,000, and that it was issued

under and in full compliance with the act of March 1,

1920, and of the constitution of North Alaska. The

plaintiff a hone fide holder residing in Illinois, sued the

city in a Federal court on one of these bonds. Shall he

recover? State the theory by which the U. S. Supreme
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Court explains Its doctrine as to estoppel by recitals

in municipal bonds, and show in what respects the doc-

trine does or does not apply to the above facts.

2. (a) A suit is brought to test the validity of

an ordinance. It appeared that the ordinance violated

no provision of the state or federal constitutions. When

will the court consider, and when will it decline to con-

sider the question, whether the ordinance is "reasonable"

or not?

(b) Give three examples from case book cases or

from Illinois cases of ordinances held unreasonable;

two of ordinances held reasonable.

3. State the generally accepted view as to the

power of the legislature over the property of a munici-

pality. Give an illustration of an extreme view in favor

of such power, and an illustration of an extreme view

restricting such power.

4. A city owned its waterworks system, (a) Can

the city sell the system to a private corporation? (b)

Can a judgment creditor of the city levy execution on
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a part of the waterworks property? (c) Can the legis-

lature take the waterworks from the city and give them

to a private corporation? (d) or to a public State

Water board? (e) Is the city responsible in damages

because the size of the reservoir was insufficient to fur-

nish an adequate supply of water for extinguishing a

conflagration? (f) or because, owing to the negli-

gence of its officers, a water main bursts, flooding the

premises of plaintiff? Reasons, briefly, in each case.

5. The city of A, In 1890, issued valid bonds

under a statute which stated that the city "may, if it

deems advisable," levy and collect a special annual tax

to pay interest accruing on the bonds. In 1910, by

amendment to the state constitution, the annual tax rate

of cities, for all purposes, was limited to one per cent.

The full amount of the one per cent tax for 1915, has

been collected and used for current expenses. The city

has no mnoey in its treasury, and no property liable to

execution. Plaintiff has a claim for unpaid interest on

bonds of the 1890 issue. What is his remedy? State

reasons fully.
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6. On what grounds Is the liability of cidcs for

personal injuries resulting from defects in streets and

highways placed, in the states which assert such liability,

and why Is a distincton made between counties and citie";

In this matter? State also the arguments against such

liability.

7. A city officer successfully defended himself,

at an expense of $1000, against proceedings brought by

the city to remove him from office. Thereupon the

legislature passed an act giving any city officer againsf:

whom a city has brought such proceedings unsuccess-

fully a cause of action against the city to recover the

expenses, not exceeding $1000, incurred by him in con-

ducting his defense. The constitution of the state for-

bids a city to give its money or property to a private in-

dividual for private purposes. Argue pro and con the

question of the validity of this act of the legislature.

8. A city was required by Its charter to award all

contracts involving more than $200 to the lowest respon-

sible bidder. The city of A advertised for bids for a

certain piece of work, worth more than $200 ; B was the
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lowest bidder, and is undoubtedly responsible; but the

city council voted to award the contract to C. What is

R's remedy, if any? Explain.
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EXAMINATION IN EQUITY PLEADINGS
PROFESSOR HARKER

1. Name the written instruments used in the sys-

tem of Illinois equity pleading. State the office which

each performs.

2. State the essential differences in equity plead-

ing under the Illinois chancery code, and in the federal

courts under the recent rules of the United States Su-

preme court.

3. A, residing in another state, brings suit in the

Federal court of a state which is the residence of the

defendant and recovers judgment. Unable to obtain

satisfaction of the judgment by the issue and levy of an

execution, he garnishees notes held by B against C. C

is the resident of a different state from that in which A
recovered judgment against B. C begins suit on the

chancery side of the docket of the same court in which

judgment was rendered against B in favor of A, for the

purpose of enjoining the garnishment proceedings. A

appears and moves to dismiss. State what should be
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the basis of his motion, and the particular manner in

which it should be made.

4. A and B, heirs of C, file a bill in equity to

cancel a deed executed by C in his lifetim.e to X. The

deed was recorded after the death of C. The complain-

ants seek to have the deed and its record canceled upon

the ground that it was never delivered by C to X. The

bill avers that the complainants have no personal know-

ledge of the execution of the deed, or the manner in

which it was placed of record, but alleges that they have

been informed that the deed was never actually delivered

to X. State your views concerning the sufficiency of this

averment in the bill.

5. The com.plainant, a resident and taxpayer of

Urbana, 111., files a bill to enjoin the collection of a per-

sonal tax extended for the year 1915 against engines and

boilers used in a brick and tile factory, upon the ground

that the boilers and engines are a part of real estate

described as Block 6 in the Railroad Addition of Ur-

bana. In his bill, he avers that he had paid personal tax-

es amounting to $40.00, and has paid the real estate
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tax against the property mentioned, amounting to $150.

The tax against the engines and the boilers is $96. On

demurrer to the bill, what should be the grounds urged

by the tax collector, party defendant.

6. The defendant is engaged in the business of

buying the growing fruit of apple orchards and shipping

to market. On the 10th of September, 1915, he

agreed with the complainant to purchase the growing

fruit on the orchard of James Smith in Clay county. 111.,

for $2,000.00, if the same could be so procured, and

that they should share equally in the profits of the pur-

chase. At the same time he employed the complainant

to purchase the apples of four or five other orchards

in Clay county for that year, and agreed to pay him a

commission of 5 per cent for such purchases. The fruit

was so purchased. The complainant, treating the agree-

ment concerning Sniith's orchard as a partnership, has

filed a bill for partnership settlement against the defen-

dant. He also Includes In his bill a claim for commis-

sion on $8,000.00 for four other orchards purchased on

commission.

The defendant answers, denying the partnership
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agreement, and in the answer appears also a demurrer

to the bill for want of jurisdiction. What should be

the judgment of the court,

7. Draft a bill based upon the statement contain-

ed in question No, 6.

8. Draft a bill for the specific performance of a

contract made by James Smith to John Brown for the

conveyance of Lots 4 and 6 in Scott's addition to the

City of Champaign, 111., the agreement being dated

the 4th of October, 1914, and requiring a conveyance

of the property on the payment of $4,000.00 within

one year from that date.

9. The complainant procured from the master

in chancery an order for a temporary injunction re-

straining the defendant from the construction of a dam

that would have the effect to back up water upon the

land of complainant. The injunction was granted with-

out notice but the writ was properly served upon the de-

fendant. The defendant proceeded to the erection of

the dam nothwithstanding the restraining order that had
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been granted. Whereupon, the complainant, upon affi-

davit procured a writ of attachment against the defen-

dant for contempt. Pending the contempt proceedings,

the defendant filed an answer denying that the effect

of damming the stream in question would be to overflow

the land of the complainant, as alleged in the bill. The

answer was under oath, although answer under oath had

been waived in the bill. The complainant moves to strike

the answer from the file, for the reason that the defen-

dant has not yet purged himeslf of the contempt charg-

ed against him in the attachment roceedings. What

should be the order of the court and why?

10. To the complainant's bill on which a tempor-

ary injunction has been granted, and which waives oath

in the answer, the defendant answers denying the allega-

tions in the bill and attaches his oath to the answer. A

motion is made to dissolve the injunction. What office

may the sworn answer perform in the proceeding?
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EXAMINATION IN REAL PROPERTY
.CHAS. E. CARPENTER

1. In 1280 A seized in fee simple of Blackacre

enfeoffed B his heirs of the north half of it. In 1295 B

enfeoffed C and the heirs of his body of the north half

of Blackacre. C in 1300 made a feoffment of the north

half of Blackacre to D and his heirs. In 1310 D died

without heirs. What is the state of the title to Black-

acre?

2. X seized in fee simple makes the following

feoffments : ( 1 ) • A for 10 years then to B and his heirs

if B marries. (2.) A for life. (3.) A in fee simple

after X's death. What is the state of the title after

each of these feoffments?

3. (a.) X seized in fee simple makes a feoff-

ment to A and his heirs,

(1) to the use of B for life.

(2) to the use of B for ten years then to the use

of C for life if C marries.

(3) to the use of B for 10 years, to the use of C
for 10 years.



53

What is the state of the title in each?

(b) Suppose instead of a feoffment as in (a) a

bargain and sale, what result in 1, 2 and 3 ?

4. In 1500, A, a bachelor, tenant in fee simpleof

Blackacre gave livery of seisen of Blackacre to B and

the heirs of his body, remainder to A's first born son,

remainder to C and the heirs of his body. In 1510 B

gives livery of seisin to D for life. Define the estates

in and rights concerning Blackacre after this feoffment

by B.

5. A purchases land of B for $5000, paying $1,-

000 down and giving a purchase money mortgage for

the balance. A affixes some additional machinery in the

mill on the premises and gives S the seller of the ma-

chinery a chattel mortgage on it. The machinery added

costs $3000 and the chattel mortgage was for $2000.

After the premises have much depreciated in value C

buys them for $1000, subject to B's mortgage. B now

brings an action to foreclose his mortgage making C and

S parties defendant. How should the matter be settled

in this equitable action?
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6. A leased a factory to B for a term of five years

and covenanted to extend the lease for a further period

of five years, at B's request. B put in certain heavy ma-

chinery, which vs^as screwed to the floor. He also put

in a clock, which was screwed to the wall. A then trans-

ferred his reversion to C. B requested C to renew the

lease. C refused, and, on the expiration of the five

years, ejected B and took possession of the machinery,

and the clock. What are B's rights at law?

7. A leased a store to B for a term to continue so

long as C (A's son) should not desire to occupy the

premises. B let the premises fall out of repair. C later

desired to occupy the premises, and B gave up the pos-

session to A. Is B liable to A for having let the premises

fall out of repair?

8. The plaintiff's pear tree overhangs the defen-

dant's land. As the pears ripened defendant picked a

bushel of the pears without the plaintiff's assent. Later

the plaintiff reaches over the dividing wall and picks

a bushel of the pears and not being able to reach more

goes onto the tlcfcndant's land and by use of a ladder set
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on defendant's land picks another bushel of the pears.

The defendant aggravated by this action of the plain-

tiff cuts off the limbs over-hanging his (the defendant's)

land. What are the rights of the parties?
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EXAMINATION IN DOMESTIC RELATIONS
PROFESSOR VERNIER

1. A wife sues her husband for assault and bat-

tery and false imprisonment. Decision? Will your

answer be the same if the wife brings the suit after she

has obtained a divorce?

A wife sues her husband in replevin to recover per-

sonal property belonging to her and which her husband

is wrongfully detaining. Judgment?

2. The defendant's minor son kicked the plaintiff,

a minor, and injured him. Is defendant liable? Under

what circumstances if any is the son liable? Assume

that the defendant had notice that his son had kicked

plaintiff on two previous occasions. Will your answer

be the same?

3. Defendant induced plaintiff's husband to com-

mit a crime and then secured his conviction and sentence

to the penitentiary. Plaintiff sues for loss of her hus-

band's consortium. The defendant was inspired by dis-

like of the husband. Would your answer be the same
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if his purpose had been to revenge himself on the wife

for some previous slight?

4. Defendant, a minor hired a motor-car of the

plaintiff to drive to a certain destination. Defendant

intentionally deviated from the agreed route and during

the deviation the motor-car was wrecked by a collision

with another car, defendant being entirely free from

fault. Is the defendant liable in tort for conversion of

the car? Is he liable in a contract action?

Would defendant, a minor, be liable to plaintiff

in an action of deceit for inducing plaintiff to contract

to sell a car to defendant in the belief that defendant was

of age?

5. A husband and wife being unable to live to-

gether peacefully, the husband was on the point of de-

serting the wife, when they agreed to execute a deed of

separation, in which it was mutually agreed that they

should live apart, and he agreed to give her a weekly

allowance. About a year later he ceased paying and

left the state with another woman. Can the wife recov-

er on the agreement to pay a weekly sum? After the
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husband has been gone for the statutory period can she

obtain a divorce on the ground of desertion? Can she

obtain a divorce on the ground of adultery?

6. (a) Plaintiff sues for divorce on the ground

of his wife's wilful desertion without reasonable cause.

It appears that her only excuse for not living with him

was that he insisted on living with his parents and that

she could not live harmoniously with them. It did not

appear, however, that her health suffered. Should

the divorce be granted?

(b) Suit for breach of promise. In addition

to the usual damages plaintiff claimed seduction, that

she gave up a business in which she was engaged and

that defendant had promised to convey to her a certain

house and lot. Discuss these items and the question of

damages in general. Assume that defendant dies before

a verdict. Will the suit survive against defendant's per-

sonal representative? If so, what items of damage can

be considered in this suit?

7. Plaintiff, while a minor, bought and paid for

defendant's nu)\ ing picture tkeatre. Soon after reach-



59

ing majority he tried to sell the theatre, but was unable

to do so. Up to this time he did not know that any con-

tracts of a minor were voidable. On learning this may

he now rescind and recover the purchase price?

8. Plaintiff's husband was induced to leave her, as

a result of advice given by defendant. Plaintiff sues for

alienation of affections. Defendant without submitting

any evidence asked that the suit be dismissed, because

( 1
) a wife can not bring such a suit; (2) no malice was

alleged or proved. Discuss the points raised. If such

a suit will lie, state what jiKtification, if any, defendant

can set up.
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EXAMINATION IN SURETYSHIP
PROFESSOR DECKER

1. Jones sued Smith In assumpsit, alleging In

his declaration that, "Whereas, at, etc. Smith was in-

debted to the plaintiff, Jones, In the sum of One Hun-

dred Dollars, for goods theretofore sold and delivered

by the plaintiff to Black, at the defendant's request; that

thereupon the defendant promised to pay the plaintiff

the said sum," etc.

The defendant demurs. Decide the case.

2. A, B and C were all co-makers of a note to the

X bank for the sum of $5,000, with interest at 6 per cent

borrowed from the bank for A's account. On the back

of the note appeared the following endorsements: "I

guarantee the payment of the within note," signed by

D; and "I guarantee that the within note is good,"

signed by E. These endorsements were placed on the

note In the order stated before delivery^ to X.

Explain the nature of the liability of B, C D and

E, respectively, on this instrument, and the rights of X

against each, both In substance and In the method of pro-
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cedure under the common law for the enforcement of

those rights.

3. Referring to question 2, and supposing that

X should surrender the note to E after payment by him

of $4,000, what would be the rights of E against A. B.

C and D respectively?

Would B, if he had paid under the same circum-

stances, have the same rights as E ? If not, how would

his rights differ?

4. Referring again to question 2, suppose that

A. at the maturity of the note, had gone to the bank and

arkcd for an extension for thirty days, to which the

proper officer of the bank agreed, and that E knew of

this agreement and consented, but the other parties did

not learn thereof until later, and never consented.

To what extent would these facts constitute a de-

fence to B, C, D and E respectively, if sued by X?

5. Referring again to question 2, suppose that

C had signed the note at the request of B and without
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the knowledge of A, and had paid the note after ma-

turity.

(a) Would these facts affect his right. to reim-

bursement from A? Or from B?

(b) Would the added fact that B had orally

promised to indemnify C affect B's liability to C?

6. X and Y were sureties on the bond of P to C,

to secure the performance of a contract of P to build

a house for C. Before the house was completed, but

while P was still working thereon, X filed a petition in

bankruptcy and was later duly discharged. C never

made any claim against his bankrupt estate and no divi-

dend was paid on the bond aforesaid. Some weeks later

P defaulted on his building contract with C, and C, with

other creditors, filed a petition to have P declared a

bankrupt, which was done. C proved a claim of $1,000

against P's estate, as damages for breach of the contract

and received a dividend of $200 thereon. Y later paid

C $800 in settlement of his liability on the bond and now

consults you as to his rights against P and X, both of

whom have since become able to pay, for indemnity and

contribution rcspccti\cly. I low would you ad\isc him?
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7. Brown, having an endowment insurance pol-

icy on his Hfe, payable to himself or his estate, pledged

the same with Knight, his partner, as security for his

debt to the partnership. After Brown's death, his wid-

ow persuaded Knight to surrender the policy to Brown's

administrator, and in consideration thereof promised

Knight that she would pay her husband's debt as soon

as the estate was settled. Brown's estate was hopeless-

ly insolvent, but the widow received her allowance in

full out of the proceeds of the policy aforesaid. When

sued by Knight on her promise, she pleaded the statute

of frauds. Decide the case.

8. The statutes of Illinois provide that a public

administrator give a bond approved by the court, "con-

ditioned that he will faithfully perform all of the duties

of his office"; also that the court may require him to

give the usual bond required of other administrators,

touching any particular estate in his charge. Supposing

that, in pursuance of this statute, Jones had given a

bond for $5,000 as public administrator, with Skinner

as surety; and later had given another bond as adminis-

trator of the estate of Moore, with Morgan as surety,
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for the sum of $10,000. He later embezzled $5,000 of

the assets of Moore's estate. If Morgan is sued on the

bond signed by him and pays the loss, has he any right of

contribution againsfSkinner?

9 Referring to the previous question, suppose

that Morgan, after signing Jones' bond as administra-

tor, had become suspicious of Jones and had desired to

terminate his liability. Could he do so? Discuss brief-

ly the right of a surety to terminate his liability.

10. Referring again to the same question, sup-

pose that^ Jones and Morgan were sued jointly on the

administrator's bond, and a joint judgment obtained

against them. Jones, at this time owned a farm, which

he later sold to Peters, who was ignorant of the judg-

ment. Jones levied on the land and Peters contested,

with the result that they subsequently compromised by

Peters paying one-half the value of the land in return for

a release of the land from the judgment lien. If the

plaintiff subsequently levied on Morgan's land for the

balance of the judgment, would he be entitled to any re-

lief arising from the foregoing facts?
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EXAMINATION IN TORTS
PROFESSOR HALE

1. (a) A made a false statement as to a mater-

ial existing fact with the intention of inducing B to act

upon it. B did act upon it and suffered damage. The

trial court instructed the jury that if A did not have

reasonable grounds for believing the statement to be

true judgment should be given for B. Verdict was

rendered for B. A appeals. What would his assign-

ment of error be and what should the decision on ap-

peal be? Argue carefully the principle involved.

(b) X employed Y as his attorney to bring suit

against C. The suit was lost. X desires to sue Y for

deceit, telling you that Y secured the employment by

fraudulently stating that he would win the suit. It

appears that by reason of the defeat, X was damaged in

the sum of $1000. You are convinced that diligent at-

tention on Y's part would have won the suit for X. How

would you advise X as to his rights?

2. (a) X was run over by a street car operated

by the Y street railway company. Assuming X to have
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been free from contributory negligence, how should the

jury be Instructed to enable them properly to determine

the company's liability.

(b) How would the case be affected if it appear-

ed that by city ordinance the speed of street cars was

limited to twelve miles an hour and the car that injured

X was going fifteen miles an hour?

3. A borrowed B's automobile and took his fam-

ily, consisting of his wife, and child of the age of six

years for a ride. At a railroad crossing a collision oc-

curred between the automobile and a train of the X
company. Both A and the X company were negligent.

All of the occupants were Injured and the car was dam-

aged. Separate actions were brought against the rail-

road company by B, by A's wife, and by A's child. What

judgment in each case?

4. One night A left his horse standing in the street

without tying It or leaving anyone to guard it. An

explosion In a powder mill several blocks away fright-

ened the horse causing it to run away. In attempting

to Uirn a corner the vehicle struck a pile of lumber
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which B had left in the street and was thrown through

Y's store window. The street where the kimber was

piled was very dark and no light had been placed on the

lumber.

( 1 ) What are Y's rights against A ?

(2) What are Y's rights against B?

5. The X Electric Company conducted electricity

to the city from its power plant, several miles out, over

high voltage wires supported by skeleton towers, fifty

feet high. Each tower was equipped with a ladder for

workmen to use in making repairs. The towers stood

on land belonging to the company and ran through a

populated part of the country.

A, a boy eight years of age, climbed one of these

towers, came in contact with the wire and was killed.

An action is brought against the electric company

by A's estate. What judgment?

6. A pump standing near the front walk on A's prem-

ises got out of repair so that one attempting to use it was

likely to be injured. B, a letter carrier when delivering

mail at A's house attempted to use the pump and was
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Injured. A thereupon undertook to repair It, and while

so engaged left the well open at night. That night C,

a neighbor, with whom A had frequently visited back

and forth, while coming to visit A, wandered a few feet

from the walk, stepped into the unguarded opening and

was injured.

(a) What are B's rights against A?

(b) What are C's rights against A? Would it

make any difference if C had been requested to come

over for a social evening?

7. X placed in the attic of his house a tank for

soft water. X lived on the second floor of his house

and leased the ground floor to Y. The tank, which was

used exclusively by X, had been guaranteed by the sell-

er not to rust. By reason of a defect, however, it did

rust through and while X was away from home the

water leaked out, ran down into Y's closet and soiled Y's

clothes. What are Y's rights against X?

8. A agrees to sell B a lot for $1000. Coffers

A $1200 for the lot and thereby induces A to sell the lot

to him.
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(a) Has B a cause of action against C?

(b) Would B have an action against C if the

contract had been unenforcible because not in writing

as required by the Statute of Frauds?
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EXAMINATION IN TRUSTS
PROFESSOR VERNIER

1. (a). The A bank gave a note, of which itwas

the Indorsee, to the B Bank, for collection, under an

agreement that the latter should only be responsible for

negligence in choosing its correspondents. The B bank

forwarded the note to the C bank under a similar agree-

ment. The C bank forwarded to the D bank, which in

turn forwarded to the E bank, neither of these banks

making any reservation as to liability. Through the

negligence of the E bank in presenting the note for pay-

ment, the only indorser was released. The maker of the

note was insolvent. What are the rights of the A bank

against the D bank and the E bank?

(b) The plaintiff deposited at the defendant

bank a check on another bank drawn to his order and in-

dorsed in blank. I'he defendant entered the full amount

to the plaintiff's credit subject to check. The plaintiff

drew on his account, but at the time of the controversy

had on deposit more than the amount of the check in

question. A week after the deposit of the check In ques-

tion the defendant bank sougiit to charge the amount to
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the plaintiff's account, on the ground that the plaintiff's

check had been lost in the mail. Should defendant bank

be allowed to do so ?-

2. (a) At the close of the Balkan war the Brit-

ish Red Cross Society had on hand an unexpended bal-

ance from a special fund raised for the relief of the Bal-

kan war sufferers. An originating summons was issued

to determine whether it should be divided among the

subscribers in proportion to their subscriptions, or wheth-

er the last subscribers should be paid in full. How

should it be decided? Suppose X had contributed $100

after the Red Cross Society had decided there was no

further need for the fund. How should he be treated in

the distribution of the balance?

(b) T deposited $100 belonging to his cestui C

in a bank account in T's name as trustee. He later de-

posited $100 of his own money in this account. He still

later withdrew $100 and dissipated it. What are C's

rights ?

(c) T deposits $100 belonging to his cestui C in

an account in his name as trustee and later deposits $100

belonging to his cestui D in the same account. As be-
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fore he withdraws $100 and dissipates it. What part

of the money remaining should go to C and D?

3. Testator T bequeathed his personal property

to his brother D, who had agreed to distribute it ac-

cording to his brother's wishes as expressed in an un-

attested memorandum, which was not referred to in the

will. The contents of the memorandum were not known

to D until after T's death. The memorandum directed

that the money be given to a charity, C. Advise D as

to his rights and duties. Assuming that the only claim-

ant for the property is C and that D is willing to pay it

over to C, is D liable under an inheritance tax law, which

exempts beneficial interests passing by will or intestacy

to charities?

4. (a) A testator was induced not to change a

will leaving property to A by A's promise to hold half

of it for B, A's promise was oral. On the death of

the testator A refused to carry out his promise. What

are B's rights?

(b) A while perfectly solvent orally agreed to

hold certain land in trust for B. A later suffered severe
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financial reverses. However in fulfilment of his prom-

ise he conveyed the property in question to B, who had

become of age and had requested a transfer. This trans-

fer made A insolvent. His creditors bring an action to

have the transfer set aside. How should it be decided?

5, S devised property to T in trust to pay the in-

come to his son C for life, and thereafter to pay the in-

come to his son's children until the eldest reached the age

of 40, when the property was to be divided equally

among the children then surviving. A further provision

of the will directed that payments of principal and in-

come should be made directly to the beneficiaries free

of assignments and claims of creditors. Discuss the val-

idity of the provisions. Assume that the provisions of

the will are carried out and that C later dies and that D

the eldest son reaches 40 and is the only child surviving.

Assume that D is bankrupt, and that his assignee In

bankruptcy claims D's share. Who is entitled?

6. (a) A testator directed in his will that tlic

executors and trustees of his estate should employ his

son as attorney for the estate at a fixed yearly salary.

The executors and trustees refused to comply with this
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direction. The son brings an action to compel the execu-

tors and trustees to employ him. Decision ?

(b) Distinguish the trust and the debt relation.

7. A husband intending to kill a third person shot

at him and unintentionally killed his own wife. He was

convicted of manslaughter and now claims his share in

the wife's property under the statute of distributions. Is

he entitled? Would your answer be the same if he had

intentionally killed his wife for the purpose of gaining

her property?

8. T, holding real estate in trust for C, mortgaged

the property to X, Y and Z, each taking the mortgage in

ignorance of C's interest. Assume that the property is

worth $10,000 and that each mortgage was for $4,000.

In the absence of a recording system what are the rights

of C, X Y and Z. Would your answer differ if Z, while

still ignorant of C's interest, took an assignment for

value of X's mortgage? Or if X died while his mort-

gage was unsatisfied leaving Z as sole heir, Z however

knowing of C's interest at the death of X ?
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EXAMINATION IN WILLS
PROFESSOR POMEROY

L (a) Define undue Influence,

(b) Discuss presumption of invalidity of legacy

to a person occupying a fiduciary relation to testator.

2. Testator made a will in 1913 and a second

will, revoking the first, in 1914. In June 1916, a stat-

ute went into effect declaring that the destruction of a

revoking will should not have the effect of reviving an

earlier will. In July, 1916, testator destroyed the sec-

ond will. It is proved that he had never heard of the

statute of June, 1916, and that he wished his will of

1913 to stand. Should the first will be probated, or the

second, or both, or neither? Reasons,

3. (a) Testator's will read, "I bequeath my

house and the furniture therein to A, $1000 to B, $500

to C, and the balance of my personal estate to D." The

assets that came to the executor's hands consisted of the

furniture, worth $500, and cash to the amount of SL-

200. The house was worth $4000. Testator also own-
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ed at the time of his death an unimproved lot worth

$1500. How should the estate be distributed if there

are no debts and expenses? If the debts and expenses

are $700? If they are $2000? It they are $3200?

Explain.

(b) What reasons are asserted in support of the

rule that the gift of a mixed residue charges general

legacies upon the residuary land?

4. Testator in 1913 made a will devising the

bulk of his estate to his son A. In 1914, having become

estranged from A, he executed a codicil revoking the

devise to A and devising the estate to B, a distant rela-

tive. In 1915, having become reconciled to A, he exe-

cuted a second codicil, which, after making a change

in executors ,stated, "In all other respects I confirm my

will." What result? Reasons.

5. T's will read, "I give to my sons. A, B and C,

and my nephew D, each $5000 and a one quarter inter-

est in my farm; and the residue of my estate, real and

personal, I devise and bequeath to the Burnhani Hos-

pital." A, B, C and D all died before T; A being child-
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less, B having a child who died before A, and C and D
each leaving a child who survived A. The personal

property is sufficient to pay all debts and legacies in full.

How shall the estate be distributed, at common law?

Reasons for the common law rules. How shall it be

distributed in Illinois? Why?

6. The statute requires a will to be signed by wit-

nesses "in the presence of the testator." Define fully

and accurately the meaning of this phrase. Suppose

(1) the testator is lying on his back, unable to move;

(2) the testator is blind.

7. State three propositions, derived from cases

studied, relating to executors de son tort, and illustrate

each proposition with appropriate facts.

8. (a.) What is the generahrule of the com-

mon law relating to the survival of claims against a

decedent ?

(b) A, on Januarv 1st, was injured by the negli-

gence of B; A suffered pain from the injury, incurred

medical expense, and loss of business; B died February
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1st; A died of his injury March 1st. A's wife and

children were dependent upon him for support. Can A's

administrator recover from the administrator of B,

and if so, what? Reasons. (Illinois law.)














